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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K we refer to N¥erk Mortgage Trust, Inc., together with its comdaled subsidiaries, as “we,” “us,”
“Company,” or “our,” unless we specifically statettterwise or the context indicates otherwise. Werréd our whollyewned taxable RE
subsidiaries as “TRSs” and our wholly-owned qualfiREIT subsidiaries as “QRSdri addition, the following defines certain of thenemonly use
terms in this report: “RMBS” refers to residentialortgage-backed securities comprised of adjusteddie; hybrid adjustable-rate, fixedte, interes
only and inverse interest only, and principal oscurities; “Agency RMBStefers to RMBS representing interests in or obliga backed by poc
of mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by a fetechlartered corporation (“GSE”), such as the FedeNational Mortgage Association Fannie
Mace”) or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage CorporationAfeddie Mac”), or an agency of the U.S. government, such as thei@ment Nationi
Mortgage Association“Ginnie Mae”); “Agency ARMs” refers to Agency RMB®mprised of adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustafsite RMBS
“non-Agency RMBS” refers to RMBS backed by prinmeljo and Alternative A-paper (“Alt-A”) residentialartgage loans; “lOs”refers collectivel
to interest only and inverse interest only mortgageked securities that represent the right to titerest component of the cash flow from a pa
mortgage loans; “Agency IOsfefers to I10s that represent the right to the iet#rcomponents of the cash flow from a pool ofiesgial mortgag
loans issued or guaranteed by a GSE or an agentlyeof).S. government; “POs” refers to mortgalgaeked securities that represent the right tc
principal component of the cash flow from a poolnadrtgage loans“ARMs” refers to adjustable-rate residential morige loans; ‘prime ARN
loans” and “residential securitized loans” each egfto prime credit quality residential ARM loangp(fme ARM loans™held in securitization trust
“distressed residential loans” refers to pool s pérforming and re-performing, fixed-rate and adaide-rate, fully amortizing, interestaly anc
balloon, seasoned mortgage loans secured by fasslon one- to four-family properties CMBS” refers to commercial mortgadecked securitie
comprised of commercial mortgage palssaugh securities, as well as 1O or PO securitieat represent the right to a specific componerthefcas
flow from a pool of commercial mortgage loar*multi-family CMBS” refers to CMBS backed by comuial mortgage loans on multamily
properties; “CDOs” refers to collateralized debt obligationsCLO” refers to collateralized loan obligation; “©nsolidated K-Seriestefers si;
separate Freddie Mac- sponsored multi-family loaSé&ties securitizations, of which we, or one of special purpose entities, or SPEs, own the
loss PO securities and certain 10 securities ; “\&ole Interest Entity or VIE” refers t@n entity in which equity investors do not have
characteristics of a controlling financial interest do not have sufficient equity at risk for thatiey to finance its activities without additiol
subordinated financial support from other partieand “Consolidated VIEs'tefers to VIEs where the Company is the primaryefierary, as it ha
both the power to direct the activities that magh#icantly impact the economic performance of YHE and a right to receive benefits or abs
losses of the entity that could be potentially igant to the VIE.

General

We are a real estate investment trust, or REIThénbusiness of acquiring, investing in, financémgl managing primarily mortgagelatec
assets and financial assets. Our objective is toagma portfolio of investments that will delivéalse distributions to our stockholders over die
economic conditions. We intend to achieve this cje through a combination of net interest margimd net realized capital gains from
investment portfolio. Our portfolio includes certairedit sensitive assets and investments souroed distressed markets in recent years that ¢
the potential for capital gains, as well as moaditional types of mortgage-related investments gleaerate interest income.

We were formed in 2003 and commenced operatioasvastically integrated mortgage origination andtfadio investment manager in 20
upon the completion of our initial public offerin§ince exiting the mortgage origination businesda7, we built a diversified investment portfc
that includes elements of interest rate and creskit which we believe is best suited to deliveibét cash flows over various economic cycles.

Under our investment strategy, our targeted assgtently include residential mortgage loans, idatg distressed residential loans, multi-
family CMBS, mezzanine loans to and preferred gguivestments in owners of mufémily properties, equity and debt securities isshg entitie
that invest in commercial real estatdated debt investments and Agency RMBS. Subgeebaintaining our qualification as a REIT, we atsay
opportunistically acquire and manage various otyyges of mortgageelated and financial assets that we believe withpensate us appropriately
the risks associated with them, including, withdiatitation, nonAgency RMBS (which may include 10s and POs), celalized mortgac
obligations and securities issued by newly origgdatesidential securitizations, including creditsitve securities from these securitizations.

We strive to maintain and achieve a balanced amdrsk funding mix to finance our assets and opmratiWe rely primarily on
combination of shorterm borrowings, such as repurchase agreementgewitts typically of 30 days (and, in some casetume year), and lonc
term structured financings, such as securitizaioth re-securitization transactions, with terms &rthan one year.




We internally manage a certain portion of our mmitf including Agency ARMs, Agency fixed-rate RMBBonAgency RMBS, CLOs ar
residential securitized loans. In addition, as drour investment strategy, we also contract wiitain external investment managers to ma
specific asset types targeted by us. We are a pargeparate investment management agreementsHedllands Asset Management, LLC
Headlands, RiverBanc, LLC, or RiverBanc, and ThelWwdy Group, L.P., or Midway, with Headlands prowiglinvestment management serv
with respect to our investments in certain disedseesidential loans, RiverBanc providing investmeranagement services with respect to
investments in multi-family CMBS and certain commial real estateelated debt investments, and Midway providing stireent manageme
services with respect to our investments in Agds

We completed three public equity offerings in 20ddnerating aggregate net proceeds to us of appabely $296.5 million, expanding ¢
stockholdersequity from $480.7 million at December 31, 2013817.9 million at December 31, 2014. The expansfoour equity capital base o
the course of the last three fiscal years has @se® our scale and, we believe, our access torlargemore attractive investment and finan
opportunities, as evidenced by the purchase ofediseéd residential loans in December 2014 havingngaid principal balance of $367.6 millior
the closing date for an aggregate purchase prig828.4 million, including accrued interest.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and havelmampand intend to continue to comply, with theysions of the Internal Rever
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internal RevenueQodith respect thereto. Accordingly, we do not expgedbe subject to federal income tax
our REIT taxable income that we currently distrédta our stockholders if certain asset, income @mdership tests and recordkeeping requiren
are fulfilled. Even if we maintain our qualificatias a REIT, we expect to be subject to some fedaeade and local taxes on our income generat
our TRSs.

The financial information requirements required emthis Item 1 may be found in our consolidatedficial statements beginning on p
F-1 of this Annual Report.

Our Investment Strategy

We intend to continue our strategy of building sidential portfolio that includes elements of botterest rate and credit risk by focus
our investments on (i) “credit residential” assetbjch we define as residential mortgage loandudting distressed residential loans, médtmily
CMBS and other commercial real estate-related delgstments such as mezzanine loans to and preéfereity investments in owners of multi-
family properties, equity and debt securities issbg entities that invest in commercial real estatated debt investments, (ii) leveraged Age¢
RMBS, which we expect will include Agency ARMs, Ag®y fixedrate and Agency 10s, and (iii) the opportunistiguasition of other types
mortgagerelated and financial assets that meet our invedter@eria. At the same time we pursue these tathassets, we will continue to activ
manage our existing assets, which include the tredidential assets and leveraged Agency RMBSreefeo above as well as CLOs, reside
securitized loans and non-Agency RMBS.

Prior to deploying capital to any of our targeteget classes or determining to liquidate or disposeof our investments, our manager
team will consider, among other things, the amamtt nature of anticipated cash flows from the asaet ability to finance or borrow against
asset and the terms of such financing, the releagital requirements, the credit risk related ® dlset or the underlying collateral, prepaymesit
liquidity, the costs of financing, hedging, and ragimg the asset, relative value, expected futuerest rate volatility and future expected chartg
credit spreads. Consistent with our strategy tapece returns through a combination of net intemestgin and net realized capital gains, we will §
from time to time, to sell certain assets withim portfolio when we believe the combination of readl gains on an asset and reinvestment pot
for the related sale proceeds are consistent withomg-term return objectives.

Our investment strategy does not, subject to outimoed compliance with applicable REIT tax regoiemts and the maintenance of
exemption from the Investment Company Act of 1949 ,amended (the “Investment Company Adifhit the amount of our capital that may
invested in any of these investments or in anyi@dér class or type of assets. Thus, our futuvestments may include asset types different fraz
targeted or other assets described in this repbe.investment and capital allocation decisionswfcompany and our external managers depe
prevailing market conditions and other factors amaly change over time in response to opportunitiegsiable in different economic and cap
market environments. As a result, we cannot prebepercentage of our capital that will be invdsteany particular investment at any given time.

For more information regarding our portfolio as@écember 31, 2014, see Item 7 - “ManagenseBiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations” of this AnnBajort.




Investments in Credit Residential Assets

We seek to identify credit sensitive assets prilpaelating to residential housing from which wenaaxtract value through a combinatiot
current yield and/or capital appreciation. Our fmicd of credit residential assets is currently goised of residential mortgage loans, inclu
distressed residential loans, multi-family CMBS,zzenine loans to and preferred equity investmentsiiners of multfamily properties and equ
and debt investments issued by entities that inmesbmmercial real estate-related debt investm&nis portfolio also includes distressed reside
mortgage loans held in securitization trusts atmehgrARM loans held in securitization trusts (alsterred to as residential securitized loans).

The distressed residential loans in our currentf@ay have been acquired, in each case, as a godistressed residential loans sold |
financial institution. During the year ended DecemB1, 2014, we acquired multiple pools of disteessesidential mortgage loans having
estimated aggregate market value of approximatéB0® million at the time of their respective aaifions. This includes a pool of distres
residential loans acquired in December 2014 hawimgunpaid principal balance and carrying value pgraximately $367.2 million and $32°
million, respectively as of December 31, 2014. Ehdistressed residential mortgage loans generaligist of performing and re-performing, fixed-
and adjustable-rate, fully-amortizing, interestyoahd balloon, seasoned mortgage loans secureidsbyigns on one- to foulamily properties. Th
loans were purchased at a discount to the aggrpdgat@pal amount outstanding, which we believd wibvide us with adequate credit protection
an opportunity to modify the loan and achieve araetive yield. These distressed residential maiggaans are sourced and managed by Headlands

Our portfolio of multi-family CMBS is comprised ¢f) fixed rate PO securities issued from the flosts tranche, or “first lossgf certair
multi-family K-series securitizations sponsored by Freddie Mad(i@ncertain 1O securities issued by these seiatibns. Our investments in th
privately placed first loss PO securities generedlgresent approximately 7.5% of the overall séization which typically totals approximately $
billion in multi-family residential loans consisting of 70 to 10@iudual properties diversified across a wide gepgic footprint. These first lo
securities are typically backed by balloon meneurse mortgage loans that provide for the paymeprincipal at maturity date, which is typice
seven to ten years. Moreover, each first loss pi¢ceulti-family CMBS in our portfolio is, in most cases, thst junior tranche of security issi
by the securitization, meaning it will absorb al$es in the securitization prior to other morémdnanches being exposed to loss. As a resutt)
of the first loss securities in our portfolio ha=eh purchased, upon completion of a credit anatysisdue diligence by our external manager and
consultation with and approval of our senior mamagat, at a significant discount to its theurrent par value, which we believe provides uh
adequate protection against projected losses. diitianl, as the owner of the first loss piece, themPany, through RiverBanc, has the rigt
participate in the workout of any distressed propér the securitization. We believe this right Mallow the Company to mitigate or reduce
possible loss associated with the distressed psopete Company also invests in 10 securities famumber of the same muttimily securitization
from which we acquired our first loss PO investrseithese IO securities are stripped off the ermséuritization allowing the Company to rece
cashflows over the life of the mul&mily loans backing the securitization. These str@ents range from 10 to 17 basis points and tlenlying
notional amount approximates $1.0 billion each. M&y in the future invest in more senior tranchematti-family CMBS, which may include sor
form of leverage, if we believe the risk-adjusteturns for such assets are attractive. In additinmay acquire mulfamily CMBS from privat
originators of, or investors in, mortgage loansjuding non-financial institutions and other estiti With respect to the mufamily CMBS owned b
us, all of the loans that back the respective szations have been underwritten to Freddie Magauwriting guidelines and standards; however
securities are not guaranteed by Freddie Mac.

We invest in other commercial real estetéated investments, such as the origination ouiaidtpn of mezzanine loans to and prefe
equity investments in owners of muléimily properties, with a primary focus on conventil apartments, cooperative housing associat&aden
housing and other related property types in incrémas low as $1 million secured by propertiese@lat $10 million or greater. A mezzanine lo¢
a loan made to a property owner that is subordittateortgage debt and is typically secured by dgeeof the borrowes ownership interests in 1
property and/or direct or indirect entities thatrothe property. A preferred equity investment taflictakes the form of an equity investment in
special purpose entity (“SPEthat owns the property and is structured suchtti@preferred equity investor will receive cashriisitions from th
SPE in seniority to a more junior class of equitiiese preferred equity interests may be subordiateher forms of mortgage or propeléyel
debt. We also may participate in structured investis such as the acquisition of seasoned or disllesommercial loan portfolios. We also inve:
equity and debt securities of entities that inviestommercial real estate-related debt investmanid joint ventures focused on muthimily
properties.

The prime ARM loans held in securitization trustgiich we refer to as “residential mortgage loankl lie securitization trustsin out
consolidated financial statements, are loans thatgpily were originated by our discontinued moggalending business, and to a lesser e
purchased from third parties, that we securitize@005. These loans are substantially prime, fatuinentation, interestaly hybrid ARMs ol
residential properties and are all first lien maggs. We maintain the ownership trust certificabesquity, of these securitizations, which inclg
rights to excess interest, if any, and also takactive role in managing delinquencies and deféktrelated to the loans.




Investments in Agency RMBS

We intend to achieve more stable cash flows orcollective investments in Agency RMBS across vasimarket cycles, including, varic
interest rate, yield curve and prepayment cyclesygrily through investments in Agency ARMs, Agenftyed—rate RMBS and Agency 10s. C
Agency ARMs consist of whole pool patssough certificates, the principal and intereswdifich are guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie
which are backed by ARMs or hybrid ARMs. Our cutrpartfolio of Agency ARMs has interest reset pdsganging from 10 years to less than t
months.

Our Agency RMBS also consist of fixed-rate wholelppassthrough certificates, the principal and interestwdfich are guaranteed
Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, which are primarily letlby 15-year residential fixed rate mortgage loaith lesser amounts invested in 2a
residential fixed-rate mortgage loans. The majarityhese securities have coupons ranging from 2c6365%.

Agency 10s are securities that represent the tighteceive the interest portion of the cash floanfra pool of mortgage loans issues
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie.Maency |0s allow us to make a direct investmenborrower prepayment trends in
current market environment. However, Agency |0O® dtdéroduce increased risk as these securities havenderlying principal cash flows, wh
will cause them to underperform in high prepaymamtironments as future interest payments will lihiced as a direct result of prepayments.
rising interest rate environment, the value of ageicy 10 generally tends to increase as their @gpeaverage life increases and prepayn
decrease. Our investments in Agency IOs and relhgsltjing and borrowing activities are managed bywdy. We sometimes refer to th
investments and related hedging and borrowing iéiesvas our Agency 10 strategy or our Agency |@tjadio.

It should be noted that the guarantee providechbyGSEs on Agency RMBS issued by them does notgiras from prepayment risk &
that the payments on Agency 10s are not guarartbgedannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae. Moreadeof our Agency RMBS (includir
Agency 10s) are at risk to new or modified governirgponsored homeowner stimulus programs that maycendapredictable and excessively t
prepayment speeds resulting in accelerated prerainortization and reduced net interest margin, bétlwthich could materially adversely affect
business, financial condition and results of openast

Our Financing Strategy

We strive to maintain and achieve a balanced avefst funding mix to finance our assets and ogeratiTo achieve this, we rely prima
on a combination of shoterm borrowings under repurchase agreements, amctwgted financings, including securitized debt,@Dand long ter
subordinated debT.he Company's policy for leverage is based onytpe bf asset, underlying collateral and overallketiconditions, with the inte
of obtaining more permanent, longer-term financiog our more illiquid assets, such as our creditsg&ve first loss multfamily CMBS ant
distressed residential loans. Currently, we tangetimum leverage ratios for callable or sherim financings of 8 to 1, in the case of Agency B3
(other than Agency 10s), and 2 to 1, in the casAg#ncy 10s. We may utilize short term financingather asset classes with leverage ratios d
by the nature of the underlying asset as well aatimarket conditions.

As of December 31, 2014, our overall leverage ratioluding our short-term financings, such as repase agreements, and longgn¥
financings, such as securitized debt and subomlindebt (excluding the CDOs issued by the Congelii&-Series and our residential CDC
divided by stockholdersgquity, was approximately 1.4 to 1. Our leverag® ran our short term financings or callable delbsvapproximately 1.1
1. In each case, there may be occasional $bortincreases or decreases in the amount of lggersed due to significant market events, and wg
change our leverage strategy at any tidve. monitor all at risk or short term borrowingsetasure that we have adequate liquidity to satisfiygin
calls and liquidity covenant requirements.

We primarily rely on repurchase agreements to fond Agency RMBS portfolio. Repurchase agreementwige us with shortern
borrowings (typically 30 days) that bear intereges that are linked to the London Interbank OffeRate (“LIBOR”),a short term market inter
rate used to determine short term loan rates. Botsio these repurchase agreements, the finamsttution that serves as a counterparty
generally agree to provide us with financing basedhe market value of the securities that we pealg collateral, less a “haircuMarket value c
the collateral represents the price of such colihi@btained from generally recognized sources @stmecent closing bid quotation from such so
plus accrued income. Our repurchase agreementsegayre us to deposit additional collateral pursuara margin call if the market value of
pledged collateral declines as a result of markatitions or due to principal repayments on thetgages underlying our pledged securities. Int
rates and haircuts will depend on the underlyintataral pledged.




With respect to our investments in multi-family CIdBother commercial mortgage deblated investments and distressed residentiak|
we intend to finance our investment in these astetsugh working capital and, subject to market ditons, both short-term and lorigrr
borrowings. Our financings may include repurchage@ment borrowings with terms of one year or lesdpnger term structured debt financ
such as longeterm repurchase agreement financing and securitiebtlwhere the assets we intend to finance argilooted to an SPE and serve
collateral for the financing. We engage in longamt financings for the primary purpose of obtainiogger-term nomrecourse financing on the
assets. As of December 31, 2014, our nfaltily CMBS amounting to approximately $235.3 naili and distressed residential mortgage |
amounting to approximately $221.6 million are finad by some form of securitized debt.

In December 2014, the Company entered into a mesgperchase agreement with a grear term to fund a portion of the purchase prica
pool distressed residential loans with an unpaidcgpal balance at December 31, 2014 of approxitpa&867.2 million.Pursuant to the terms -
these financings, our ability to access the cashdlgenerated by the assets serving as collatengbm significantly limited and we may be unabl
sell or otherwise transfer or dispose of or modifigh assets until the financing has matured. litiaddwe have provided a guarantee with respe
certain terms of some of the longer-term debt ireiiby our subsidiaries, including the master relpase agreement with a opear term, and v
may provide a similar guarantee in connection ithre financings.

At December 31, 2014, we finance our prime ARM baeld in securitization trusts with approximat$i45.5 million of residential CD(
that were issued in securitization transactions@rapleted in 2005.

For more information regarding our outstanding baings and debt instruments at December 31, 204d,lem 7 - “Managemerst’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &w®kbults of Operations” of this Annual Report.

Our Hedging Strategy

We intend to use hedging instruments in conjunctidgth our investment portfolio to reduce or mitigaisks associated with change
interest rates, mortgage spreads, yield curve shapd market volatility. These hedging instrumengs/ include interest rate swaps, interest
swaptions, interest rate futures and options oeré@st rate futures, mortgage derivatives such agafd-settling purchases and sales of Age
RMBS where the underlying pools of mortgage loaes‘@o-Be-Announced,” or TBAs, and U.S. Treasuries.

We use interest rate swaps and Edodar futures to hedge interest rate repricingmaitches between certain of our investments ar
related borrowings. For example, the interest caugset period on our Agency RMBS is typically dgeeahan the repricing period for the rele
liabilities, which is usually 30 days. We typicallyould use interest rate swaps or Eddjlar futures to extend the liability repricingtdao mor
closely approximate the related asset.

We commonly use TBA transactions to hedge interagt and market risks associated with our Agency. IBursuant to our TE
transactions, we agree to purchase or sell, faréutelivery, Agency RMBS with interest terms amudtain types of underlying collateral, but
particular Agency RMBS to be delivered or receivasl applicable, is not identified until shortly bef the TBA settlement date. We typically do
take delivery of TBAs but, rather, settle with drading counterparties on a net basis. By utiliZIfBA transactions, we expect to reduce chang
portfolio values due to changes in interest raddthough TBAs are liquid and have quoted marketgsiand represent the most actively traded
of RMBS, the use of TBAs exposes us to increasedeh&alue risk. We typically conduct TBA and otheterest rate futures hedging transact
through one of our TRSs.

In connection with our hedging strategy, we, togetith our external managers, utilize a model dasek analysis system to assis
projecting portfolio performances over a varietyddferent interest rates and market scenariod) sascshifts in interest rates, changes in prepats
and other factors impacting the valuations of @msess and liabilities. However, given the unceti@dnrelated to prepayment rates, it is not possi
perfectly lockin a spread between the earnings asset yield ancktited cost of borrowings. Moreover, the castvdl and market values of cert
types of structured Agency RMBS, such as the I0snwest in, are more sensitive to prepayment risle other Agency RMBS. Nonethel¢
through active management and the use of evalustiees scenarios, we believe that we can mit@aignificant amount of both value and earn
volatility.

Our External Managers
The Midway Group, L.P.

A portion of our Agency RMBS portfolio comprised Afency IOs is externally managed and advised bywdy pursuant to an investm
management agreement between Midway and us (agdadhethe “Midway Management Agreementy)idway was founded in 2000 by Mr. Rok
Sherak, a mortgage industry veteran with more #tagears’experience, to serve as investment manager to ihedy Market Neutral Fund LLC,
private investment fund. Midway has been managihgdned portfolio of mortgage-related securitigsofcer 10 years.




Midway is responsible for administering the busiaestivities and day-tday operations of our investments in Agency I0s aedair
derivative instruments. These responsibilitiestidel arranging and coordinating the purchase arda$alarious investment assets and the final
and hedging associated with such assets, withtdiregsight from our management team. Midway alsy imvest from time to time in, among ot
things, Agency RMBS consisting of pass-throughifieates, CMOs, and POs and nagency RMBS (which may include 10s and POs), algjf
they have made no such investments on our behalé dieing engaged as an external manager. As fpast iavestment process, we expect
Midway will analyze significant amounts of data aedjing the historical performance of mortgagkated securities transactions and collateral
various market cycles.

Midway has established portfolio management ressurfor the investment assets described above andstablished infrastructt
supporting those resources. We expect that webeillefit from Midway’s highly analytical investmeptocesses, brodohsed deal flow, extensi
relationships in the financial community and opersl expertise. Moreover, since its founding, welidve Midway has developed strc
relationships with a wide range of dealers and rotharket participants that provide Midway access throad range of trading opportunities
market information.

As of December 31, 2014, we had allocated appraxiin$107.5 million of capital to investments maeddy Midway.
The Midway Management Agreement

We entered into an investment management agreesignbMidway on February 11, 2011, as amended onckl&; 2012 and April 1, 201
The Midway Management Agreement currently operateter a one-year term that is automatically renefseduccessive ongear terms unless
termination notice is delivered by either partythe other party at least six months prior to thé ehthe then current term. Pursuant to the Mic
Management Agreement, Midway implements our Agel@yinvestment strategy and related hedging andolbong activities and has compl
discretion and authority to manage these assetsredatbd hedging and borrowing activities, subjecicompliance with the written investm
guidelines included in the Midway Management Agreetrand the other terms and conditions of the Midianagement Agreement, including
authority to direct Midway to modify its investmestrategy for purposes of maintaining our qualifima as a REIT and exemption from
Investment Company Act.

The following table summarizes the fees that we fmaMidway pursuant to the Midway Management Agream We will reimburs
Midway for all transaction costs and expenses cliin connection with the management and admatistr of the assets and liabilities that 1
manage on our behalf.

Type Description

Base management fee Payable monthly in arrears in a cash amount eguiidet product of (i) 1.50% per annum of our invdstapital it
the assets managed by Midway as of the last bissdesof the previous month, multiplied by (ii) 21h.

Incentive fee Midway will be entitled to a quarterly incentiveeféthe “Midway Incentive Feethat is calculated quarterly
paid quarterly in arrears. The Midway Incentive kesubject to a high water mark equal to an 118trmeon ou
invested capital in assets managed by Midway (Hight Water Mark”),and shall be payable in an amount equ
the excess, if any, of 35% of the dollar amounthych adjusted net income (as defined below) attable to th
assets managed by Midway, on a quarterly basidefate accounting for the Midway Incentive Fee,e=ds a
annual 12.5% rate of return on invested capita (tHurdle Rate”),after adjusting for any carried over shori
from previous quarters. The return rate for eacértgu (the “Calculation Period§hall be determined by dividi
(i) the adjusted net income for the Calculationidkby (ii) the weighted average of our investegditzd in asse!
managed by Midway during the Calculation Periodob/pmutual agreement of the parties to the Mic
Management Agreement, a portion of each Midwayntige Fee payable to Midway may be paid in shafesuc
common stock.

Adjusted net income is defined as net income (loafjulated in accordance with generally acceptaanting
principles in the United States (“GAAP'cluding any unrealized gains and losses, afteéngieffect to certai
expenses. All securities managed for us by Midwdybe valued in accordance with GAAP.

Unlike the Hurdle Rate, which is calculated onr@éhmonth basis, the High Water Mark is calculatec calend:
12 month basis, and will reset every 24 months. Higlh Water Mark will be a static dollar figure thdidway will
be required to recoup, to the extent there is &itléfi the prior High Water Mark calculation pedidefore it i:
eligible again to receive a Midway Incentive Fee.

Equity Compensatio In addition to the base management and incentige feovided for in the Midway Management Agreemere
issued 213,980 shares of restricted stock to Midimaylarch 2012 that vested annually in dh&d increment
beginning on December 31, 2012. As of December2814, all of the restricted shares issued to Midway
vested in full.
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Although the assets and invested capital manageditbway are held in an account that is wholly owrBdour company, we may ol
redeem invested capital in an amount equal toabselr of 10% of our invested capital managed bywdydor $10 million as of the last calendar
of the month upon not less than 75 days writtericapsubject to our authority @irect Midway to modify its investment strategy faurposes ¢
maintaining our qualification as a REIT and exemptirom the Investment Company Act. Pursuant totdrens of the Midway Managem:
Agreement, we are only permitted to make one seadamption request in any 75-day period.

RiverBanc LLC

In April 2011, we formed a relationship with Rivenlc, a privately owned investment management aedapy finance company founc
by Kevin Donlon, for the purpose of investing in lirtamily CMBS, such as Freddie Mac Multifamily Ba Securitization K-Seriegssets, ar
other commercial real estate-related debt invesBnesuch as mezzanine loans to and preferred equigstments in owners of mulégmily
properties. Pursuant to an investment managemee¢mgnt between RiverBanc and us. RiverBanc saustrestures and manages our investn
in these asset classes. We also have investedxapately $36.6 million in equity and debt secustissued by entity that is externally manage
RiverBanc. As of December 31, 2014, we owned 20&tginterest in RiverBanc.

RiverBanc Management Agreement

On March 13, 2013, we entered into an amended estdted management agreement with RB Commercialgiige LLC, our wholly-
owned subsidiary, and RiverBanc (as amended, tivefBanc Management AgreementThe RiverBanc Management Agreement, which rep
the prior management agreement between RiverBaddr@ Commercial Mortgage LLC, has a term that eegbion December 31, 2014 ani
subject to automatic annual one-year renewals dftere

Pursuant to the terms of the RiverBanc Managemegnéément, RiverBanc will receive a monthly base agament fee in arrears in a ¢
amount equal to the product of (i) 1.50% per anmfriEquity” as of the last business day of the previous manthitiplied by (ii) 1/12th. Fc
purposes of the RiverBanc Management AgreementfyEigudefined as “Assets” minus “Debtyhere Assets is defined as the aggregate net ng
value (in accordance with GAAP) of those assesuofcompany managed by RiverBanc (specifically ediclg (i) any unrealized gains or losses
have impacted net carrying value as reported infimancial statements prepared in accordance wiAlARS regardless of whether such items
included in other comprehensive income or lossardt income, and (ii) one-time events pursuamhianges in GAAP, and certain noash item
not otherwise described above, in each case, asathuagreed between RiverBanc and us) and Detiefined as the greater of (1) the net carr
value (in accordance with GAAP, excluding adjusttador unrealized gains or losses) of all thiakty debt or liabilities secured by the Assets
(2) prior to termination of the RiverBanc Managemégreement, zero, or following termination of tRéverBanc Management Agreement,
amount equal to 50% of Assets. In addition, RiverBwill be entitled to an incentive fee that isctdated quarterly and paid in cash in arrears,
incentive fee is based upon the average Equityndutie fiscal quarter, subject to a high water neglial to a 9% return on Equity, and sha
payable in an amount equal to 35% of the dollar amdy which adjusted net income (as defined in RiverBanc Management Agreeme
attributable to the Assets, before accounting for imcentive fees payable to RiverBanc, exceedarasualized 12% rate of return on such ave
Equity (provided, however, that the applicable patage for calculation of the incentive fee on @mgremental return in excess of 21% sha
reduced to 20% from 35%). Any incentive fee paidtf@ fourth fiscal quarter of each year underabeeement is calculated based on the ince
fee earned during the calendar twelve-month pdess the aggregate incentive fees paid for thetfiree quarters during the period.

We may terminate the RiverBanc Management Agreemestect not to renew the agreement, subject ttmiceconditions and subject,
certain cases, to paying a termination fee equ#tegoroduct of (A) 24 and (B) the monthly base aggment fee earned by RiverBanc during
month immediately preceding the month in which timenination occurs. In the event we terminate theManc Management Agreement for
reason (other than for “cause”), RiverBanc hasjesilto certain conditions, a right of first refusa purchase from us the assets managed by them.
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Headlands Asset Management LLC

The Company engages Headlands to manage and advisdth respect to the distressed residential ragegloans acquired by
Headlands sourced and performed diigence procedures on the pools of distresseidigeal mortgage loans acquired by us and man#w
servicing, modification and final disposition orsadution of the loans, which can range from modifyia mortgage loan balance, interest ra
payment to selling the underlying real estate asset

Headlands was founded on May 2008 as an investmanager focused on purchasing, servicing and magai aspects of a portfolio
residential mortgage loans.

Headlands Management Agreements

We are a party to multiple investment managemergeagents with Headlands. As part of our financitrgtegy, we have transferre
portion of our distressed residential mortgage $a@ncertain SPEs, which are treated as consotidathsidiaries of the Company, for the purpo:
securitizing the loans. Each investment manageragreement by and between Headlands, the Companwarandonsolidated subsidiary of
Company (the “Securitization Subsidiariegiypvides that Headlands serves as the asset maofadistressed residential mortgage loans owne
the Company or by its Securitization Subsidiarigach investment management agreement has a tetmwilha@xpire upon the sale or ott
liquidation of all mortgage loans held by the Sé@aation Subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of each investment manageaggaement, Headlands will receive a monthly basaagement fee payable on
tenth business day of each month in a cash amaou ¢o the product of (i) 1.50% per annum of asseider management (“AUMgs of the fire
day of each such month, multiplied by (ii) 12 where AUM is defined as the net asset value eftiortgage loans being managed by Head
plus any “subsequent collateral account balanas"dgfined in the investment management agreemerdajidition, Headlands will be entitled to
incentive fee that is calculated quarterly, bunhit payable until the notes issued by such Setatitin Subsidiary as part of the securitize
transaction have been retired in full. The incenfige is based upon the weighted average AUM duhadiscal quarter and shall be payable i
amount equal to 35% of the dollar amount by whieh $ecuritization Subsidiaytaxable income (before accounting for any ineenfiees earned
Headlands and interest on the notes) exceeds amlaed 12% rate of return on such weighted averdd®l (provided, however, that the applica
percentage for calculation of the incentive feeaop incremental return in excess of 22% shall deiced by the amount of any subordinate serv
fees). The parties will recalculate the annualrtive fee earned by Headlands after the fourthafigoarter of each year and will adjust any pays
owed or required to be remitted based on such dcaleulation.

Headlands may terminate any of the investment nemagt agreements at any time upon not less thatay® notice; provided, howeve
that, subject to certain exceptions, it may notteate an agreement or resign prior to the timér suates issued by the respective Securitiz
Subsidiary have been retired. We may terminatenaesiment management agreement in the event ofieured violation of the agreement or
bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation proceedingsrespect of Headlands. Neither Headlands nor #aur8ization Subsidiaries will incur
termination fee upon termination of any of the istveent management agreements. We have agreedremtpeathe payment of the base manage
fees and expenses payable to Headlands by theitgediom Subsidiaries.

Conflicts of Interest with Our External Managers; @uitable Allocation of Opportunities

Each of Midway, RiverBanc and Headlands managed, isrexpected to continue to manage, other cliegbants with similar ¢
overlapping investment strategies. In connectioth the services provided to those accounts, thesgagers may be compensated more fava
than for the services provided under our externahagement agreements, and such discrepancies peosation may affect the level of sen
provided to us by our external managers. Moreca&ech of our external managers may have an ecoriotarest in the accounts they manage o
investments they propose. In addition, we havéénrecent past engaged in certainrog@stment opportunities with an external manageme of it
affiliates and we may participate in future ioeestment opportunities with our external managertheir affiliates. In these cases, it is possithla
our interests and the interests of our externalagears will not always be aligned and this couldiiteis decisions that are not in the best interef
our company.

Each of Midway and RiverBanc has agreed that, wheaking investment allocation decisions betweenngsits other client accounts
will, in the case of RiverBanc, allocate investnseit a fair and equitable manner and, in the cds&lidway, seek to allocate investm
opportunities on an equitable basis and in a maitrmElieves is in the best interests of its retéva@ccounts. Since certain of our targeted asse
typically available only in specified quantitiesdasince certain of these targeted assets will la¢stargeted assets for other accounts managec
associated with our external managers, our extenaalgers may not be able to buy as much of caeataiets as required to satisfy the needs of
its clients’or associated accounts. In these cases, we unuitsia the allocation procedures and policiesuwfexternal managers would typici
allocate such assets to multiple accounts in ptapoto, among other things, the objectives, stwateand stage oflevelopment or needs of e
account. Moreover, the investment allocation peiodf Midway may permit departure from proportioakbcation when the total allocation wo
result in an inefficiently small amount of the seyubeing purchased for an account. Although wkele that each of our external managers
seek to allocate investment opportunities in a reamhich it believes to be in the best interestalbccounts involved and will seek to allocate
an equitable basis, investment opportunities betiele be appropriate for us and the other accaumanages or is associated with, there can |
assurance that a particular investment opportumityoe allocated in any particular manner.
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Midway is authorized to follow broad investmentdglines in determining which assets it will invast Although our Board of Directc
will ultimately determine when and how much capitabllocate to assets managed by Midway, we génevdl not approve transactions in adval
of their execution. As a result, because Midwaydrast latitude to determine the types of assetmit decide are proper investments for us, them
be no assurance that we would otherwise approvthesfe investments individually or that they will baccessful. Meanwhile, RiverBanc
complete discretion and authority to manage assetsur behalf subject to investment guidelines eppd by our Board of Directors. However,
Board of Directors may elect to change the investrgeiidelines or waive them for various investmehtsaddition to conducting periodic revie'
we will rely primarily on information provided tostby our external managers. Finally, our externahagers may use complex investment strat
and may engage in complex transactions on our behath may be difficult or impossible to unwind.

Pursuant to the terms of the Midway Management &meent, we may only redeem invested capital in aouanequal to the lesser of 1
of the invested capital in assets managed by Midovey10 million as of the last calendar day of henth upon not less than 75 days written nc
subject to our authority tdirect Midway to modify its investment strategy fourposes of maintaining our qualification as a REhd exemptic
from the Investment Company Act, and we are onlynitted to make one such redemption request in7&ayay period. In the event of a signific
market event or shock, we may be unable to effeettemption of invested capital in greater amoontst a greater rate unless we obtain the co
of Midway. Because a reduction of invested capitalild reduce the base management fee under the aflitldanagement Agreement, Midway r
be less inclined to consent to such redemptions.

None of our external managers is obligated to dediany specific personnel exclusively to us, merthey or their personnel obligatec
dedicate any specific portion of their time to thanagement of our business. As a result, we cgrogtde any assurances regarding the amot
time our external managers will dedicate to the aga@ment of our business. Moreover, each of ourmatenanagers has significant responsibil
for other investment vehicles and may not alwaysable to devote sufficient time to the managemérdun business. Consequently, we may
receive the level of support and assistance thaithwerwise might receive if such services were jpled internally by us.

Certain Federal Income Tax Considerations and Our &tus as a REIT

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sec856860 of the Internal Revenue Code for federal incéaxepurposes, commenc
with our taxable year ended December 31, 2004, vemdelieve that our current and proposed methodpefation will enable us to continue
qualify as a REIT for our taxable year ending Delsem31, 2015 and thereafter. Accordingly, the méerest income we earn on our asse
generally not subject to federal income tax as lasgwe distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxahtome in the form of a dividend to «
stockholders each year and comply with variousratbhguirements. Taxable income generated by TRS$higct to regular corporate income tax.

The benefit of REIT tax status is a tax treatméat tivoids “double taxationgr taxation at both the corporate and stockholeeels, the
generally applies to distributions by a corporatiorits stockholders. Failure to qualify as a REIduld subject us to federal income tax (incluc
any applicable minimum tax) on our taxable incormneegular corporate rates and distributions tostackholders would not be deductible by us.
Summary Requirements for Qualificatio
Organizational Requirements

A REIT is a corporation, trust, or association timetets each of the following requirements:

1) It is managed by one or more trustees or dirscto

2) Its beneficial ownership is evidenced by traredfée shares, or by transferable certificates okfeial interest.

3) It would be taxable as a domestic corporation for the REIT provisions of the federal income f@aws.

4) It is neither a financial institution nor animance company subject to special provisions ofgtleral income tax laws.

5) At least 100 persons are beneficial ownerssosliiares or ownership certificates.

6) Not more than 50% in value of its outstandingrsel or ownership certificates is owned, directlyndirectly, by five or fewe
individuals, which the federal income tax laws defto include certain entities, during the last bhhny taxable year.

7) It elects to be a REIT, or has made such eledis a previous taxable year, and satisfies d#vant filing and othe

administrative requirements established by theti&® must be met to elect and maintain REIT status.

8) It meets certain other qualification tests, diégd below, regarding the nature of its income asskts.
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We must meet requirements 1 through 4 during otireetaxable year and must meet requirement 5 duminleast 335 days of a taxe
year of 12 months, or during a proportionate pa# taxable year of less than 12 mon

Qualified REIT SubsidiariesA corporation that is a QRS is not treated asrparation separate from its parent REIT. All asskabilities
and items of income, deduction, and credit of a SQRre treated as assets, liabilities, and items adrire, deduction, and credit of the REIT
“QRS” is a corporation, all of the capital stockwalfiich is owned by the REIT. Thus, in applying tequirements described herein, any “QRI
we own will be ignored, and all assets, liabilitiaad items of income, deduction, and credit ohssubsidiary will be treated as our assets, litdsl
and items of income, deduction, and credit.

Taxable REIT SubsidiariesA REIT is permitted to own up to 100% of the &t@f one or more TRSs. A TRS is a fully taxablepaatior
that may earn income that would not be qualifyingoime if earned directly by the parent REIT. OMerad more than 25% of the value of a RET’
assets may consist of stock or securities of omeae TRSs.

A TRS will pay income tax at regular corporate sab@ any income that it earns. In addition, the T&8s limit the deductibility of intere
paid or accrued by a TRS to its parent REIT to eesthat the TRS is subject to an appropriate lef’febrporate taxation. We have elected for ea
Hypotheca Capital, LLC, New York Mortgage Funding,C, NYMT Residential Tax, LLC, NYMT Residential Xa2013 -RP1, LLC, NYMT
Residential Tax 2013 - RP2, LLC and NYMT ResiddriTiax 2013 -RP3, LLC to be treated as TRSs. Our TRSs are dulgj@mrporate income t
on their taxable income.

Qualified REIT AssetsOn the last day of each calendar quarter, at [€3% of the value of our assets (which includeg assets he
through a QRS must consist of qualified REIT assetgrimarily real estate, mortgage loans securedeay estate, and certain mortgdrpeke!
securities (“Qualified REIT Assets"§jovernment securities, cash, and cash items. Wevbeahat substantially all of our assets are aitidcantinue
to be Qualified REIT Assets. On the last day otheealendar quarter, of the assets not includederfdregoing 75% asset test, the value of secs
that we hold issued by any one issuer may not ekB&ein value of our total assets and we may not owre than 10% of the voting power or v
of any one issues’ outstanding securities (with an exception fousées of a QRS or of a TRS). In addition, the @g@te value of our securities
TRSs cannot exceed 25% of our total assets. Wetanathie purchase and holding of our assets for qeap of the above asset tests and se
manage our portfolio to comply at all times witlckuests.

We may from time to time hold, through one or mBRSs, assets that, if we held them directly, cayglderate income that would have
adverse effect on our gqualification as a REIT orcertain classes of our stockholders.

Gross Income Tests
We must meet the following separate income-basstd &ach year:

1. The 75% Test. At least 75% of our gross incéon¢he taxable year must be derived from QualifREel T Assets. Such incor
includes interest (other than interest based inlevboin part on the income or profits of any pejson obligations secured
mortgages on real property, rents from real prgpeyains from the sale of Qualified REIT Assetsd ajualified temporal
investment income or interests in real propertye Tvestments that we have made and intend toraentb make will give ris
primarily to mortgage interest qualifying under &% income test.

2. The 95% Test. At least 95% of our gross incdoneghe taxable year must be derived from the sssitbat are qualifying f

purposes of the 75% test, and from dividends, ésteor gains from the sale or disposition of stockther assets that are
dealer property.
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Distributions

We must distribute to our stockholders on a pra tzsis each year an amount equal to at leasO%) &f our taxable income befc
deduction of dividends paid and excluding net egitin, plus (ii) 90% of the excess of the netme from foreclosure property over the
imposed on such income by the Internal Revenue Cleds (iii) any “excess non-cash incom@/e have made and intend to continue to r
distributions to our stockholders in sufficient amts to meet the distribution requirement for REL&lification.

Competition

Our success depends, in large part, on our aliitacquire assets at favorable spreads over oupwimg costs. When we invest
mortgagebacked securities, mortgage loans and other inwdtassets, we compete with other REITs, investrinanking firms, savings and Ic
associations, insurance companies, mutual fundigehfunds, pension funds, banks and other finanmétutions and other entities that invest in
same types of assets.

Corporate Offices and Personnel

We were formed as a Maryland corporation in 2003 €rporate headquarters are located at 275 Madisenue, Suite 3200, New Yo
New York, 10016 and our telephone number is (282-0107. As of December 31, 2014, we employed sewitifne employees.

Access to our Periodic SEC Reports and Other Corpate Information

Our internet website address is www.nymtrust.cone. Make available free of charge, through our imtemebsite, our annual report
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, entrreports on Form B-and any amendments thereto that we file or flirpisrsuant to Sectit
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act @4,%s amended, or Exchange Act, as soon as rdédg@nacticable after we electronically file s
material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Our Corgi®@ Governance Guidelines and Code of Businesdu@band Ethics and the charters of our A
Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Govem@unmittees are also available on our websiteaaacvailable in print to any stockhol
upon request in writing to New York Mortgage Trust., c/o Secretary, 275 Madison Avenue, Suiteé032&Ew York, New York, 10016. Informati
on our website is neither part of nor incorporéted this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

When used in this Annual Report on FormKL0in future filings with the SEC or in press redea or other written or oral communicatic
statements which are not historical in nature, udiclg those containing words such as “believe,”péxt,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,”
“continue,” “i should,” “would,” “could,” ‘goal,” “objective,” “will,” “may” or similar expresions, are intended to identify “forwatdeking

” o ” o, ”ow

intend,
statementsWithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securithes of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of treh&xge Act, and, as such, r
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties asgumptions.

Forwardiooking statements are based on our beliefs, adsoumspand expectations of our future performane&jng into account ¢
information currently available to us. These baligilssumptions and expectations are subject te aiséd uncertainties and can change as a re:
many possible events or factors, not all of whica known to us. If a change occurs, our busingeanéial condition, liquidity and results
operations may vary materially from those expressexlr forwardiooking statements. The following factors are exe@spf those that could cal
actual results to vary from our forwalmbking statements: changes in interest rates lamdniarket value of our securities; changes in tigaiead:s
the impact of the downgrade of the lotggm credit ratings of the U.S., Fannie Mae, Freddac, and Ginnie Mae; market volatility; changeshe
prepayment rates on the mortgage loans underlyingnewestment securities; increased rates of defmd/or decreased recovery rates on our a
our ability to borrow to finance our assets andtdrens thereof; changes in governmental laws, egiguis, or policies affecting our business; cha
to our relationships with our external managers;ahility to maintain our qualification as a REIdrffederal tax purposes; our ability to maintaim
exemption from registration under the Investmenin@any Act; and risks associated with investingeial estate assets, including changes in bus
conditions and the general economy. These and a#iey, uncertainties and factors, including trsk factors described in Item 1A — “Risk Factors”
elsewhere in this Annual Report on FormK,0as updated by those risks described in our gulesd filings under the Exchange Act, could caus
actual results to differ materially from those gaipd in any forward-looking statements we maké fgklvarddooking statements speak only a:
the date on which they are made. New risks andrtainées arise over time and it is not possiblg@tedict those events or how they may affec
Except as required by law, we are not obligatecim do not intend to, update or revise any forWaolting statements, whether as a result of
information, future events or otherwise.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are the risks that we believe aratemial to stockholders and prospective investoiou should carefully consider the followir
risk factors and the various other factors idengfi in or incorporated by reference into any othesaiments filed by us with the SEC in evaluat
our company and our business. The risks discuskecein can adversely affect our business, liquidigperating results, prospects, and financ
condition. These risks could cause the market priaf our securities to decline. The risk factorsstribed below are not the only risks that n
affect us. Additional risks and uncertainties n@resently known to us, or not presently deemed mateby us, also may adversely affect «
business, liquidity, operating results, prospedasd financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Business and Our Company

Declines in the market values of assets in our istreent portfolio may adversely affect periodic refea results and credit availability, which m
reduce earnings and, in turn, cash available forstfibution to our stockholders.

The market value of the interdstaring assets in which we invest and any relagefdjing instruments may move inversely with charig
interest rates. We anticipate that increases greast rates will generally tend to decrease ouinueime and the market value of our intetgsaring
assets. A significant percentage of the secunitisin our investment portfolio are classified fxcounting purposes as “available for sazhange
in the market values of trading securities willrelected in earnings and changes in the marketegabdf available for sale securities will be retiée
in stockholders’equity. As a result, a decline in market valuesceftain of our investment securities may reduce hbek value of ot
assets. Moreover, if the decline in market valuanoavailable for sale security is other than terapy, such decline will reduce earnings.

A decline in the market value of our interéstaring assets may adversely affect us, partigulaihstances where we have borrowed mi
based on the market value of those assets. If trkahvalue of those assets declines, the lendgretaire us to post additional collateral to su
the loan, which would reduce our liquidity and lirour ability to leverage our assets. In additidrwe are, or anticipate being, unable to pos
additional collateral, we would have to sell theeads at a time when we might not otherwise chooseot so. In the event that we do not t
sufficient liquidity to meet such requirements,démg institutions may accelerate indebtednesseas® interest rates and terminate our abili
borrow, any of which could result in a rapid detesition of our financial condition and cash avdiator distribution to our stockholders. Moreo
if we liquidate the assets at prices lower tharnatimertized cost of such assets, we will incur lesse
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The market values of our investments may also dealithout any general increase in interest ratesaf number of reasons, suct
increases in defaults, actual or perceived inceeas®&oluntary prepayments for those investmeras We have that are subject to prepayment
and widening of credit spreads. If the market valofour investments were to decline for any reaitmnvalue of your investment could also decl

Changes in laws and regulations affecting the retaiship between Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and tHeS. government may adversely aft
our business.

Payments on the Agency RMBS (excluding Agency li@sykhich we invest are guaranteed by Fannie Maeddie Mac and Ginnie Mg
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are government sponsmtedprises, or "GSEs," but their guarantees aréacked by the full faith and credit of
United States. As broadly publicized, Fannie Magé Breddie Mac have experienced significant lossegdent years, causing the U.S. Govern
to place Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac under fedenasarvatorship and to inject significant capitalttiese businesses. Questions regardin
continued viability of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mas currently structured, including the guarantbasback the RMBS issued by them, and the
Governments participation in the U.S. residential mortgagekeathrough the GSEs, continue to persist. In &Gaty 2011, the U.S. Departmen
the Treasury along with the U.S. Department Housind Urban Development released a much-awaitedtréfed “ Reforming Americess Housins
Finance Market, which outlines recommendations for reforming th&.Lhousing system, including reducing the rolefarinie Mae and Fredt
Mac and transforming the governmenitivolvement in the housing market and its refafop to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. In Februafy? 2the
Federal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, releasedStrategic Plan for Enterprise Conservatorshipgjich set forth three goals for the n
phase of the Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac conseshaps; which include (i) build a new infrastructfog the secondary mortgage market,
gradually reduce Fannie Mae and Freddie Maw'esence in the marketplace while simplifying ahdnking their operations, and (iii) maintain
foreclosure prevention activities and credit avality for new and refinanced mortgages. In Mar¢i2, the FHFA announced that it was creati
new entity as it reduces the roles of Fannie MakFaerddie Mac that may serve as a foundational @hmwf the mortgage market of the future. S
the FHFA first released its strategic plan, theagehbeen a number of other housing finance refaopgsals introduced, both from industry grc
and by the U.S. Congress. One of the proposedtbillsceive serious consideration is tiolsing Finance Reform and Taxpayer Protectionof
2013.” This proposed legislation, among other things, waliminate Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae and replam® with a new agency which wo
provide a financial guarantee that would only bgp&d after private institutions and investors ségpm. During the second quarter of 2014,
proposed bill failed to make it out of the SenatsBng Committee for a full vote. It remains unclednether this or any other proposals will bec
law or, should a proposal become law, if or howehacted law will differ from the current drafttbi bill.

As discussed above, each of Fannie Mae, Freddieaiddsinnie Mae could be dissolved and the U.S.eBowent could determine to s
providing liquidity support of any kind to the mgage market. If Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or GinnaeMere eliminated, or their structures we
change radically or the U.S. Government signifisaréduced its support for any or all of them, wayrbe unable or significantly limited in ¢
ability to acquire Agency RMBS, which would draslig reduce the amount and type of Agency RMBS labée for purchase which, in turn, co
materially adversely affect our ability to maintasnr exclusion from regulation as an investment gany under the Investment Company .
Moreover, any changes to the nature of the guagarpeovided by, or laws affecting, Fannie Mae, Biedlac and Ginnie Mae could materi
adversely affect the credit quality of the guarastecould increase the risk of loss on purchasésgehcy RMBS issued by these GSEs and ¢
have broad adverse market implications for the AgeRMBS they currently guarantee and the mortgadestry generally. Any action that affe
the credit quality of the guarantees provided bgrif@ Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae could matgredversely affect the value of the Age
RMBS and other residential mortgage-related asbatsve own or seek to acquire.

In addition, we rely on our Agency RMBS as collatdor our financings under the repurchase agre&sréat we have entered into. £
decline in their value, or perceived market unéetyaabout their value, would make it more diffittdr us to obtain financing on our Agency RM
on acceptable terms or at all, or to maintain caamgk with the terms of any financing transactions.

Difficult conditions in the mortgage and residentiand commercial real estate markets have caused amy cause us to experience losses
these conditions may persist for the foreseeableife.

Our business is materially affected by conditiamshie residential mortgage market, the resideatial commercial real estate market,
financial markets and the economy generally. Funtioee, because a significant portion of our currasgets and our targeted assets are
sensitive, we believe the risks associated withiouestments will be more acute during periods adir®mic slowdown or recession, especial
these periods are accompanied by declining reateesalues and defaults. Continued concerns abeutealth of the global economy generally
the residential and commercial mortgage marketsifsgaly, as well as inflation, energy costs, smign debt and geopolitical issues and
availability and cost of credit have contributedioreased volatility and diminished expectationsthe economy and markets going forward.
residential and commercial mortgage markets weveradly affected by changes in the lending landscaping the financial market crisis of 20
the severity of which was largely unanticipatedtfoy markets, and there is no assurance that thadests will return to prior levels or that they b
not worsen again.
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In addition, an economic slowdown, delayed recowarygeneral disruption in the mortgage markets mesylt in decreased demand
residential and commercial property, which woulkiely further compress homeownership rates and péditional pressure on home p
performance, while forcing commercial property ovento lower rents on properties with excess supple. believe there is a strong correla
between home price growth rates and mortgage leinqdiencies. Moreover, to the extent that a prypawner has fewer tenants or receives ¢
rents, such property owners will generate less flaghon their properties, which increases sigmifitly the likelihood that such property owners
default on their debt service obligations. If trerrbwers of our mortgage loans, or the loans ugiteylcertain of our investment securities, defi
we may incur losses on those loans or investmentrigies. Any sustained period of increased payndetinquencies, foreclosures or losses ¢
adversely affect both our net interest income and ability to acquire our targeted assets in theirei on favorable terms or at all. The fur
deterioration of the mortgage markets, the resideat commercial real estate markets, the findmi@rkets and the economy generally may res
a decline in the market value of our investmentgawse us to experience losses related to oursasgeich may adversely affect our result
operations, the availability and cost of credit auod ability to make distributions to our stockhailsl.

Interest rate mismatches between the inte-earning assets held in our investment portfolio atige borrowings used to fund the purchases
those assets may reduce our net income or resuli Inss during periods of changing interest rates.

Certain of the assets held in our investment pliottiave a fixed coupon rate, generally for a digant period, and in some cases, for
average maturity of the asset. At the same timeyepurchase agreements and certain other borreviymically provide for a payment reset pe
of 30 days or less. In addition, the average nitgtof our borrowings generally will be shorter ththe average maturity of the securities and |
currently in our portfolio and certain other tamgttassets in which we seek to invest. Historicallg, have used swap agreements as a mes
attempting to fix the cost of certain of our liatdls over a period of time; however, these agregmwill generally not be sufficient to match thest
of all our liabilities against all of our investntenin the event we experience unexpectedly higbwimprepayment rates on RMBS or other mortgage-
related assets, our strategy for matching our asgh our liabilities is more likely to be unsusséul which may result in reduced earnings or Is
and reduced cash available for distribution tosiackholders.

In addition, the RMBS and residential mortgage toare invest in may be comprised of, ARMs that afgject to periodic and lifetin
interest rate caps. Periodic interest rate caps fira amount an interest rate can increase dwaimyggiven period. Lifetime interest rate caps lithd
amount an interest rate can increase over theflifiee security or loan. Our borrowings typicalhg aot subject to similar restrictions. Accordingly
a period of rapidly increasing interest rates, itherest rates paid on our borrowings could inaeaghout limitation while interest rate caps cc
limit the interest rates on the Agency ARMs or desitial mortgage loans comprised of ARMs in ourtfptio. This problem is magnified f
securities backed by, or residential mortgage laansprised of, ARMs and hybrid ARMs that are ndlyfindexed. Further, certain securities bac
by, or residential mortgage loans comprised of, ARId hybrid ARMs may be subject to periodic payneaps that result in a portion of the inte
being deferred and added to the principal outstandis a result, the payments we receive on Ag&iMs backed by, or residential mortgage Ic
comprised of, ARMs and hybrid ARMs may be lowerrilihe related debt service costs. These factorl dmve a material adverse effect on
business, financial condition and results of openstand our ability to make distributions to otockholders.

Interest rate fluctuations will also cause varianitethe yield curve, which may reduce our net ineo The relationship between shtatr
and longer-term interest rates is often referredstthe “yield curve.” If short-term interest ratese disproportionately relative to longerm interes
rates (a flattening of the yield curve), our boriogvcosts may increase more rapidly than the isténreome earned on our interestrning assets. F
example, because the Agency RMBS in our investmperifolio typically bear interest based on longem rates while our borrowings typically b
interest based on shddgrm rates, a flattening of the yield curve woukhd to decrease our net income and the market vafiuthes
securities. Additionally, to the extent cash flofr@m investments that return scheduled and unsdeéduincipal are reinvested, the spread bet
the yields of the new investments and availabledwang rates may decline, which would likely deeaur net income. It is also possible that short
term interest rates may exceed longgm interest rates (a yield curve inversion), tmck event our borrowing costs may exceed our ésteincom
and we could incur significant operating losses.
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Mortgage loan modification programs and future leglative action may adversely affect the value afdahe returns on, our targeted assets.

The U.S. Government, through the U.S. Treasury, Rederal Housing Administration, or FHA, and thedéml Deposit Insuran
Corporation, or FDIC," commenced implementation of programs desigte provide homeowners with assistance in avoidiegidential c
commercial mortgage loan foreclosures, including Home Affordable Modification Program, or “HAMPWhich provides homeowners w
assistance in avoiding residential mortgage loaecfosures, the Hope for Homeowners Program, oH'lR4ogram,”which allows certain distress
borrowers to refinance their mortgages into FiH8dred loans in order to avoid residential moregéman foreclosures, and the Home Afford
Refinance Program, or “HARPhich allows borrowers who are current on their tgage payments to refinance and reduce their momnibltgag
payments at loan-tealue ratios up to 125% without new mortgage inscea The programs may involve, among other thittgs,modification ¢
mortgage loans to reduce the principal amount@idalns or the rate of interest payable on thesloanto extend the payment terms of the loans.

Loan modification and refinance programs mdyeasely affect the performance of Agency RMBS, -Agiency RMBS and resident
mortgage loans owned by us. Residential distressedgage loans and ndkgency RMBS are particularly sensitive to loan nficdtion ant
refinance programs, as a significant number of loadifications with respect to a given securitypool of loans, including those related to princ
forgiveness and coupon reduction, could negatiimlyact the realized yields and cash flows on smelestments. In addition, it is also likely t
loan modifications would result in increased prepapts on some RMBS and residential mortgage loans.

The U.S. Congress and various state and localldgies have considered in the past, and in theduhay adopt, legislation, which, ami
other provisions, would permit limited assigneaility for certain violations in the mortgage loamigination process, and would allow judi
modification of loan principal in the event of pensl bankruptcy. We cannot predict whether or irmtfiorm the U.S. Congress or the various
and local legislatures may enact legislation afifigcbur business or whether any such legislatiolh nequire us to change our practices or n
changes in our portfolio in the future. These clesndf required, could materially adversely affeat business, results of operations and fina
condition and our ability to make distributions dar stockholders, particularly if we make such demin response to new or amended |
regulations or ordinances in any state where weliszdq significant portion of our mortgage loans,ifosuch changes result in us being |
responsible for any violations in the mortgage loaigination process. These loan modification paogs, future legislative or regulatory actic
including possible amendments to the bankruptcysJavhich result in the modification of outstandiggidential mortgage loans, as well as cha
in the requirements necessary to qualify for refaiag mortgage loans with Fannie Mae, Freddie MaGianie Mae, may adversely affect the vi
of, and the returns on, our assets which, in tcooJd materially adversely affect our businessafficial condition and results of operations anc
ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Prepayment rates can change, adversely affecting plerformance of our asset

The frequency at which prepayments (including bethuntary prepayments by the borrowers and liquidest due to defaults a
foreclosures) occur on the residential mortgagedoase own and those that underlie our RMBS isdiffito predict and is affected by a variet
factors, including the prevailing level of intereates as well as economic, demographic, tax, kde@al, legislative and other factors. Gener
borrowers tend to prepay their mortgages when |dieganortgage rates fall below the interest raiagheir mortgage loans.

In general, “premium” securities (securities whosarket values exceed their principal or par amguares adversely affected by faster-than-
anticipated prepayments because the almoarket coupon that such premium securities carliybei earned for a shorter period of time. Geng)
“discount” securities (securities whose principal par amounts exceed their market values) are sdielaffected by slower-thamticipate
prepayments. Since many RMBS will be discount ggesrwhen interest rates are high, and will berpoen securities when interest rates are
these RMBS may be adversely affected by changgsepayments in any interest rate environment. Algfiowe estimate prepayment rate
determine the effective yield of our assets andiatidns, these estimates are not precise and pregpdyrates do not necessarily change
predictable manner as a function of interest ratenges

The adverse effects of prepayments may impact uarious ways. First, particular investments, sashOs, may experience outright los
in an environment of faster actual or anticipategppyments. Second, particular investments mayrepelform relative to any hedges that we
have constructed for these assets, resulting asstb us. In particular, prepayments (at par) timal the potential upside of many RMBS to tt
principal or par amounts, whereas their correspundiedges often have the potential for unlimitesksloFurthermore, to the extent that fe
prepayment rates are due to lower interest ratesptincipal payments received from prepaymentstesild to be reinvested in lowgrelding asset
which may reduce our income in the long run. Thenefif actual prepayment rates differ from anétgd prepayment rates, our business, fina
condition and results of operations and abilityriake distributions to our stockholders could beermially adversely affected.
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Some of the commercial real estate loans we maynate or invest in may allow the borrower to makepayments without incurring
prepayment penalty and some may include provisitiosving the borrower to extend the term of thenldeeyond the originally scheduled matui
Because the decision to prepay or extend a comahdoain is typically controlled by the borrower, wey not accurately anticipate the timing
these events, which could affect the earnings astl ilows we anticipate and could impact our gbititfinance these assets.

Increased levels of prepayments on the mortgagedartying structured mortgac-backed securities, particularly 10s, might decreaset interes
income or result in a net loss, which could matdhaadversely affect our business, financial conidih and results of operations and our ability
pay distributions to our stockholder

When we acquire structured mortgaupeked securities, such as 10s, we anticipatetigatinderlying mortgages will prepay at a proje
rate, generating an expected yield. When the prepay rates on the mortgages underlying these siesuare higher than expected, our returr
those securities may be materially adversely agfbdFor example, the value of our Agency 10s isegmely sensitive to prepayments because hc
of these securities do not have the right to recaivy principal payments on the underlying mortgagegency IOs currently comprise a signific
percentage of our interest earning assets. Asudtreaxreased levels of prepayments on our Agd@sywill negatively impact our net interest incc
and may result in a loss.

Certain actions by the U.S. Federal Reserve couldtenially adversely affect our business, financiebndition and results of operations and c
ability to pay dividends to our stockholders.

On September 21, 2011, the U.S. Federal Reserveedrral Reserve, announced "Operation Twist,"ogram by which it purchased,
the end of December 2012, more than $650 billiokd &. Treasury securities with remaining maturitiesween six and 30 years and sold an ¢
amount of U.S. Treasury securities with remainingturities of three years or less. Operation Twiglired in December 2012. In addition,
September 13, 2012, the Federal Reserve announited aound of quantitative easing, or "QE3," whiwas further expanded in December 2
QE3 was part of the Federal Reserve’s accommodatoreetary policy that was designed to keep I®rga interest rates at low levels. QE3 invol
the purchase by the Federal Reserve of an additit billion of Agency RMBS and an additional $48llion of longerterm U.S. Treasu
securities per month until key economic indicatitew sufficient signs of improvement.

In December 2013, given indications that the Uc®nemy had improved sufficiently, the Federal Resennounced that it would red
the pace of its purchases of longern U.S. Treasury securities to $40 billion pemthcand its purchases of Agency RMBS to $35 bilji@n montl
and that it will likely reduce the pace of assetchpases in further measured steps to be announdetliee meetings. The Federal Reserve mainti
it's announced pace for reducing purchases und8raH according, in October 2014, QE3 ended. ShibeldJ).S. economy begin to indicate s
of deterioration, the Federal Reserve could detidesstart an asset purchase program or institilier eneasures designed to reduce interest
These measures could lead to a flattening in thkl yiurve, and increased prepayment rates (regutim lower longterm interest rates, includi
mortgage rates), and a narrowing of our net interesrgin. The modification or termination by thedeeal Reserve of any of its programs ct
materially adversely affect our business, financ@idition and results of operations, and our ghiti make distributions to our stockholders.

Our investments include high yield or subordinateeshd lower rated securities that have greater risifsloss than other investments, which co
adversely affect our business, financial conditiamd cash available for dividends.

We own and seek to acquire higher yielding or sdimated or lower rated securities, including subwatéd tranches of CMBS or non-
Agency RMBS, which involve a higher degree of tisn other investments. Numerous factors may affexmpanys ability to repay its high yie
or subordinated securities, including the failurerteet its business plan, a downturn in its ingustrnegative economic conditions. These secu
may not be secured by mortgages or liens on ag3etgight to payment and security interest witbpext to such securities may be subordinat
the payment rights and security interests of timtosdender. Therefore, we may be limited in ouitigbto enforce our rights to collect these loars
to recover any of the loan balance through a foseck of collateral.

Our efforts to manage credit risks may fail.

Despite our efforts to manage credit risk, theeeraany aspects of credit risk that we cannot coror credit policies and procedures r
not be successful in limiting future delinquencidsfaults, and losses, or they may not be costtéfee Our underwriting reviews may not
effective. Loan servicing companies may not coogeweith our loss mitigation efforts or those efforhay be ineffective. Service provider:
securitizations, such as trustees, loans servibersj insurance providers, and custodians, mayadbrm in a manner that promotes our inter
Delay of foreclosures could delay resolution ardeéase ultimate loss severities, as a result.
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The value of the properties collateralizing or uhdeg the loans or securities we own may declifiee frequency of default and the |
severity on loans upon default may be greater tam@nticipate. Interest-only loans, negative arpatibn loans, adjustablate loans, larger balar
loans, reduced documentation loans, subprime l@dis Joans, second lien loans, loans in certain lonatiand loans or investments that are par
collateralized by nomeal estate assets may have increased risks aedtgef loss. If property securing or underlyirmahs become real estate ow
as a result of foreclosure, we bear the risk of beihg able to sell the property and recovering iouestment and of being exposed to the
attendant to the ownership of real property.

If we underestimate the lo-adjusted yields of our investments in credit sdiva assets, we may experience losses.

We and our managers expect to value our invessriantnany credit sensitive assets, including, haitlimited to multifamily CMBS,
based on losadjusted yields, taking into account estimatedritosses on the mortgage loans that we are imgesti or that are included ir
particular securitization, and the estimated immpddhese losses on expected future cash flows.@srestimates may not prove accurate, as i
results may vary from our estimates. In the evkat e underestimate the losses relative to thee pvie pay for a particular investment, we
experience material losses with respect to sucdsimvent.

We invest in CMBS that are subordinate to more sarsecurities issued by the applicable securitipatiwhich entails certain risks.

We currently own and intend to continue to purchasecipal only multi-family CMBS that representtffirst loss tranche of a mulamily
mortgage loan securitization. These first lossgypial only securities are subject to the first rigkoss if any losses are realized on the undeg
mortgage loans in the securitization. We also owd imtend to continue to purchase interest onlustes issued by multiamily mortgage loa
securitizations. However, these interest only CMiBdically only receive payments of interest to #wdent that there are funds available in
securitization to make the payments. CMBS genestijtle the holders thereof to receive paymends tlepend primarily on the cash flow frot
specified pool of commercial or mufamily mortgage loans. Consequently, the CMBS, angarticular, first loss principal only CMBS, wille
adversely affected by payment defaults, delinquenaind losses on the underlying mortgage loanbk,@aghich could have a material adverse e
on our cash flows and results of operations.

Residential mortgage loans, including subprime résntial mortgage loans and ne¢-performing , sub-performing and re-performingesidentia
mortgage loans, are subject to increased risks.

We acquire and manage residential whole mortgagesloincluding loans sourced from distressed msrkeésidential mortgage loa
including non-performing, sub-performing andpeforming mortgage loans as well as subprime nageggoans, are subject to increased risl
loss. Unlike Agency RMBS, the residential mortgdgans we invest in generally are not guaranteedhieyfederal government or any G
Additionally, by directly acquiring residential mgage loans, we do not receive the structural trexiancements that benefit senior tranch
RMBS. A residential whole mortgage loan is direaposed to losses resulting from default. Theegftdre value of the underlying property,
creditworthiness and financial position of the loorer and the priority and enforceability of thenliwill significantly impact the value of su
mortgage. In the event of a foreclosure, we mayrassdirect ownership of the underlying real estate liquidation proceeds upon sale of such
estate may not be sufficient to recover our cosishia the loan, and any costs or delays involvetthé foreclosure or liquidation process may inse
losses.

Residential whole mortgage loans are also subgecspecial hazard" risk (property damage causeddmards, such as earthquake
environmental hazards, not covered by standardeptpjnsurance policies), and to bankruptcy rigd(rction in a borrower's mortgage debt |
bankruptcy court). In addition, claims may be assdsagainst us on account of our position as agaget holder or property owner, includ
assignee liability, responsibility for tax paymenénvironmental hazards and other liabilities. &éme cases, these liabilities may be "recc
liabilities" or may otherwise lead to losses ines< of the purchase price of the related mortgageoperty.

Our targeted assets currently include distresssitlartial loans that we acquire from third partiggically at a discount. Distress
residential loans sell at a discount because they constitute riskier investments than those sglinor above par value. The distressed resid
loans we invest in may be distressed because avwarimay have defaulted thereupon, because theveris or has been in the past delinquel
paying all or a portion of hisbligation under the loan or because the loan nithgravise contain credit quality that is considetede poor. Th
likelihood of full recovery of a distressed loarprincipal and contractual interest is less thnat tor loans trading at or above par value. Altffowe
typically expect to receive less than the princi@@alount or face value of the distressed residelu#als that we purchase, the return that we ir
receive thereupon may be less than our investmesudh loans due to the failure of the loans téoper or reperform. An economic downturn wo
exacerbate the risks of the recovery of the full@af the loan or the cost of our investment threre
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If we sell or transfer any whole mortgage loans aathird party, including a securitization entity, @may be required to repurchase such loan:
indemnify such third party if we breach represeni@ats and warranties.

When we sell or transfer any whole mortgage loana third party, including a securitization entitye generally are required to mi
customary representations and warranties about kats to the third party. Our residential mortgdgen sale agreements and terms of
securitizations into which we sell or transfer Isamill generally require us to repurchase or stiligtiloans in the event we breach a representat
warranty given to the loan purchaser or securitmatin addition, we may be required to repurcHasas as a result of borrower fraud or in the €
of early payment default on a mortgage loan. Theedies available to a purchaser of mortgage loengenerally broader than those available
against an originating broker or correspondent.urgpased loans are typically worth only a fractainthe original price. Significant repurchi
activity could materially adversely affect our buesss, financial condition and results of operatiansi our ability to pay dividends to ¢
shareholders.

The commercial mortgage loans we may originate @qaire and the mortgage loans underlying our CMBBviestments are subject to the abi
of the commercial property owner to generate netdéme from operating the property as well as theks®f delinquency and foreclosure.

Commercial mortgage loans are secured by nfaily or commercial property and are subject gksiof delinquency and foreclosure,
risk of loss that may be greater than similar rigksociated with loans made on the security oflesifagnily residential property. The ability o
borrower to repay a loan secured by an inc@muetucing property typically is dependent primarilyon the successful operation of such proj
rather than upon the existence of independent ieconassets of the borrower. If the net operatigme of the property is reduced, the borro\
ability to repay the loan may be impaired. Net agiag income of an income-producing property caadbeersely affected by, among other things,

e tenant mix;

e success of tenant businesses;

e property management decisions;

e property location, condition, and design;

e new construction of competitive properties;

e changes in laws that increase operating expandesit rents that may be charged;

e changes in national, regional or local economicditmns and/or specific industry segments, inclgdthe credit and securitizati
markets;

e declines in regional or local real estate values;

e declines in regional or local rental or occuparatgs;

e increases in interest rates, real estate tag,ratel other operating expenses;
e costs of remediation and liabilities associatéth wnvironmental conditions;
e the potential for uninsured or underinsured priyplesses;

e changes in governmental laws and regulations, dmetufiscal policies, zoning ordinances and enwinental legislation and the rela
costs of compliance; and

e acts of God, terrorist attacks, social unresd, @wil disturbances.

In the event of any default under a mortgage load Hirectly by us, we will bear a risk of lossth® extent of any deficiency between
value of the collateral and the outstanding priacgnd accrued interest of the mortgage loan, agdsach losses could have a material adverse
on our cash flow from operations and our abilityrtake distributions to our stockholders.

In the event of the bankruptcy of a mortgage loarrdwer, the mortgage loan to such borrower willdeemed to be secured only to
extent of the value of the underlying collateratta time of bankruptcy (as determined by the baptay court), and the lien securing the mort
loan will be subject to the avoidance powers ofliaakruptcy trustee or debtorqiossession to the extent the lien is unenforceadudier state lay
Foreclosure of a mortgage loan can be an expeasigdengthy process, which could have a substamtightive effect on our anticipated returr
the foreclosed mortgage loan.
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The preferred equity investments or mezzanine lamsets that we may acquire or originate will invelgreater risks of loss than senior loe
secured by incomr-producing properties.

We may acquire or originate mezzanine loans, whagle the form of subordinated loans secured byrgkoaortgages on the underly
property or loans secured by a pledge of the oviaeiaterests of either the entity owning the pmop®r a pledge of the ownership interests o
entity that owns the interest in the entity ownthg property. We also may make preferred equitgstments in the entity that owns the prop
These types of assets involve a higher degreesbftihian long-term senior mortgage lending secuseshdtomeproducing real property, because
loan may become unsecured or our equity investrmeyt be effectively extinguished as a result of ¢sure by the senior lender. In addit
mezzanine loans and preferred equity investmeet®fen used to achieve a very high leverage @elaommercial projects, resulting in less ec
in the property and increasing the risk of losgficipal or investment. If a borrower defaults@mm mezzanine loan or debt senior to our loann
the event of a borrower bankruptcy, our mezzangan lor preferred equity investment will be satifinly after the senior debt, in case |
mezzanine loan, or all senior and subordinated, dielziase of a preferred equity investment, is paifilill. Where senior debt exists, the present
intercreditor arrangements may limit our abilityaamend our loan documents, assign our loans, apcepayments, exercise our remedies or cc
decisions made in bankruptcy proceedings relatinarrowers or preferred equity investors. As alltesve may not recover some or all of
investment, which could result in significant losse

We have acquired and may acquire in the future négency RMBS collateralized by subprime and Alt A mgage loans, which are n
guaranteed by any governme-sponsored entity or agency and are subject to @aged risks.

We have acquired and may acquire in the future Agency RMBS, which are backed by residential reshte property but, in contrasi
Agency RMBS, their principal and interest are noaignteed by a GSE such as Fannie Mae or Freddie Ma may acquire noAgency RMB¢
backed by collateral pools of mortgage loans traatehbeen originated using underwriting standards #ne less restrictive than those use
underwriting “prime mortgage loans” and “Alt A mgage loans.These lower standards, which include mortgage loaade to borrowers havi
imperfect or impaired credit histories, mortgagan®s where the amount of the loan at originatioB(d% or more of the value of the mortg
property, mortgage loans made to borrowers with ¢oedit scores, mortgage loans made to borrowers lvelve other debt that represents a
portion of their income and mortgage loans madeotoowers whose income is not required to be désdoor verified, subject us to increased ris
loss on our investment.

To the extent that due diligence is conducted ongrtial assets, such due diligence may not revdhbhthe risks associated with such assets
may not reveal other weaknesses in such assetsslwbould lead to losses.

Before acquiring certain assets, such as wholegage loans, CMBS or other mortgagdated or other fixed income assets, we o
external manager responsible for the acquisitiath management of such asset may decide to condtlwtr(eirectly or using third parties) cert
due diligence. Such due diligence may include r{ipasessment of the strengths and weaknesses a¢db# credit profile, (i) a review of all .
merely a subset of the documentation related tcatiset, or (iii) other reviews that we or the exémanager may deem appropriate to con
There can be no assurance that we or the exteraaager will conduct any specific level of due dilige, or that, among other things, the
diligence process will uncover all relevant factshat any purchase will be successful, which caekllt in losses on these assets, which, in
could adversely affect our business, financial éiordand results of operations and our abilityrtake distributions to our stockholders.

Our real estate assets are subject to risks patticto real property.

We own real estate and assets secured by rea emtat may in the future acquire more real esgdtfeer through direct acquisitions or uj
a default of mortgage loans. Real estate asse®ibject to various risks, including:

e acts of God, including earthquakes, floods ahemonhatural disasters, which may result in unindlosses;
e  acts of war or terrorism, including the conse@asof terrorist attacks, such as those that oeduwn September 11, 2001;
e adverse changes in national and local econonuiararket conditions; and

e changes in governmental laws and regulations,|figalicies and zoning ordinances and the relatesiscof compliance with laws a
regulations, fiscal policies and ordinances;

The occurrence of any of the foregoing or similaergs may reduce our return from an affected ptgper asset and, consequer
materially adversely affect our business, financ@idition and results of operations and our abititmake distributions to our stockholders.
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The lack of liquidity in certain of our assets magdversely affect our business.

A portion of the securities or loans we own or asgmay be subject to legal, contractual and otestrictions on resale or will otherwise
less liquid than publicly-traded securities. Foample, a portion of our mulfamily CMBS is held by a securitization trust andymot be sold «
transferred until the note issued by the secutitimatrust matures or is repaid. Similarly, anynsger of our investment in the equity and ¢
securities of an entity externally managed by RBaerc requires prior consent of the Board and aeppaeferred equity interests in that entity.
illiquidity of certain of our assets may make iffidult for us to sell such assets if the need esitke arises. In addition, if we are required tuililate
all or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we magalize significantly less than the value at whiah lwave previously recorded our assets. As a r
our ability to vary our portfolio in response toaciyes in economic and other conditions may beivelgtlimited, which could adversely affect «
results of operations and financial condition.

Our Level 2 portfolio investments are recorded airfvalue based on market quotations from pricingrsices and broker/dealers. Our Leve
investments are recorded at fair value utilizingtérnal valuation models. The value of our commoroek could be adversely affected if ¢
determinations regarding the fair value of theseviestments were materially higher than the valueattive ultimately realize upon their disposal.

All of our current portfolio investments are, andm® of our future portfolio investments will be, the form of securities or otr
investments that are not publicly traded. The Value of securities and other investments thahategublicly traded may not be readily determine
We currently value and will continue to value th@seestments on a quartethasis at fair value as determined by our managebss#gd on mark
quotations from pricing services and brokers/dsaded/or internal valuation models. Because suoltatjons and valuations are inherently uncer
they may fluctuate over short periods of time arel lzased on estimates, therefore our determinatbfair value may differ materially from t
values that would have been used if a public mdidethese securities existed. The value of ourmom stock could be adversely affected if
determinations regarding the fair value of thesegtments were materially higher than the valuasule ultimately realize upon their disposal.

Our adoption of fair value option accounting coulcesult in income statement volatility, which in tar could cause significant market price a
trading volume fluctuations for our securities.

We have determined that certain securitizationtgrtfsat issued certain of our muliéimily CMBS or securitized debt were variable iet
entities, or VIEs, of which we are the primary biésiary, and elected the fair value option on tlssats and liabilities held within those securitiza
trusts. As a result, we are required to consolitt®eunderlying multfamily loan or securities, as applicable, relatebitdinterest income and intel
expense of those securitization trusts in our fimgrstatements, although our actual investmenthése securitization trusts generally repres
small percentage of the total assets of the tr&ster to the year ended December 31, 2012, wergslly accounted for the multamily CMBS ir
our investment portfolio through accumulated otbemprehensive income, pursuant to which unrealg&ids and losses on those mitinily
CMBS were reflected as an adjustment to stockhsldsyuity. However, the fair value option requiresttblaanges in valuations in the assets
liabilities of those VIEs of which we are the primdeneficiary, such as the Consolidate®&ries, be reflected through our earnings. As voglieg
additional multi-family CMBS assets in the fututat are similar in structure and form to the Coidsdéd K-Seriesassets or securitize investm
securities owned by us, we may be required to dimae the assets and liabilities of the issuing@euritization trust and would expect to elec
fair value option for those assets. Because of this earnings may experience greater volatilitthiem future as a decline in the fair value of theet
of any VIE that we consolidate in our financialtstaents could reduce both our earnings and stodkhsll equity, which in turn, could cal
significant market price and trading volume fludtaas for our securities.

Failure to procure adequate funding and capital wlobiadversely affect our results and may, in turnegatively affect the value of our common
stock and our ability to distribute cash to our stdholders.

We depend upon the availability of adequate funding capital for our operations. To maintain oatust as a REIT, we are requiret
distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable incoam@ually, determined without regard to the deducf@ dividends paid and excluding net caj
gain, to our stockholders and therefore are na tbtetain our earnings for new investments. Wengchassure you that any, or sufficient, fundin
capital will be available to us in the future omnts that are acceptable to us. In the event thatam@ot obtain sufficient funding and capita
acceptable terms, there may be a negative impattteomalue of our common stock and our ability ke distributions to our stockholders, and
may lose part or all of your investment.
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Competition may prevent us from acquiring assets favorable terms or at all, which could have a met adverse effect on our busine:
financial condition and results of operation:

We operate in a highly competitive market for irtmesnt opportunities. Our net income largely depesrdsur ability to acquire our targe
assets at favorable spreads over our borrowing.clssacquiring our targeted assets, we competeatfter REITS, investment banking firms, sav
and loan associations, banks, insurance companigsal funds, other lenders and other entitiesphathase mortgagelated assets, many of wh
have greater financial resources than us. Additignanany of our potential competitors are not sabjto REIT tax compliance or requirec
maintain an exemption from the Investment Compaaly As a result, we may not in the future be abladquire sufficient quantities of our targe
assets at favorable spreads over our borrowings,cegtich could have a material adverse effect onbusiness, financial condition, results
operations and ability to make distributions to stackholders.

Lack of diversification in the number of assets wequire would increase our dependence on relativigly individual assets

Our management objectives and policies do not Halimit on the size or the amount of capital usegupport, or the exposure to (by
other measure), any individual asset or any grdgssets with similar characteristics or risksatitition, because we are a relatively small com
we may be unable to sufficiently deploy capitabi@t number of assets or asset groups. As a resulfportfolio may be concentrated in a st
number of assets or may be otherwise undiversifienieasing the risk of loss and the magnitudeadémptial losses to us and our stockholders i
or more of these assets perform poorly.

We may change our investment strategy, hedging teggt and asset allocation and operational and maeatgnt policies without stockhold
consent, which may result in the purchase of riskiassets and materially adversely affect our busigefinancial condition and results
operations and our ability to make distributions tr stockholders.

We may change our investment strategy, hedgin¢eglyeand asset allocation and operational and nesment policies at any time withc
the consent of our stockholders, which could reisutiur purchasing assets or entering into hedgengsactions that are different from, and pos:
riskier than, the assets and hedging transactiessritbed in this report. A change in our investnetrategy or hedging strategy may increase
exposure to real estate values, interest ratepapneent rates, credit risk and other factors. Angleain our asset allocation could result ir
purchasing assets in classes different from theseribed in this report. Our Board of Directorsedetines our operational policies and may ame
revise our policies, including those with respextour acquisitions, growth, operations, indebtednespitalization and distributions or appr
transactions that deviate from these policies witteovote of, or notice to, our stockholders. Iditidn, certain of our external managers have |
latitude in making investment and hedging decisionsour behalf. Changes in our investment strateggging strategy and asset allocation
operational and management policies could matgraiersely affect our business, financial condi@md results of operations and ability to n
distributions to our stockholders.

Our senior management and our external managerslwitilize analytical models and data in connectiomith the valuation of certain of oL
assets, and any incorrect, misleading or incompletBrmation used in connection therewith would sjdet us to potential risks.

Given the complexity of certain of our target assstich as Agency 10s and mudlmily CMBS, our senior management team anc
external managers must rely heavily on analyticatlels and information and data supplied by thirdipsa Models and data will be used to vi
potential target assets, potential credit risksraserves and also in connection with hedging oquiaitions. In the event models and data provee
incorrect, misleading or incomplete, any decisiorale in reliance thereon expose us to potentid.ris

In connection with our operating and investment agty, we rely on third parties, including our exteal managers, to perform certain servic
comply with applicable laws and regulations, andrgaout contractual covenants and terms, the faikiof which by any of these third parties
adversely impact our business and financial results

In connection with our business of acquiring antdimgy loans, engaging in securitization transacjcend investing in thirgarty issue
securities, we rely on third party service provigencluding our external managers, to performaierservices, comply with applicable laws
regulations, and carry out contractual covenantstarms. As a result, we are subject to the risis®@ated with a third party’failure to perforn
including failure to perform due to reasons suclrasd, negligence, errors, miscalculations, oolvisncy.
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We may be affected by deficiencies in foreclosuragbices of third parties, as well as related dedag the foreclosure process.

One of the biggest risks overhanging the RMBS ntahles been uncertainty around the timing and sbidft servicers to foreclose
defaulted loans, so that they can liquidate theedgihg properties and ultimately pass the liquimtatproceeds through to RMBS holders. Giver
magnitude of the housing crisis, and in responstheowellpublicized failures of many servicers to follow pev foreclosure procedures (sucl
involving "robo-signing"), mortgage servicers amny held to much higher foreclosuedated documentation standards than they prewiouste
However, because many mortgages have been traadsfand assigned multiple times (and by means gfingrassignment procedures) througt
the origination, warehouse, and securitization @sses, mortgage servicers are generally having mane difficulty furnishing the requis
documentation to initiate or complete foreclosuidss leads to stalled or suspended foreclosureeggdings, and ultimately additional foreclosure-
related costs. Foreclosuretated delays also tend to increase ultimate lossseverities as a result of property deterionatamplified legal and oth
costs, and other factors. Many factors delayingdlmsure, such as borrower lawsuits and judiciaklog and scrutiny, are outside of a servit
control and have delayed, and will likely contintee delay, foreclosure processing in both judicitdtess (where foreclosures require c
involvement) and nojudicial states. The extension of foreclosure timed also increases the inventory backlog of dised homes on the mar
and creates greater uncertainty about housing riiee concerns about deficiencies in foreclosuaetiges of servicers and related delays ir
foreclosure process may impact our loss assumpéindsaffect the values of, and our returns on,imegstments in RMBS and residential mortc
loans.

We could be subject to liability for potential vations of predatory lending laws, which could maialy adversely affect our business, financ
condition and results of operations, and our abjlito pay dividends to our stockholders.

Residential mortgage loan originators and serviegees required to comply with various federal, statel local laws and regulatio
including antipredatory lending laws and laws and regulationsosing certain restrictions on requirements on ltigét loans. Failure of residen
mortgage loan originators or servicers to complihwhese laws, to the extent any of their residgémtiortgage loans become part of our invest
portfolio, could subject us, as an assignee orl@ger of the related residential mortgage loansnometary penalties and could result in
borrowers rescinding the affected residential nagtgloans. Lawsuits have been brought in varioatestmaking claims against assignee
purchasers of high cost loans for violations ofestaw. Named defendants in these cases have ettlodmerous participants within the secon
mortgage market. If the loans are found to haven lg@ginated in violation of predatory or abusieading laws, we could incur losses that wi
materially adversely affect our business.

We are highly dependent on information systems asybtem failures could significantly disrupt our bumess, which may, in turn, material
adversely affect our business, financial conditi@md results of operations and our ability to makistlibutions to our stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatmkinformation systems. Any failure or interruptiof our systems could cause de
or other problems in our securities trading adggitwhich could materially adversely affect ouribess, financial condition and results of opera
and our ability to make distributions to our stockders.

The occurrence of cybeincidents, or a deficiency in our cybersecurity or those of any of our third party service providgrcould negative
impact our business by causing a disruption to ooperations, a compromise or corruption of our codéntial information or damage to ot
business relationships or reputation, all of whidould negatively impact our business and resultpkrations.

A cyber incident is considered to be any adversnethat threatens the confidentiality, integray availability of our information resourc
or the information resources of our third partyvgsr providers. More specifically, a cybeecident is an intentional attack or an unintergioaven
that can include gaining unauthorized access ttesys to disrupt operations, corrupt data, or stealffidential information. As our reliance
technology has increased, so have the risks pasedrtsystems, both internal and those we haveoordsd. The primary risks that could dire
result from the occurrence of a cybecident include operational interruption and ptévdata exposure. We have implemented processesdure
and controls to help mitigate these risks, butdhmmeasures, as well as our increased awarenessskfcd a cybeiincident, do not guarantee that
business and results of operations will not be tieglgt impacted by such an incident.

Actions of the U.S. Government to stabilize or refothe financial markets may not achieve the integdieffect and may adversely affect ¢
business.

In response to the financial issues affecting thaking system and financial markets and going aondereats to commercial ban
investment banks and other financial institutiahg, Emergency Economic Stabilization Act (or EESA&s enacted by the U.S. Congress in Z
Although this action and others implemented in oese to the financial crisis appear to have staddllithe banking system and financial mar
there can be no assurance that the EESA or any dtBe Government actions will have a lotagm beneficial impact on the financial markets.tie
extent such actions do not function as intended theslonger term, our business may not ultimateteive the anticipated positive impact from
legislation and such result may have broad advess&et implications.
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In July 2010, the U.S. Congress enacted the Doddkwall Street Reform and Consumer Protection éicthe DoddFrank Act, in part t
impose significant investment restrictions and @piequirements on banking entities and other mirgdions that are significant to U.S. finan
markets. For instance, the Dodd-Frank Act seekefrm the asset-backed securitization market (tfiolg the mortgagbacked securities mark
by requiring the retention of a portion of the dteitk inherent in the pool of securitized assts by imposing additional registration and disate
requirements. Certain of the new requirements astrictions exempt Agency RMBS, other governmestiésl or guaranteed securities, or ¢
securities. Nonetheless, the Doeihnk Act also imposes significant regulatory liebins on the origination and securitization obidentia
mortgage loans. The Doderank Act also created a new regulator, the Consutimancial Protection Bureau (or the CFPB), whoslersees many
the core laws which regulate the mortgage industcluding among others the Real Estate SettleRemtedures Act and the Truth in Lending .
While the full impact of the Dodd-Frank Act and ttade of the CFPB cannot be assessed until allémphting regulations are released, the Dodd:
Frank Act's extensive requirements may have afgignt effect on the financial markets, and maetffthe availability or terms of financing fr
our lender counterparties and the availability enms of mortgagéacked securities, both of which may have an aéveffect on our financi
condition and results of operations.

In addition, the U.S. Government, Federal Resdov8, Treasury, the SEC and other governmental egdlatory bodies have taken or
considering taking other actions that impact thetgage industry and financial markets. We cannetjgt whether or when such actions may o
or what effect, if any such actions could have onlsiness, results of operations and financiatltmn.

The downgrade of the U.S.'s and certain Europearuotries' or certain European financial institutionscredit ratings, any future downgrades
the U.S.'s and certain European countries' or cemaEuropean financial institutions’credit ratings and the failure to resolve issuedated to U.S
fiscal and debt policies may materially adverseffeat our business, liquidity, financial conditiomand results of operations

U.S. debt ceiling and budget deficit concerns inerg years have increased the possibility of credihg downgrades or econor
slowdowns in the U.S. Although U.S. lawmakers pddsegislation to raise the federal debt ceiling2®ll, Standard & Poor's Ratings Serv
lowered its long-term sovereign credit rating oa thS. from “AAA” to “AA+” in August 2011. The impact of any further downgsatethe U.<
Government's sovereign credit rating or its pemgigreditworthiness could adversely affect the W& global financial markets and econc
conditions. If the U.S.'s credit rating were dowadgd it would likely impact the credit risk assoedth with Agency RMBS in our portfolio.
downgrade of the U.S. Government's credit rating arefault by the U.S. Government to satisfy itbtdabligations likely would create broa
financial turmoil and uncertainty, which would wkitpeavily on the global banking system and theseldpments could cause interest rates
borrowing costs to rise and a reduction in the lakdity of credit, which may negatively impact tvalue of the assets in our portfolio, our
income, liquidity and our ability to finance oursass on favorable terms.

In addition, as economic uncertainty in Europe tar@s, the financial condition and stability of mdEuropean financial institutions reme
at risk. Some of these financial institutions hd¥&. banking subsidiaries that serve as financindgiadging counterparties to us. Any ful
downgrade of the credit ratings of these Europ@aantial institutions would result in greater caenplarty default risk and could materially adver
affect our business, liquidity, access to finanang results of operations
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Risk Related to Our Debt Financing and Hedging

Our access to financing sources, which may not heaidable on favorable terms, or at all, may be lied, and this may materially adversely aff
our business, financial condition and results of emtions and our ability to make distributions taiostockholders.

We depend upon the availability of adequate camtad financing sources on acceptable terms to foundoperations. However,
previously discussed, the capital and credit marketve experienced unprecedented levels of vtjatind disruption in recent years that
generally caused a reduction of available credint@ued volatility or disruption in the credit nkats or a downturn in the global economy c
materially adversely affect one or more of our knsdand could cause one or more of our lenderstanwilling or unable to provide us w
financing, or to increase the costs of that finagcior to become insolvent. Although we finance savh our assets with longégrm structure
financing having terms of three years or more, &g heavily on access to shaéetrm borrowings, primarily in the form of repurckasgreements,
finance our investments. We are currently partsefmurchase agreements of a short duration and tlaerée no assurance that we will be able tt
over or re-set these borrowings on favorable teifret, all. In the event we are unable to roll oeerreset our repurchase agreement borrowin
may be more difficult for us to obtain debt finamgion favorable terms or at all. In addition, iuéatory capital requirements imposed on our les
change, they may be required to limit, or incredmecost of, financing they provide to us. In gahethis could potentially increase our financ
costs and reduce our liquidity or require us tb asdets at an inopportune time or price. Underectirmarket conditions, securitizations are gemg
unavailable or limited, which has also limited lmevings under warehouse facilities and other cridilities that are intended to be refinancet
such securitizations. Consequently, depending otkeh@onditions at the relevant time, we may haveety on additional equity issuances to r
our capital and financing needs, which may be ididuto our stockholders, or we may have to relyess efficient forms of debt financing that reg
our operations or consume a larger portion of aghcflow from operations, thereby reducing fundailable for our operations, future busir
opportunities, cash distributions to our stockhoddend other purposes. We cannot assure you thatiliMeave access to such equity or debt ca
on favorable terms (including, without limitatioctgst and term) at the desired times, or at allctvimay cause us to curtail our investment acti
and/or dispose of assets, which could materiallyjeezkly affect our business, financial conditiom aesults of operations and our ability to r
distributions to our stockholders.

We may incur increased borrowing costs related épurchase agreements and that would adversely affer profitability.

Currently, a significant portion of our borrowingee collateralized borrowings in the form of refhase agreements. If the interest rate
these agreements increase at a rate higher thamctease in rates payable on our investmentspiditability would be adversely affected.

Our borrowing costs under repurchase agreemenerggncorrespond to short-term interest rates achIBOR or a shorterm Treasur
index, plus or minus a margin. The margins ondhesgrowings over or under shaerm interest rates may vary depending upon a nuwftfactors
including, without limitation:

° the movement of interest rates;

e the availability of financing in the market; and

e the value and liquidity of our mortgage-relassgets.
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During 2008 and 2009, many repurchase agreemeti¢demequired higher levels of collateral than thagd required in the past to sup|
repurchase agreements collateralized by RMBS. Afjhothese collateral requirements have been rediacedore appropriate levels, we car
assure you that they will not again experienceaanditic increase. If the interest rates, lendinggmaror collateral requirements under our shemntr
borrowings, including repurchase agreements, isesear if lenders impose other onerous terms taiobthis type of financing, our results
operations will be adversely affected.

The repurchase agreements that we use to finance mwestments may require us to provide additioradllateral, which could reduce ot
liquidity and harm our financial condition.

We intend to use repurchase agreements to finartaic of our investments, primarily RMBS. If thearket value of the loans or securi
pledged or sold by us to a funding source declinealue, we may be required by the lending instituto provide additional collateral or pay dow
portion of the funds advanced, but we may not htheefunds available to do so. Posting additiondlateral to support our repurchase agreen
will reduce our liquidity and limit our ability teeverage our assets. In the event we do not hdfieient liquidity to meet such requirements, lemg
institutions can accelerate our indebtedness, aser@ur borrowing rates, liquidate our collatetainapportune times and terminate our abilit
borrow. This could result in a rapid deterioratimhour financial condition and possibly requiretaosfile for protection under the U.S. Bankrug
Code.

We intend to leverage our equity, which will exabate any losses we incur on our current and futurerestments and may reduce cash availe
for distribution to our stockholders

We intend to leverage our equity through borrowjrggmnerally through the use of repurchase agreenaent other shoterm borrowings ¢
through longeterm structured debt, such as CDOs and other fofrsecuritized debt. We may, in the future, utilat@er forms of borrowing. T
amount of leverage we incur varies depending orafiset type, our ability to obtain borrowings, tlest of the debt and our lendeestimates of tt
value of our portfolics cash flow. The return on our investments and easliable for distribution to our stockholders nizgy/ reduced to the ext
that changes in market conditions cause the costiofinancing to increase relative to the incoimat tan be derived from the assets we hold il
investment portfolio. Further, the leverage on eguity may exacerbate any losses we incur.

Our debt service payments will reduce the net irc@wailable for distribution to our stockholderse \Wiay not be able to meet our ¢
service obligations and, to the extent that we ognme risk the loss of some or all of our assetsale to satisfy our debt obligations. A decraa
the value of the assets may lead to margin caltdeuour repurchase agreements which we will haveat@sfy. Significant decreases in a
valuation, could lead to increased margin callsl ae may not have the funds available to satisfy smch margin calls. Although we hi
established target leverage amounts for many of assets, there is no established limitation, othan may be required by our financ
arrangements, on our leverage ratio or on the ggtgeamount of our borrowings.

If we are unable to leverage our equity to the exteve currently anticipate, the returns on certaof our assets could be diminished, which n
limit or eliminate our ability to make distributioa to our stockholders.

If we are limited in our ability to leverage oursass to the extent we currently anticipate, thernst on these assets may be harmed. /
element of our strategy is our use of leveragatoeiase the size of our portfolio in an attempnibance our returns. Our repurchase agreemel
not currently committed facilities, meaning that tounterparties to these agreements may at amyctimose to restrict or eliminate our future ac
to the facilities and we have no other committeztltrfacilities through which we may leverage oquigy. If we are unable to leverage our equit
the extent we currently anticipate, the returnonportfolio could be diminished, which may linait eliminate our ability to make distributions
our stockholders.
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We directly or indirectly utilize norrecourse securitizations and recourse structureddicings and such structures expose us to risksttbaulc
result in losses to us.

We sometimes utilize norecourse securitizations of our investments in gageé loans or CMBS to the extent consistent witt
maintenance of our REIT qualification and exempfimm the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amdniteorder to generate cash for func
new investments and/or to leverage existing assatmost instances, this involves us transfertoans or CMBS owned by us to a SPE in exch
for cash and typically the ownership certificateesidual interest in the entity. In some salegeations, we also retain a subordinated intenetbte
loans or CMBS sold, such as anBte. The securitization or other structured firiag of our portfolio investments might magnify oexposure t
losses on those portfolio investments becauseutherdinated interest we retain in the loans or CMBB would be subordinate to the senior intt
in the loans or CMBS sold, and we would, therefatesorb all of the losses sustained with respeet ltman sold before the owners of the se
interest experience any losses. Under the terrntsest financings, which generally have terms wdetio ten years, we may agree to receive nc
flows from the assets transferred to the SPE thmildebt issued by the special purpose entity tetaned or been repaid. We cannot be assure
we will be able to access the securitization marlketthe future, or be able to do so at favorables. The inability to consummate longer t
financing for the credit sensitive assets in outtfpbo could require us to seek other forms ofgrtially less attractive financing or to liquidasset
at an inopportune time or price, which could adelraffect our performance and our ability to growr business.

In addition, under the terms of the securitizatiwnstructured financing, we may have limited oraimlity to sell, transfer or replace -
assets transferred to the SPE, which could havetarial adverse effect on our ability to sell tssets opportunistically or during periods when
liquidity is constrained or to refinance the ass€isally, we have in the past and may in the fitguarantee certain terms or conditions of 1
financings, including the payment of principal antérest on the debt issued by the SPE, the casls flor which are typically derived from the as
transferred to the entity. If a SPE defaults oroliBgations and we have guaranteed the satisfacfithat obligation, we may be materially advey
affected.

If a counterparty to our repurchase transactionsfdelts on its obligation to resell the underlyingesurity back to us at the end of the transact
term or if we default on our obligations under threpurchase agreement, we may incur losses.

When we engage in repurchase transactions, we abneell RMBS, CMBS, mortgage loans or certaineotlassets to lenders (i
repurchase agreement counterparties) and recestefican the lenders. The lenders are obligate@dell the same security or asset back to us
end of the term of the transaction. Because tkh e receive from the lender when we initiallyl #e security or asset to the lender is less the
value of that security or asset (this differenceeferred to as the “haircut’), the lender defaults on its obligation to reshl same security or as
back to us we would incur a loss on the transactgnal to the amount of the haircut (assuming thveas no change in the value of
security). Certain of the assets that we pledgecdateral, including Agency 10s, CLOs and distegbsesidential loans are currently subjec
significant haircuts. Further, if we default on asfeour obligations under a repurchase transactt@)ender can terminate the transaction and
entering into any other repurchase transactionls ust Our repurchase agreements contain aefsslt provisions, so that if a default occurs er
any one agreement, the lenders under our otheemgmts could also declare a default. Any lossesnar on our repurchase transactions ¢
adversely affect our earnings and thus our castteéle for distribution to our stockholders.

Our use of repurchase agreements to borrow fundsyngive our lenders greater rights in the event thether we or a lender files for bankruptcy.

Our borrowings under repurchase agreements mayfygé@l special treatment under the bankruptcy ¢agleing our lenders the ability
avoid the automatic stay provisions of the banloymtode and to take possession of and liquidatecollateral under the repurchase agreen
without delay in the event that we file for bankiwp Furthermore, the special treatment of repwseregreements under the bankruptcy code
make it difficult for us to recover our pledgedetssn the event that a lender files for bankruptdyws, the use of repurchase agreements expok
pledged assets to risk in the event of a bankruiiltng by either a lender or us.

Our liquidity may be adversely affected by margialls under our repurchase agreements because we dependent in part on the lende
valuation of the collateral securing the financing.

Each of these repurchase agreements allows therletwdvarying degrees, to revalue the collatevaValues that the lender consider
reflect market value. If a lender determines that value of the collateral has decreased, it miiatie a margin call requiring us to post additik
collateral to cover the decrease. When we are sutgjesuch a margin call, we must provide the lendéh additional collateral or repay a portior
the outstanding borrowings with minimal notice. Arguch margin call could harm our liquidity, result§ operation and financi
condition. Additionally, in order to obtain cashdatisfy a margin call, we may be required toiligte assets at a disadvantageous time, which
cause it to incur further losses and adverselycaéfar results of operations and financial conditio
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Adoption of the Basel Il standards and other proped supplementary regulatory standards may negdtirapact our access to financing ¢
affect the terms of our future financing arrangemés

In response to various financial crises and thatility of financial markets, the Basel Committe® Banking Supervision adopted the B.
Il standards several years ago. The final paclagBasel Il reforms was approved by the G20 leadarNovember 2010. U.S. regulators F
elected to implement substantially all of the BdHettandard, which could cause an increase intaaequirements for, and could place constri
on, the financial institutions from which we borrokinancial institutions will have until 2019 tolffucomply with the Basel 11l standards.

In 2014, U.S. regulators finalized rules that pdevfor enhanced supplementary leverage ratio stdsdahich impose capital requireme
more stringent than those of the Basel Il stansldiat the most systematically significant bankingyamizations in the U.S. Adoption ¢
implementation of the Basel Ill standards and theptemental regulatory standards that are currdyging implemented by U.S. regulators |
negatively impact our access to financing, parédylrepurchase agreement financing for Agency RiM@&Saffect the terms of our future financ
arrangements.

Hedging against credit events and interest rate nas and other risks may materially adversely affecr business, financial condition ar
results of operations and our ability to make disttions to our stockholders.

Subject to compliance with the requirements toifjuak a REIT, we engage in certain hedging tratisas to limit our exposure to chan
in interest rates and therefore may expose oursétvesks associated with such transactions. W utiize instruments such as interest rate sv
caps, collars and floors and Eurodollar and U.8a%ury futures to seek to hedge the interestisk@ssociated with our portfolio. Hedging agag
decline in the values of our portfolio positionsedmot eliminate the possibility of fluctuationstire values of such positions or prevent lossése
values of such positions decline. However, we mstatdish other hedging positions designed to gesmfthose same developments, the
offsetting the decline in the value of such poitfgdositions. Such hedging transactions may alwsit he opportunity for gain if the values of
portfolio positions should increase. Moreover, @t point in time we may choose not to hedge all portion of these risks, and we generally will
hedge those risks that we believe are approprateid to take at such time, or that we believe @idad impractical or prohibitively expensive
hedge.

Even if we do choose to hedge certain risks, feargety of reasons we generally will not seek ttaksh a perfect correlation between
hedging instruments and the risks being hedged. sia imperfect correlation may prevent us fromieghg the intended hedge and expose
risk of loss. Our hedging activity will vary in go® based on the composition of our portfolio, oarket views, and changing market conditi
including the level and volatility of interest ratéNVhen we do choose to hedge, hedging may faitdtect or could materially adversely affec
because, among other things:

e either we or our external managers may fail toexily assess the degree of correlation betweepédtfermance of the instruments use
the hedging strategy and the performance of thetagsthe portfolio being hedged;

e either we or our external managers may fail taleulate, re-adjust and execute hedges in ariezffiand timely manner;

e the hedging transactions may actually resuliiarpr over-all performance for us than if we hatlemgaged in the hedging transactions;
e credit hedging can be expensive, particularlymtie market is forecasting future credit detetioraand when markets are more illiquid;
e interest rate hedging can be expensive, partigutaring periods of volatile interest rates;

e available hedges may not correspond directly wighrisks for which protection is sought;

e the durations of the hedges may not match thatidus of the related assets or liabilities beiadded;

e many hedges are structured as overethanter contracts with counterparties whose cregitviness is not guaranteed, raising
possibility that the hedging counterparty may difan their payment obligations; and

e to the extent that the creditworthiness of a heglgiounterparty deteriorates, it may be difficultimpossible to terminate or assign
hedging transactions with such counterparty.

For these and other reasons, our hedging activity materially adversely affect our business, fimaneondition and results of operatic
and our ability to make distributions to our stockters.
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Hedging instruments and other derivatives may niot,many cases, be traded on regulated exchangesgjuaranteed or regulated by any U.S.
foreign governmental authorities and involve rislkesid costs that could result in material losst

Hedging instruments and other derivatives involgk because they may not, in many cases, be tradedgulated exchanges and may
be guaranteed or regulated by any U.S. or foreigveqymental authorities. Consequently, for thestriments, there are no requirements
respect to record keeping, financial responsibditgegregation of customer funds and compliantle applicable statutory and commodity and c
regulatory requirements and, depending on the iiyenit the counterparty, applicable internationeduirements. We are restricted from dealing
any particular counterparty or from concentrating ar all of our transactions with one counterpafifye business failure of a hedging counterj
with whom we enter into a hedging transaction witist likely result in a default under the hedgiggegment. Default by a party with whom we e
into a hedging transaction may result in lossesraag force us to re-initiate similar hedges withestcounterparties at the thprevailing marke
levels. Generally we will seek to reserve the rightterminate our hedging transactions upon a ewpatty’s insolvency, but absent an ac
insolvency, we may not be able to terminate a heglgiansaction without the consent of the hedgmgnterparty, and we may not be able to a:
or otherwise dispose of a hedging transaction tihen counterparty without the consent of bothdtiginal hedging counterparty and the pote
assignee. If we terminate a hedging transactioninag not be able to enter into a replacement coninaorder to cover our risk. There can be
assurance that a liquid secondary market will efdsthedging instruments purchased or sold, andefbee we may be required to maintain
hedging position until exercise or expiration, whaould materially adversely affect our businesgricial condition and results of operations.

The CFTC and certain commodity exchanges have lestall limits referred to as speculative positionits or position limits on tF
maximum net long or net short position which anyspa or group of persons may hold or control irtipalar futures and options. Limits on trad
in options contracts also have been establishetidyarious options exchanges. It is possibletthaing decisions may have to be modified anc
positions held may have to be liquidated in ordemlavoid exceeding such limits. Such modificationliquidation, if required, could materia
adversely affect our business, financial condition results of operation and our ability to malaritiutions to our stockholders.

Certain of our hedging instruments are regulated tye CFTC and such regulations may cause us to in@wcreased compliance costs.

From time to time, we enter into interest rate ssvapd other derivative instruments on corporate&@sdto hedge risks associated with
portfolio. Entities entering into such swaps ar@ased to credit losses in the event of penformance by counterparties to these transac
Effective October 12, 2012, the CFTC issued newsukgarding such swaps under the authority graetétpursuant to the Doderank Act
Although the new rules do not directly affect thegatiations and terms of individual hedging tratisas between counterparties, they do require
since September 9, 2013, these swap transactiociedred through registered derivatives clearirgnizations, or swap execution facilities, thrc
standardized documents under which each swap apanitg transfers its position to another entityfHis arrangement, the centralized clearingh
effectively becomes the counterparty to each sidith@ swap. It is the intent of the Do#dank Act that the clearing of swaps in this manis
designed to avoid concentration of swap risk in amgle entity by spreading and centralizing trek iin the clearinghouse and its member:
addition to greater initial and periodic margin I{ateral) requirements and additional transactieesfboth by the swap execution facility anc
clearinghouse, the swap transactions are now debjg¢o greater regulation by both the CFTC andSE€. These additional fees, costs, me
requirements, documentation, and regulation codietisely affect our business and results of operati

Additionally, for all swaps we entered into prior$eptember 9, 2013, we are not required to dheam tthrough the central clearinghouse
and these swaps are still subject to the riskoaparformance by any of the individual countergartivith whom we entered into these transactions.

Our delayed delivery transactions, including TBAsybject us to certain risks, including price risksd counterparty risks.

We purchase a significant portion of our Agency R3MBirough delayed delivery transactions, includif@As. In a delayed delive
transaction, we enter into a forward purchase agee¢ with a counterparty to purchase either (ijdemtified Agency RMBS, or (i) a to-bissuer
(or “to-be-announced”Agency RMBS with certain terms. As with any forwgrdrchase contract, the value of the underlyingnsgeRMBS ma
decrease between the contract date and the sattlel@ie. Furthermore, a transaction counterparty faato deliver the underlying Agency RMI
at the settlement date. If any of the above riskeevio occur, our financial condition and resuftegerations may be materially adversely affected.
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Risks Related to Our Agreements with Our External Managers

We are dependent on certain of our external manageand certain of their key personnel and may natdia suitable replacement if they termini
their respective management agreements with usumhskey personnel are no longer available to us.

We historically were organized as a saffvised company that acquired, originated, soldraadaged its assets; however, as we modifie
business strategy and the targeted assets we segkjuire in response to changing market conditisesbegan to outsource the manageme
certain targeted asset classes for which we hatketinmternal resources or experience. We presettilige three external managers to manage ct
of our assets and investment strategies. Each ofexiernal managers, in some manner, identifieaJuetes, negotiates, structures, closes
monitors certain investments on our behalf. In ezade, we have engaged these third parties beo&tise expertise of certain key personnel of
external managers. The departure of any of theosefiicers of our external managers, or of a digant number of investment professional.
principals of our external managers, could haveatenal adverse effect on our ability to achieve iouestment objectives. We are subject to the
that our external managers will terminate theipessive management agreement with us or that we degyn it necessary to terminate ¢
agreement or prevent certain individuals from peniag services for us, and that no suitable repfamd will be found to manage certain of
assets and investment strategies on a timely basisall.

Pursuant to our management agreements, our extermainagers are entitled to receive a management tiest is payable regardless of t
performance of the assets under their managem

We will pay each of our external managers substhhtise management fees, based on our investadlqagi such term is defined in
respective management agreements), regardlese petformance of the assets under their manageiftemtexternal managershtitlement in mar
cases to noperformance based compensation may reduce itstineeto devote the time and effort of its professils to seeking profitak
investment opportunities for our company, whichldaesult in the undeperformance of assets under their management agatively affect oL
ability to pay distributions to our stockholderstorachieve capital appreciation.

Pursuant to the terms of our management agreemepois, external managers are generally entitled tacegve an incentive fee, which may indt
them to make certain investments, including spediva or high risk investments.

In addition to the base management fees payaldenexternal managers, our external managers arergly entitled to receive incenti
compensation based, in part, upon the achievenidargeted levels of net income. In evaluating stwgents and other management strategie
opportunity to earn incentive compensation basedairincome may lead our external managers to pladee emphasis on the maximization of
income at the expense of other criteria, such esgpvation of capital, maintaining liquidity andfoenagement of interest rate, credit or markes)
in order to achieve higher incentive compensatiovestments with higher yield potential are gergrabkkier or more speculative. In additi
Midway has broad discretion regarding the typesngéstments it will make pursuant to its managensgreement with us. This could resul
increased risk to the value of our assets undemtm@gagement of our external managers.

We compete with our external managers’ other cligfior access to them.

Each of our external managers manages, and is expercontinue to manage, other client accountis similar or overlapping investme
strategies. In connection with the services pravitte those accounts, these managers may be conpenmeare favorably than for the servi
provided under our external management agreemandssuch discrepancies in compensation may affectetvel of service provided to us by
external managers. Moreover, each of our exterrmlagers may have an economic interest in the atcdlo@y manage or the investments
propose.As a result, we will compete with these other acts and interests for access to our external neasamnd the benefits derived from tF
relationships. For the same reasons, the persohelr external managers may be unable to ded&atéstantial portion of their time managing
investments to the extent they manage or are agedavith any future investment vehicles not reldateus.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshipwith our external managers, which could result decisions that are not in the best interest:
our stockholders.

We may acquire or sell assets in which an extemmahager or its affiliates have or may have an ésteror we may participate in co-
investment opportunities with our external managertheir affiliates. In these cases, it is possithlat our interests and the interests of our eal
managers will not always be aligned and this caekllt in decisions that are not in the best istsr@f our companySimilarly, our extern:
managers or its affiliates may acquire or sell @sisewhich we have or may have an interest. Algtosuch acquisitions or dispositions may pre
conflicts of interest, we nonetheless may pursug @nsummate such transactions. Additionally, we er@gage in transactions directly with
external managers or their affiliates, including gurchase and sale of all or a portion of a tedjasset.
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Acquisitions made for entities with similar objees may be different from those made on our bel@lf. external managers may h
economic interests in or other relationships wittees in whose obligations or securities we mayaeqIn particular, such persons may make ai
hold an investment in securities that we acquiet thay be pari passu, senior or junior in rankingur interest in the securities or in which parst
security holders, officers, directors, agents opleyees of such persons serve on boards of diseotootherwise have ongoing relationships. Ea
such ownership and other relationships may resustecurities laws restrictions on transactionsuichssecurities and otherwise create conflic
interest. In such instances, the external managays in their sole discretion, make recommendatarsdecisions regarding such securities for
entities that may be the same as or different fitoose made with respect to securities acquiredstgna may take actions (or omit to take actior
the context of these other economic interestslatioaships, the consequences of which may be adwerour interests.

The key personnel of our external managers araffitmtes devote as much time to us as our extenamagers deem appropriate, howe
these individuals may have conflicts in allocatihgir time and services among us and their otheswads and investment vehicles. During turbt
conditions in the mortgage industry, distress & ¢hedit markets or other times when we will neatlited support and assistance from our ex
managers, other entities for which our external agans serve as manager, or their accounts, wélike require greater focus and attention, ple
the resources of our external managers in high ddmla such situations, we may not receive the ssary support and assistance we requi
would otherwise receive if we were internally masdg

We, directly or through our external managers, robtain confidential information about the companiessecurities in which we ha
invested or may invest. If we do possess confidéirtformation about such companies or securitiere may be restrictions on our ability to disy
of, increase the amount of, or otherwise take actith respect to the securities of such compartes. external managergianagement of oth
accounts could create a conflict of interest to él&ent such external manager is aware of matadalpublic information concerning potent
investment decisions and this in turn could impagt ability to make necessary investment decisidmy. limitations that develop as a result of
access to confidential information could therefioraterially adversely affect our business, financ@idition and results of operations and our 3l
to make distributions to our stockholders.

There are limitations on our ability to withdraw wested capital from the account managed by Midwang aur inability to withdraw our investe
capital when necessary may materially adverselyeeffour business, financial condition and result§ operations and our ability to mal
distributions to our stockholders.

Pursuant to the terms of the Midway Management &mgeent, we may only redeem invested capital in aouanequal to the lesser of 1
of the invested capital in the account managed mwely or $10 million as of the last calendar dayttef month upon not less than 75 days wr
notice, subject to our authority ttirect Midway to modify its investment strategy fourposes of maintaining our qualification as a REAhc
exemption from the Investment Company Act. In ddditwe are only permitted to make one such rediempequest in any 78ay period. In th
event of a significant market event or shock, we @ unable to effect a redemption of investedteapi greater amounts or at a greater rate u
we obtain the consent of Midway. Moreover, becaaseduction of invested capital would reduce theebmanagement fee under the Mid
Management Agreement, Midway may be less inclimedansent to such redemptions. If we are unablgittedraw invested capital as neede
meet our obligations in the future, our businestfarancial condition could be materially adversaffected.

Termination of our external management agreementayrbe difficult and costly.

Termination of the RiverBanc Management Agreemeitliout cause is subject to several conditions whidy make such a terminat
difficult and costly. The RiverBanc Management Agreent provides that we may only terminate RiverBaitlcout cause and not be obligated to
a termination fee unless we realize a negative &% n on the assets managed for us by RiverBanced¥er, except as described in the prece
sentence, we cannot terminate RiverBanc withouseauntil expiration of the initial term and therlyoapon providing 180 days advance notice
subject to the payment of a termination fee equé#hé product of (A) 24 and (B) the base managerieentarned by RiverBanc during the one m
period immediately preceding the termination da@teus, in the event we elect not to renew the RimaBManagement Agreement for any rei
other than cause or as otherwise described imptizgraph, we will be required to pay this terniorafee. In addition, the RiverBanc Managen
Agreement provides RiverBanc with an exclusive trigifirst refusal to purchase any of our assetaagad by it subject to certain exceptions, ir
event we terminate them for any reason. This prawvisould result in our loss of assets that ouniegs are dependent upon or may cause us |
assets prior to our recovery of lost value. Theseipions may increase the effective cost to ugwohinating the RiverBanc Management Agreen
thereby adversely affecting our ability to terms&iverBanc without cause.
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Pursuant to the Midway Management Agreement, iretlemt we determine to terminate the Midway Manag@mgreement at any time
the future, Midway has the right to liquidate thesets it manages on our behalf in its sole dismreMoreover, as discussed above, there are ¢
restrictions on our ability to redeem invested tapinder the Midway Management Agreement. As altewe may have little control over 1
liquidation of any of our assets that are managedlidway or the timing of the full redemption of oinvested capital, which may make it m
difficult to terminate our agreement with Midway dagould have a material adverse effect on our lessinfinancial condition and results
operations.

Risks Related to an Investment in Our Capital Stock
The market price and trading volume of our stock ynke volatile.

The market price of our stock is highly volatiledasubject to wide fluctuations. In addition, thading volume in our stock may fluctu
and cause significant price variations to occusm8 of the factors that could result in fluctuation the price or trading volume of our stock ireh
among other things: actual or anticipated chamyesir current or future financial performance;uattor anticipated changes in our current or f
dividend yield; changes in market interest rates general market and economic conditions. We daaggure you that the market price of our <
will not fluctuate or decline significantly.

We have not established a minimum dividend paymiavel for our common stockholders and there are mesurances of our ability to pi
dividends to common or preferred stockholders ire thuture.

We intend to pay quarterly dividends and to malstrithiutions to our common stockholders in amounthghat all or substantially all of ¢
taxable income in each year, subject to certainsiijents, is distributed. This, along with othexttdas, should enable us to qualify for the tax Ifiés
accorded to a REIT under the Internal Revenue Oitiehave not established a minimum dividend payrtem for our common stockholders
our ability to pay dividends may be harmed by fis& factors described herein. From July 2007 uiitil 2008, our Board of Directors electec
suspend the payment of quarterly dividends on oanmmon stock. Our Boars’decision reflected our focus on the eliminatiéroperating losse
through the sale of our mortgage lending busines$ the conservation of capital to build future @ags from our portfolio managem
operations. All distributions to our common stockiess will be made at the discretion of our Boafdwectors and will depend on our earnings,
financial condition, maintenance of our REIT statunsl such other factors as our Board of Directcag deem relevant from time to time. There
no assurances of our ability to pay dividends tocmmmon or preferred stockholders in the futurthatcurrent rate or at all.

Future offerings of debt securities, which would m& senior to our common stock and preferred stogkom our liquidation, and future offering
of equity securities, which would dilute our exisfi stockholders and may be senior to our commoncktdor the purposes of dividend a
liquidating distributions, may adversely affect thearket price of our common stock.

In the future, we may attempt to increase our ehpiésources by making offerings of debt or addaioofferings of equity securitie
including commercial paper, mediut®m notes, senior or subordinated notes and dasfspreferred stock or common stock. Upon ligtiatg
holders of our debt securities and lenders witpbeesto other borrowings will receive a distributiof our available assets prior to the holdersw
preferred stock and common stock, with holderswfpyeferred stock having priority over holdersoof common stock. Additional equity offerir
may dilute the holdings of our existing stockhofler reduce the market price of our common stockoth. Because our decision to issue secu
in any future offering will depend on market corafis and other factors beyond our control, we ctupnedict or estimate the amount, timing
nature of our future offerings. Thus, holders of common stock bear the risk of our future offgemeducing the market price of our common ¢
and diluting their stock holdings in us.

Future sales of our stock could have an adverseseffon the price of our stock.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf our stock, or the availability of shares fisiure sales, on the market price of
common or preferred stock. Sales of substantialuents of stock, or the perception that such satesdcoccur, may adversely affect prevai
market prices for our common or preferred stock.

Your interest in us may be diluted if we issue ditutial shares.

Current stockholders of our company do not haveerpgdive rights to any common stock issued by ushin future. Therefore, o

stockholders may experience dilution of their egivestment if we sell additional common stockhie future, sell securities that are convertibte

common stock or issue shares of common stock aorapexercisable for shares of common stock. Intiadd we could sell securities at a price
than our then-current book value per share.
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Investing in our securities may involve a high degr of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursitmvent strategy may result in a high degree of siskatility or loss of principal the
alternative investment options. Our investments imehighly speculative and aggressive, and thexefor investment in our securities may nc
suitable for someone with lower risk tolerance.

Risks Related to Our Company, Structure and Change Control Provisions
Our directors have approved broad investment guiide$ for us and do not approve each investment waken

Our external managers are generally authorizedlimw broad investment guidelines in determiningahhassets we will invest in. Althou
our Board of Directors will ultimately determine &m and how much capital to allocate to our investnstrategies, we generally will not, w
certain exceptions, approve transactions in advahdbeir execution by these managdrsaddition, in conducting periodic reviews, we Iwily
primarily on information provided to us by our extal managers. Complicating matters further, oderal managers may use complex invest
strategies and transactions, which may be difficuitnpossible to unwind. As a result, becauseesternal managers have great latitude to detel
the types of assets it may decide are proper imardls for us, there can be no assurance that wédvetioerwise approve of these investm
individually or that they will be successful.

We are dependent on certain key personnel.
We are a small company and are substantially degpeengbon the efforts of our Chief Executive Offieerd President, Steven R. Mum
and certain key individuals employed by our extemanagers. The loss of Mr. Mumma or any key pamsbiof our Company or our exter

manager or their services could have a materiadrmgveffect on our operations.

Certain provisions of Maryland law and our charteand bylaws could hinder, delay or prevent a charigecontrol which could have an adver
effect on the value of our securities.

Certain provisions of Maryland law, our charter and bylaws may have the effect of delaying, défgrior preventing transactions t
involve an actual or threatened change in conffblese provisions include the following, among othe

e our charter provides that, subject to the rigfitene or more classes or series of preferred dtwekect one or more directors, a director
be removed with or without cause only by the afitive vote of holders of at least twliirds of all votes entitled to be cast by
stockholders generally in the election of directors

e our bylaws provide that only our Board of Dirastghall have the authority to amend our bylaws;

e under our charter, our Board of Directors haharitly to issue preferred stock from time to tirrepne or more series and to establist
terms, preferences and rights of any such seifliesithout the approval of our stockholders;

e the Maryland Business Combination Act; and
e the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act.
Although our Board of Directors has adopted a rgsmh exempting us from application of the MarylaBuglsiness Combination Act and

bylaws provide that we are not subject to the Margll Control Share Acquisition Act, our Board of &itors may elect to make thbusines
combination” statute and “control share” statutplaable to us at any time and may do so withootldtolder approval.
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Maintenance of our Investment Company Act exemptiomposes limits on our operation

We have conducted and intend to continue to conduciperations so as not to become regulated asvastment company under
Investment Company Act. We believe that there amaraber of exclusions under the Investment Compeniythat are applicable to us. To main
the exclusion, the assets that we acquire areddriy the provisions of the Investment Companyakat the rules and regulations promulgated L
the Investment Company Act. On August 31, 2011,SB€ published a concept release entiti€drhpanies Engaged in the Business of Acqu
Mortgages and Mortgage Related InstrumentaVdstment Company Act Rel. No. 29778). This redeagggests that the SEC may modify
exemption relied upon by companies similar to wa fihvest in mortgage loans and mortgbgeked securities. If the SEC acts to narrow
availability of, or if we otherwise fail to qualiffor, our exclusion, we could, among other things required either (a) to change the manner inh
we conduct our operations to avoid being requicetkgister as an investment company or (b) to teigas an investment company, either of w
could have a material adverse effect on our operatand the market price of our common stock.

The stock ownership limit imposed by our charter ynahibit market activity in our common stock and ay restrict our business combinatis
opportunities.

In order for us to maintain our qualification aRBIT under the Code, not more than 50% in valuthefissued and outstanding shares o
capital stock may be owned, actually or constretyivby five or fewer individuals (as defined iretiCode to include certain entities) at any
during the last half of each taxable year (othantbur first year as a REIT). This test is knowrtre “5/50 test.”Attribution rules in the Code apy
to determine if any individual or entity actually constructively owns our capital stock for purposé this requirement. Additionally, at least
persons must beneficially own our capital stockrdpat least 335 days of each taxable year (otiear our first year as a REIT). To help ensure
we meet these tests, our charter restricts theisitqn and ownership of shares of our capital lksto@ur charter, with certain exceptions, autha
our directors to take such actions as are necessatydesirable to preserve our qualification asEiTRand provides that, unless exempted by
Board of Directors, no person may own more tha®mi® value of the aggregate of the outstandingeshaf our capital stock or more than 9.9¢
value or in number of shares, whichever is mor¢rictise, of the aggregate of our outstanding skase common stock. The ownership lin
contained in our charter could delay or prevemaadaction or a change in control of our compargeuarircumstances that otherwise could prc
our stockholders with the opportunity to realizeramium over the then current market price for@mmon stock or would otherwise be in the
interests of our stockholders.

Tax Risks Related to Our Structure
Failure to qualify as a REIT would adversely affeour operations and ability to make distributions.

We have operated and intend to continue to opsrate qualify as a REIT for federal income tax msgs. Our continued qualification ¢
REIT will depend on our ability to meet various ugg@ments concerning, among other things, the ostmgrof our outstanding stock, the natur
our assets, the sources of our income, and the@nedour distributions to our stockholders. lderto satisfy these requirements, we might ha
forego investments we might otherwise make. Tleospliance with the REIT requirements may hinder iovestment performance. Moreoy
while we intend to continue to operate so to quas a REIT for federal income tax purposes, gitenhighly complex nature of the rules goveri
REITs, there can be no assurance that we will sdifgun any taxable year.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeard we do not qualify for certain statutory reliebvisions, we would be subject to fed
income tax (including any applicable alternativenimum tax) on our taxable income at regular corfgorates. We might be required to bor
funds or liquidate some investments in order to fhey applicable tax. Our payment of income tax iaeduce our net earnings available
investment or distribution to stockholders. Furthere, if we fail to qualify as a REIT and do natatjfy for certain statutory relief provisions,
would no longer be required to make distributiamstbckholders. Unless our failure to qualify @ET were excused under the federal incom:
laws, we generally would be disqualified from treaht as a REIT for the four taxable years followthg year in which we lost our REIT status.

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affieour liquidity.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we generally areuiegf each year to distribute to our stockholderdeast 90% of our REIT taxable incot
excluding any net capital gain. To the extent thatdistribute at least 90%, but less than 100%ufREIT taxable income, we will be subjec
corporate income tax on our undistributed REIT kd&ancome. In addition, we will be subject to % éondeductible excise tax on the amoul
any, by which certain distributions paid by us wiéspect to any calendar year are less than theo§(in85% of our ordinary REIT income for tl
year, (ii) 95% of our REIT capital gain net incofoe that year, and (iii) 100% of our undistribute&IT taxable income from prior yea

37




We have made and intend to continue to make digtoibs to our stockholders to comply with the 90ribution requirement and to avi
corporate income tax and the nondeductible exeise However, differences in timing between theogedtion of REIT taxable income and the ac
receipt of cash could require us to sell assete borrow funds on a shotérm basis to meet the 90% distribution requirenaet to avoid corpore
income tax and the nondeductible excise tax.

Certain of our assets may generate substantial atisras between REIT taxable income and availalbdb.c&uch assets could incl
mortgagebacked securities we hold that have been issuadiscount and require the accrual of taxable ircomadvance of the receipt of cash.
a result, our taxable income may exceed our caaliase for distribution and the requirement totrilisite a substantial portion of our net taxi
income could cause us to:

e sell assets in adverse market conditions,
e borrow on unfavorable terms or

e distribute amounts that would otherwise be ineg$h future acquisitions, capital expenditureseprayment of debt in order to comply
with the REIT distribution requirements.

Further, our lenders could require us to enter irggative covenants, including restrictions on ahifity to distribute funds or to empl
leverage, which could inhibit our ability to sayishe 90% distribution requirement.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates on dividend income from regularporations.

The maximum U.S. federal income tax rate for dinide payable to domestic stockholders that are imhg#ls, trust and estates
20%. Dividends payable by REITs, however, are gdlyenot eligible for the reduced rates. Althoutite reduced U.S. federal income tax
applicable to dividend income from regular corperdividends does not adversely affect the taxaifoREITs or dividends paid by REITs, the m
favorable rate applicable to regular corporateddimds could cause investors who are individualsidrand estates to perceive investments in F
to be relatively less attractive than investmentthe stocks of noREIT corporations that pay dividends, which coulidexrsely affect the value
the shares of REITs, including our common shares.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us tadgo or liquidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we must contlly satisfy various tests regarding the souafesur income, the nature and diversification of
assets, the amounts we distribute to our stocki®lded the ownership of our common stock. In otdemeet these tests, we may be requirt
forego investments we might otherwise make. We beyequired to make distributions to stockholdémisadvantageous times or when we dc
have funds readily available for distribution, andy be unable to pursue investments that wouldttheneise advantageous to us in order to st
the source of income or asset diversification neguents for qualifying as a REIT. Thus, compliamgth the REIT requirements may hinder
investment performance.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our akiy to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Codbestantially limit our ability to hedge the RMBS our investment portfolio. O
aggregate gross income from non-qualifying hedfges, and certain other nopralifying sources cannot exceed 5% of our annt@dsggincome. A
a result, we might have to limit our use of advgetaus hedging techniques or implement those hatigesgh a TRS. Any hedging income eal
by a TRS would be subject to federal, state andllmrome tax at regular corporate rates. Thidccmcrease the cost of our hedging activitie
expose us to greater risks associated with changeterest rates than we would otherwise wantearb

Our ability to invest in distressed mortgage loamsy be limited by our intention to maintain our glification as a REIT, and our investments
distressed residential mortgage loans may affect ahility to qualify as a REIT.

We have acquired distressed mortgage loans andaogyire distressed mortgage loans in the futuregeneral, under the applica
Treasury Regulations, if a loan is secured by peaperty and other property and the highest pradcnount of the loan outstanding during a tax
year exceeds the fair market value of the real gntgpsecuring the loan as of (i) the date we agteedcquire the loan or (ii) in the event ¢
significant modification, the date we modified tlwan, then a portion of the interest income froroshsa loan will not be qualifying income
purposes of the 75% gross income test, but witjuedifying income for purposes of the 95% gros®ine test.

Although the law is not entirely clear, a portiohtlee loan will also likely be a nogualifying asset for purposes of the 75% asset Té¢®&
non-qualifying portion of such a loan would be sdbjto, among other requirements, the 10% valueRevenue Procedure 2052-provides a sa
harbor under which the IRS has stated that it moll challenge a REIF treatment of a loan as being, in part, a qualifyieal estate asset in
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the fair marlkatg of the real property securing the loan deteedhias of the date the REIT committed to aci
the loan or (ii) the fair market value of the loamthe date of the relevant quarterly REIT asssing date. This safe harbor will help us complyh
the REIT asset tests immediately following the asitjon of a distressed mortgage loan. It will lesed helpful if the value of the distressed mort
loan increases over time. Under the safe harboenvihie current value of a distressed mortgagedaaaeds the fair market value of the real pro)



that secures the loan, determined as of the dateomemitted to acquire the loan, the excess willtieated as a nogualifying asse
Accordingly, an increasing portion of a distresssaltgage loan will be treated as a ruralifying asset as the value of the distressedgage loa
increases.
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Revenue Procedure 2054-states that the IRS will treat distressed mgegaans secured by real property and other prppsrproducin
in part non-qualifying income for the 75% grossame test. Specifically, Revenue Procedure 28ll4ndicates that interest income on a distre
mortgage loan will be treated as qualifying incdmased on the ratio of (i) the fair market valueéhef real property securing the loan determined
the date we committed to acquire the loan andh@)face amount of the loan (and not the purchaise pr current value of the loan). The f
amount of a distressed mortgage loan will typicalkceed the fair market value of the real propseguring the loan on the date we comm
acquire the loan. Accordingly, a distressed mortgagn that is secured by real property and othgpgrty may produce a significant amount of non-
qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gros®ine test and a significant portion of a distressettgage loan may be treated as a qoalifying
asset for the REIT asset tests once the loan isesda value.

As noted above, the applicable Treasury Regulatiegsire the apportionment of interest for purposkshe 75% gross income test only if
mortgage loan in question is secured by both regberty and other property. To the extent that disyressed residential mortgage loan tha
acquire is secured by both real property and gihegperty, such loan will be subject to the appomient rules described above. If we determine 1
distressed residential mortgage loan is not suligettte apportionment rules described above bedaissecured only by real property, no assur
could be given that the IRS would not assert swfabyg that the distressed residential mortgage as secured by property other than real prog
In that case, a significant portion of our intenestome from the distressed residential mortgage Mould be treated as ngmalifying income fo
the 75% gross income test. If we did not satisé/76% gross income test, we could lose our REITifipadion or be required to pay a penalty to
IRS.

Accordingly, we may be limited in our ability tovest in distressed mortgage loans and maintaingaoatification as a REIT, and ¢
investments in distressed residential mortgagesleanld affect our ability to qualify as a REIT.

Our ability to invest in and dispose of “to be anmaced” securities could be limited by our REIT status, ameé could lose our REIT status as
result of these investments.

In connection with our investment in Agency 10s, may purchase Agency RMBS through TBAs, or doltal transactions. In certe
instances, rather than take delivery of the AgeRMBS subject to a TBA, we will dispose of the TB#raugh a dollar roll transaction in which
agree to purchase similar securities in the futira predetermined price or otherwise, which mayltén the recognition of income or gains.
account for dollar roll transactions as purchasebsales. The law is unclear regarding whether T®#Msbe qualifying assets for the 75% asset
and whether income and gains from dispositionsBAJ will be qualifying income for the 75% gross amge test.

Until such time as we seek and receive a favorphilate letter ruling from the IRS, or we are adddy counsel that TBAs should
treated as qualifying assets for purposes of tlé @Sset test, we will limit our investment in TBAsd any nomgualifying assets to no more tt
25% of our assets at the end of any calendar qu&udeher, until such time as we seek and recaifsvorable private letter ruling from the IRS ce
are advised by counsel that income and gains flendisposition of TBAs should be treated as quialifyincome for purposes of the 75% g
income test, we will limit our gains from dispositis of TBAs and any nogualifying income to no more than 25% of our grosome for eac
calendar year. Accordingly, our ability to purchasgency RMBS through TBAs and to dispose of TBAwmough dollar roll transactions
otherwise, could be limited.

Moreover, even if we are advised by counsel thaA3 Bhould be treated as qualifying assets or ti@ime and gains from disposition:
TBAs should be treated as qualifying income, ipassible that the IRS could successfully take t&tpn that such assets are not qualifying a
and such income is not qualifying income. In thagdré, we could be subject to a penalty tax or wdctéil to qualify as a REIT if (i) the value ofit
TBAs, together with our non-qualifying assets foe 5% asset test, exceeded 25% of our grsssts at the end of any calendar quarter oru(
income and gains from the disposition of TBAs, tbge with our norgualifying income for the 75% gross income testemded 25% of our grc
income for any taxable year.
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We may incur a significant tax liability as a resubf selling assets that might be subject to thelpibited transactions tax if sold directly by us.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited transactions is sultie@a 100% tax. In general, prohibited transactiare sales or other dispositi
of assets held primarily for sale to customershim ardinary course of business. There is a riskdbgain loans that we are treating as ownin
federal income tax purposes and property receiyeah doreclosure of these loans will be treated &gl primarily for sale to customers in
ordinary course of business. Although we expecavoid the prohibited transactions tax by contribgtthose assets to one of our TR&n(
conducting the marketing and sale of those asBeiagh that TRS, no assurance can be given thaR®Baevill respect the transaction by which tr
assets are contributed to our TRS. Even if thosgriboition transactions are respected, our TRS lvéllsubject to federal, state and local corp
income tax and may incur a significant tax liakibis a result of those sales.
Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The Company does not own any materially importéayssjical properties; however, it does have residehttmes (or real estate owned)
it acquires, from time to time, through or in lief foreclosures on mortgage loans. As of December2®14, our principal executive ¢
administrative offices are located in leased spa@y5 Madison Avenue, Suite 3200, New York, Newkyb0016.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are at times subject to various legal proceedargsing in the ordinary course of our businessoAthe date of this report, we do
believe that any of our current legal proceedingdividually or in the aggregate, will have a ma&kadverse effect on our operations, finar
condition or cash flows.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price of and Dividends on the Regist's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globak8&eMarket under the trading symbol “NYMTAs of December 31, 2014, we t
105,094,565 shares of common stock outstandingaaraf December 31, 2014, there were approximatélyalders of record of our common stc

This figure does not reflect the beneficial owngrsif shares held in nominee name.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaied, the high, low and quarter end closing satiEees per share of our common stock
the cash dividends paid or payable on our commueksin a per share basis:

Common Stock Prices Cash Dividends
Quarter Declaration Pa yment Amount
High Low End D ate Date P er Share
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Fourth quarter $ 8.2( $ 7.3C $ 7.71 12/12/201. 01/26/201! $ 0.27
Third quarter 8.02 7.23 7.23 09/18/201. 10/27/201. 0.27
Second quarter 8.12 7.1€ 7.81 06/18/201. 07/25/201. 0.27
First quarter 8.04 6.7¢ 7.7¢ 03/13/201. 04/25/201. 0.27
Common Stock Prices Cash Dividends
Quarter Declaration Payment Amount
High Low End Date Date P er Share
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Fourth quarter $ 73C $ 6.0¢ $ 6.9¢ 12/10/201. 01/27/201: $ 0.27
Third quarter 6.8C 5.57 6.24 09/12/201. 10/25/201: 0.27
Second quarter 7.3¢ 6.57 6.77 06/18/201. 07/25/201. 0.27
First quarter 7.6C 6.4¢ 7.54 03/18/201. 04/25/201. 0.27

We intend to continue to pay quarterly dividend$itdders of shares of common stock. Future didtiobs will be at the discretion of t
Board of Directors and will depend on our earniragel financial condition, maintenance of our RElITalification, restrictions on makil
distributions under Maryland law and such othetdexas our Board of Directors deems relevant.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer afitiadéd Purchaser:
The Company has a share repurchase program, whipheviously announced in November 2005. At manageis discretion, th
Company is authorized to repurchase shares of Coynpammon stock in the open market or through pelyanegotiated transactions throi

December 31, 2015. The plan may be temporarilyesmpnently suspended or discontinued at any tirhe. Gompany has not repurchased
shares since March 2006 and currently has no iotetd recommence repurchases in the near-future.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity fensation Plans

The following table sets forth information as ofd@enber 31, 2014 with respect to compensation pladsr which equity securities of -
Company are authorized for issuance. The Compasiydiauch plans that were not approved by seduwityers.

Number of Securities

Number of Securities to Weighted Average Remaining Available for
be Issued upon Exercise Exercise Price of Future Issuance
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, under
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Equity Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans approved by securi
holders —  $ — 862,51

Performance Grapl

The following line graph sets forth, for the periyxdm December 31, 2009 through December 31, 28leégmparison of the percent:
change in the cumulative total stockholder returrttee Companyg common stock compared to the cumulative totaknedf the Russell 2000 Ind
and the FTSE National Association of Real Estatedtment Trusts Mortgage REIT (“FTSE NAREIT MortgagEITs”) Index. The graph assun
that the value of the investment in the Compangimmon stock and each of the indices were $100 Beoémber 31, 2009.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Amaong Mew York Mortgage Trust, Inc., the Russell 2000 Index,
and the FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REITs Index

$250

$200

$150

$100

$60
s0
12/09 1210 1211 1212 1213 1214

—B8— New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. — & — Russell 2000 ---g--- FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REITs

*$100 invested on 12/31/09 in stock or index, including reinvestmeant of dnidends
Fiscal year ending December 31

Copyright 2015 Russell Investment Group. Al nights resened.

The foregoing graph and chart shall not be deemedrporated by reference by any general statenmaurporating by reference this Annual Re|
on Form 10K into any filing under the Securities Act of 1983under the Exchange Act, except to the extenspeeifically incorporate th
information by reference, and shall not otherwigedeemed filed under those acts.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected histakioperating and financial data. The selecteahéstl operating and financial data for
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, 2012, 2012Gihave been derived from our historical finahsiatements

The information presented below is only a summargt does not provide all of the information contdiria our historical financii
statements, including the related notes. You shoedédl the information below in conjunction with “NeEgemens Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operatioast our historical financial statements, includihg related notes, (amounts in thousands, exce
share data):

Selected Statement of Operations Data:

For the Years Ended December 31,

201 4 2013 2012 2011 20 10

Interest income $ 37884 $ 291,727 $ 137,34¢ $ 2429. $ 19,89¢
Interest expense 301,01( 231,17¢ 105,92¢ 4,837 9,611

Net interest income 77,831 60,54¢ 31,42 19,45 10,28¢
Other income (expense) 105,20¢ 29,06: 9,10¢ (3,699 3,33:
General, administrative and other expenses 40,45¢ 19,91° 11,42:(D) 10,51¢ 7,95(
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 130,37¢ $ 65,38° $ 28,27¢ $ 477¢ $ 6,80¢
Per share basic income $ 1.4¢ $ 1.11 $ 1.0¢€ $ 0.4 $ 0.72
Per share diluted income $ 148 % 111 $ 1.0¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.72
Dividends declared per common share $ 1.0¢ $ 1.0¢ $ 1.0€ $ 1.0C $ 0.7¢
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 87,86" 59,10: 26,06" 10,49¢ 9,42
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 87,86 59,10: 26,06 10,49: 9,42

(1) Includes expenses incurred on termination ahagement contract amounting to $2.2 million feryear ended December 31, 2012.
Selected Balance Sheet Data:

As of December 31,

201 4 201 3 201 2 2011 2010

Investment securities, available for sale, atValue $ 816,64 $ 912,44. $ 1,034,71. $ 200,34: $ 86,04(
Investment securities, available for sale, at¥aiueheld in

securitization trusts 38,59 92,57¢ 71,15¢ — —
Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiosts(net) 149,61 163,23 187,22¢ 206,92( 228,18!
Distressed residential mortgage loans held in #&ation

trusts (net) 221,59: 254,72: 60,45¢ — —
Distressed residential mortgage loans 361,10¢ 9,71: — — —
Multi-family loans held in securitization trustg,fair value 8,365,51 8,111,02; 5,442,901 — —
Total asset§) 10,540,00 9,898,67! 7,160,40: 682,70! 374,29:
Financing arrangements, portfolio investments 651,96! 791,12¢ 889,13: 112,67- 35,63:
Financing arrangements, distressed residentialgaget

loans 238,94¢ — — — —
Residential collateralized debt obligations 145,54 158,41( 180,97¢ 199,76: 219,99¢
Multi-family collateralized debt obligations, atifaalue 8,048,05: 7,871,022 5,319,57. — —
Securitized debt 232,87" 304,96 117,59: — —
Subordinated debentures (net) 45,00( 45,00( 45,00( 45,00( 45,00(
Total liabilities(®) 9,722,07! 9,418,00! 6,838,39! 596,39t 305,80°
Total stockholders’ equity $ 817,920 $ 480,66t $ 322,00t $ 85,27¢ $ 68,481

(1) Our consolidated balance sheets include assetkadildies of consolidated variable interest eiest("VIEs") as the Company is the prim
beneficiary of these VIEs. As of December 31, 20Récember 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, asseforfolidated VIEs total
$8,847,078, $8,665,829 and $5,786,569, respectiaaly the liabilities of Consolidated VIEs totak®i457,034, $8,365,345 and $5,636,
respectively. See Note 7 for further discussion.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
General

We are a REIT, for federal income tax purposesh business of acquiring, investing in, financargd managing primarily mortgage-
related assets and financial assets. Our objeistit@ manage a portfolio of investments that walider stable distributions to our stockholdersn
diverse economic conditions. We intend to achiéng abjective through a combination of net interasirgin and net realized capital gains from
investment portfolio. Our portfolio includes certairedit sensitive assets and investments souroed distressed markets in recent years that ¢
the potential for capital gains, as well as moaéitional types of mortgage-related investmentsgeaerate interest income.

We have endeavored to build in recent years a sifient investment portfolio that includes elemeotsnterest rate and credit risk, as
believe a portfolio diversified among interest ratel credit risks are best suited to deliveringlstaash flows over various economic cycles. U
our investment strategy, our targeted assets diyriexclude residential mortgage loans, includirigticbssed residential loans, mulimily CMBS,
mezzanine loans to and preferred equity investmemtswners of multifamily properties, equity and debt securities initers that invest i
commercial real estatelated debt investments and Agency RMBS. Subgentdintaining our qualification as a REIT, we atsay opportunisticall
acquire and manage various other types of mortgelgéed and financial assets that we believe wilhpensate us appropriately for the r
associated with them, including, without limitatjiamonAgency RMBS (which may include IOs and POs), celalized mortgage obligations ¢
securities issued by newly originated residengablsitizations, including credit sensitive secestirom these securitizations.

We seek to achieve a balanced and diverse fundindgonfinance our assets and operations. To this e® rely primarily on a combinati
of shortterm borrowings, such as repurchase agreementsteuritiis typically of 30 days (and, in some casestaupne year) and longer te
structured financings, such as securitization @aslecuritization transactions, with terms longantbne year.

We internally manage a certain portion of our gwitf including Agency ARMs, fixed-rate Agency RMBBonAgency RMBS, CLOs ar
residential securitized loans. In addition, as édrour investment strategy, we also contract wightain external investment managers to ma
specific asset types targeted by us. We are a parsgparate investment management agreementsHwdtlands, Midway, and RiverBanc, v
Headlands providing investment management servid#s respect to our investments in certain disedssesidential mortgage loans, Midv
providing investment management services with resfgeour investments in Agency I0s, and RiverBaraviding investment management serv
with respect to our investments in multi-family CEBind certain commercial real estate-related delsiments.

Significant Events in 2014
e We generated net income attributable to commackbkblders of $130.4 million, or $1.48 per share;
e We declared aggregate 2014 dividends of $1.08 @anwn share;

e We issued 40,860,019 shares of common stock iretlseparate public offerings resulting in aggregat¢ proceeds to us
approximately $296.5 million, after deducting ungéting discounts and commissions and offering exges;

e We completed the sale of first loss PO securdies certain 10 securities issued by two Freddie-sf@onsored securitizations, realiz
an aggregate gain of approximately $39.1 million.

e We sold and refinanced distressed residential rmgedoans and residential mortgage loans with gyiogr value, of approximate
$81.0 million for aggregate proceeds of approxitye$85.4, which resulted in a net realized gairfpbeincome taxes, of approximat
$14.4 million; and

e We acquired residential mortgage loans, includiistrelssed residential mortgage loans, for an aggeguurchase cost of approxima
$405.4 million.
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Key Fourth Quarter 201 4 Developments
Public Offering of Common Stoc

On November 26, 2014, we closed on the issuanc@10,019 shares of common stock in an underwripigblic offering (includin
1,410,019 shares issued pursuant to an optionegtant the underwriters), resulting in net procetdsis of approximately $110.8 million, ai
deducting underwriting discounts, commissions difering expenses.

Sale of Multi-family CMBS

In December 2014, we completed the sale of a lirxst PO security and certain 10 securities issueé Isingle Freddie Masponsore
securitization, realizing a gain of approximateB2% million.

Sales and Refinancing of Distressed Residential M@age Loans

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we sold andnaficed distressed residential mortgage loans witrrging value, of approximately $2'
million for aggregate proceeds of approximately .83dillion, which resulted in a net realized gaiefore income taxes, of approximately ¢
million.

Acquisition of a Pool of Distressed Residential Mgage Loans

On December 29, 2014, we closed on the acquisdfoa pool of distressed residential mortgage Ild@nsan aggregate purchase pr
including accrued interest, of approximately $328ilion. The pool was comprised of performing maodified first lien mortgage loans hayiar
aggregate unpaid principal balance of approxima#87.6 million on the closing date. We used thepneceeds from a public offering of share
the Companys common stock in November 2014 and approximat2B8%® million of borrowings under a master repusehtacility with Deutsct
Bank AG, Cayman Islands Branch, to fund the actjaisi

Fourth Quarter 2014 Common Stock and Preferred Stdaividends

On December 12, 2014, our Board of Directors dedlia regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.27 penroon share for the quarter en
December 31, 2014. The dividend was paid on Jar2&rg2015 to our common stockholders of recordf&@ecember 22, 2014.

On December 12, 2014, our Board of Directors dedla Series B Preferred Stock quarterly cash didag $0.484375 per share of Se
B Preferred Stock. The dividend was paid on Jani&r2015 to our preferred stockholders of recardfalanuary 1, 2015.

Current Market Conditions and Commentar y

General.The U.S. economy showed modest signs of growtldii¥2with real gross domestic product (“GDR%timated to have expant
by 2.6% for the full year, as compared to growti2df% in 2013 and slightly below the U.S. Federat&ve’s (the “Federal Reservé&ecembe
2013 projection of 2.8% to 3.2% GDP growth in 20D4ta for the fourth quarter of 2014 suggests étanomic activity slowed during the qua
with GDP only increasing by 2.6% in the fourth gear2014 compared to an increase of 5.0% in thrd tiarter 2014. According to the minute
the Federal Reserna’December 2014 meeting, Federal Reserve policymakeect comparable GDP growth in 2015 and 201, tle centre
tendency projections for GDP growth ranging frori92.to 3.0% for 2015 and 2.5% to 3.0% for 2016, veithwer growth projected in 2017 ¢
beyond.

The labor market displayed signs of improvemerzdta4. According to the U.S. Department of Laboeg, thS. unemployment rate fell fr¢
6.7% as of the end of December 2013 to 5.6% abeoénd of December 2014, while total nonfarm pagwiployment posted an average mor
increase of 246,000 jobs in 2014 as compared @varage monthly increase of 194,000 jobs in 201Bil&\these signs of employment growth
encouraging, the labor force participation rate teasained at historically low levels, raising comsethat the current unemployment rate is ne
accurate measure of the economy’s overall health.
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As widely publicized, since 2008, the Federal Resdras undertaken three rounds of quantitativengdsi an effort to support a stron
economic recovery and to help ensure that inflatimer time, is at a rate that is most consistétit the Federal Resenstual mandate of fosteri
maximum employment and price stability. The mostent version of the Federal Reses/guantitative easing program, which is referrecs
“QE3,” was originally established in September 2@k2an opernded program to purchase an additional $40 billibAgency RMBS per mon
until the unemployment rate, among other econométicators, showed signs of improvement. This pnogrevhen combined with the Fede
Reserve's programs to extend its holdings' averegarity, or “operation twist,and reinvest principal payments from its holdin§agency debt ar
Agency RMBS into Agency RMBS, was expected to inseethe Federal Reserve's holdings of l@mgy securities by approximately $85 billion
month through the end of 2012. As “operation twistpired in December 2012, the Federal Reserve aweduthat it would continue purchas
additional Agency RMBS by about $40 billion per rttomand longeterm U.S. Treasury securities at a pace of $4%ohilper month, and wou
continue its policy of reinvesting the principalyp@ents from its holdings of Agency debt and AgeR®BS in Agency RMBS. This accommodal
monetary policy has contributed to historically kevels of interest rates and higher valuationsAgency RMBS.

On December 18, 2013, given indications that th®. @conomy had improved sufficiently, the Federasétve announced that it wo
reduce the pace of its purchases of (i) lortgem U.S. Treasury securities to $40 billion pemthoand (ii) Agency RMBS to $35 billion per mor
and that it would likely reduce the pace of assgtcipases in further measured steps throughout 20¥dture meetings. The Federal Res
continued to reduce the pace of purchases throu@dd, concluding its asset purchases under QE®a&nd of October 2014.

Notwithstanding the ending of QE3, the Federal Oanket Committee (the “FOMC™as maintained its intent to keep the target rdor
the federal funds rate between 0% and 0.25% fotitie being and in determining how long to mainthiis target range, the FOMC will assess
realized and expected progress towards its obgafvmaximum employment and 2.0% inflation. Expteotafor when the Federal Reserve °
move the target range higher are varied, with serpecting an increase in the federal funds rateyea 2015, while others do not expect
movement until 2016. For now, it appears the maekgects no change from the federal funds raté latgi 2015 or into 2016 with the yield cu
rate on the 10-year U.S. Treasury security dediiaring 2014 from 3.01% on January 2, 2014 to%.96 February 9, 2015.

Single-Family Homes and Residential Mortgage Marigbwth in the residential real estate market deatde during 2014 resulting
modest home price increases as compared to 2018.rBlaased by S&P Indices for its S&P/C&teHer Home Price Indices for November 2
showed that, on average, home prices increased fé3t#te 20-City Composite over November 2013. Hesvesince posting a 13.2% year-oyeal
gain in January 2014, the rate of year-oyear home price increase slowed substantially tittout the balance of 2014. While home prices irgee
moderately in 2014, singl@mily housing starts steadily increased through?di4. According to data provided by the U.S. Depant o
Commerce, privatelpwned housing starts for single family homes avedag seasonally adjusted annual rate of 707,708gltive fourth quarter
2014, 652,000 during the third quarter of 2014,,8@6 during the second quarter of 2014 and 602¢R0hg the first quarter of 2014. Privately-
owned housing starts for single family homes avedag seasonally adjusted annual rate of 617,6@teigear ended December 31, 2013. We e
the singlefamily residential real estate market to continnénprove modestly in the near term, but beliewa the run up in home prices over
past couple of years, the hesitancy of finste home buyers to enter the market and the asedirdifficulty that many borrowers face in trying
obtain mortgage financing will continue to weigh bausing gains for single family homes in 2015. Séheonditions have resulted in redt
mortgage originations, and we expect this trentlaihtinue in 2015. Improving single family housifumdamentals should have a positive impau
the overall credit profile of our portfolio of disssed residential loans, while reduced mortgaiggnations should result in a tighter supply of RBL

Multi-family Housing Apartments and other residential rental propergesain one of the better performing segments ottmemercial re:
estate market. According to data provided by th&. Department of Commerce in January 2015, startawti-family homes containing five units
more averaged a seasonally adjusted annual r&&00f00 during the fourth quarter of 2014, 362,d0fng the third quarter of 2014, 346,700 du
the second quarter of 2014 and 311,700 duringitsieqfuarter of 2014. Housing starts on médinily homes containing five units or more averag
seasonally adjusted annual rate of 293,700 in ¢ze gnded December 31, 2013. Moreover, even withgbent growth in supply, vacancy trenc
the multi-family sector appear to remain stablecading to the third quarter of 2014 Multifamily ¥ancy Index (“MVI"), which is produced by tl
National Association of Home Builders and survéyes multifamily housing indust’s perception of vacancies, from the first quarfe2@13 throug
the third quarter of 2014, the MVI has producedinegs between 37 and 42, this after reaching a bdfgt0 during the second quarter of 2009 (
higher numbers indicating higher vacancies). Wéebelthe performance of muli@mily housing over the past year is due, in parta significar
decline in new construction during the recent ectiscdownturn and increased demand from former hamneos, the hesitancy of firime hom
buyers to purchase a home and the continued diffithat many borrowers face in trying to obtainrtgage financing. In turn, these factors t
contributed to stronger rental income growth in yn&hS. markets and recent valuation improvementsrfolti-family properties and, we belie'
negligible delinquencies on new multi-family loaoriginated by Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae.
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Developments at Fannie Mae and Freddie MRayments on the Agency ARMs and fixede Agency RMBS in which we invest
guaranteed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. In additilthough not guaranteed by Freddie Mac, aiwfmultifamily CMBS has been issued
securitization vehicles sponsored by Freddie Mattha Agency 10s we invest in are issued by FaMae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae. As broe
publicized, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are pregemitler federal conservatorship as the U.S. Govenarrontinues to evaluate the future of tl
entities and what role the U.S. Government showdticue to play in the housing markets in the fetuSince being placed under fed
conservatorship, there have been a number of patgpodroduced, both from industry groups and kg thS. Congress, relating to changing the
of the U.S. government in the mortgage market aforming or eliminating Fannie Mae and Freddie Macemains unclear how the U.S. Cong
will move forward on such reform at this time andawimpact, if any, this reform will have on morggaREITs.

Credit SpreadsCredit spreads in the residential and commerciakeia generally continued to tighten further dur@l4, continuing
trend that started in 2012. Typically when cregitesaids widen, credit-sensitive assets such as @nh@snultifamily CMBS, as well as Agency IC
are negatively impacted, while tightening creditesls typically have a positive impact on the valisuch assets.

Conditions for asset gathering were challengingughout much of 2014, due, in part, to tightenipgeads. In our view, further tighten
of credit spreads has largely resulted from theinaad pursuit of credit sensitive assets by ai@amt amount of investable capital, thereby phg
upward pressure on the pricing of the credit semsissets that we currently target. Although thésd has had a positive impact on the valt
many of the credit sensitive assets in our exigtiogfolio, which in turn helped to move our booklwe per common share to $7.07 as of Dece
31, 2014, it has resulted in a more challengingerirreturn environment for new investment in thasset classes, particularly for new médtiily
CMBS product. Given the current return environmeve, expect to remain selective and opportunistizv@asource new credit sensitive produc
2015, but remain focused in the current environn@nallocating greater capital to credit sensitasets that rely on asset selection rather
leverage to generate our targeted returns.

Financing markets and liquiditypuring 2014, the closing yield of the tgear U.S. Treasury Note traded between 3.01% &P, settlin
at 2.17% at December 31, 2014. Subsequent to Dexe®ih 2014, the bond market has experienced afisggt amount of volatility, with th
closing yield on the ten-year U.S. Treasury Noténfa as low as 1.68%. The 30-day London Interb&@fkered Rate (“LIBOR”)was 0.16% :
December 31, 2014, marking a decrease of approgiynatbasis point from December 31, 2013. We exjmgetest rates to rise over the longer 1
as the U.S. and global economic outlook improves.

Significant Estimates and Critical Accounting Polidges

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsoimformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires the usE estimates, judgments &
assumptions that affect reported amounts. Thegeaists are based, in part, on our judgment andgssns regarding various economic condit
that we believe are reasonable based on factsianonstances existing at the time of reporting. Tesults of these estimates affect reported am
of assets, liabilities and accumulated other cotmmsive income at the date of the consolidatechiiz statements and the reported amour
income, expenses and other comprehensive inconmegdbe periods presented.

Changes in the estimates and assumptions could &awmaterial effect on these financial statementscofinting policies and estima
related to specific components of our consoliddiedncial statements are disclosed in the notesuo consolidated financial statements
accordance with SEC guidance, those material atitgupolicies and estimates that we believe aretmitical to an investos understanding of o
financial results and condition and which requibenplex management judgment are discussed below.

Revenue Recognitiarinterest income on our investment securities andwnmortgage loans is accrued based on the odtstaprincipa
balance and their contractual terms. Premiums asabuants associated with investment securities randgage loans at the time of purchas
origination are amortized into interest income oter life of such securities using the effectivelgimethod. Adjustments to premium amortize
are made for actual prepayment activity.

Interest income on our credit sensitive securigesh as our CLOs and certain of our CMBS that werehased at a discount to par valu
recognized based on the security’s effective isterate. The effective interest rate on these #ieuis based on managemeangstimate from ea
security of the projected cash flows, which arénested based on the Compasmydssumptions related to fluctuations in interatts, prepayme
speeds and the timing and amount of credit lo3esat least a quarterly basis, the Company revawds if appropriate, makes adjustments to its
flow projections based on input and analysis remifrom external sources, internal models, anfudgment about interest rates, prepayment |
the timing and amount of credit losses, and othetofs. Changes in cash flows from those originptyjected, or from those estimated at the
evaluation, may result in a prospective changéenyield/interest income recognized on these SEgestri
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Based on the projected cash flows from the Compsafingt loss PO multfamily CMBS purchased at a discount to par valyagrion of th
purchase discount is designated as non-accretabtdgse discount or credit reserve, which partiaiijigates the Company’risk of loss on tt
mortgages collateralizing such CMBS, and is noteetgd to be accreted into interest income. The amdesignated as a credit reserve ma
adjusted over time, based on the actual performahdbe security, its underlying collateral, actaad projected cash flow from such collate
economic conditions and other factors. If the penfance of a security with a credit reserve is niaverable than forecasted, a portion of the arr
designated as credit reserve may be accretedriteéest income over time. Conversely, if the penfance of a security with a credit reserve is
favorable than forecasted, the amount designateulealit reserve may be increased, or impairmentgelsaand writedowns of such securities t
new cost basis could result.

With respect to interest rate swaps that have eehlwesignated as hedges, any net payments undleiGtoations in the fair value of, s.
swaps will be recognized in current earnings.

Fair Value. The Company has established and documented precissdetermining fair values. Fair value is bas@dn quoted mark
prices, where available. If listed prices or qsciee not available, then fair value is based uptamnally developed models that primarily use it
that are market-based or independestiyrced market parameters, including interestyigie curves. Such inputs to the valuation methoggplar¢
unobservable and significant to the fair value meament. The Company’s 10s, POs, multi-family loaeid in securitization trusts and mutimily
CDOs are considered to be the most significanisdfir value estimates.

The Company’s valuation methodologies are describhélote 14 — Fair Value of Financial Instrumenistiuded in Item 8 of this Annu
Report on Form 10-K.

Residential Mortgage Loans Held in Securitizatiorusis — Impaired Loans (net)mpaired residential mortgage loans held in
securitization trusts are recorded at amortized less specific loan loss reserves. Impaired Icaneris based on managemsrestimate of the r
realizable value taking into consideration localrke& conditions of the distressed property, updategraisal values of the property and estirr
expenses required to remediate the impaired loan.

Variable Interest Entities- A variable interest entity (“VIE")s an entity that lacks one or more of the charisties of a voting intere
entity. A VIE is defined as an entity in which déguinvestors do not have the characteristics aoatrolling financial interest or do not hs
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finandés activities without additional subordinatedédiial support from other parties. The Comj
consolidates a VIE when it is the primary benefigiaf such VIE. As primary beneficiary, it has bdtie power to direct the activities that n
significantly impact the economic performance of MIE and a right to receive benefits or absorlsdgsof the entity that could be potenti
significant to the VIE. The Company is requiredrézonsider its evaluation of whether to consolidat¥IE each reporting period, based u
changes in the facts and circumstances pertainititet VIE.

Loan Consolidation Reporting Requirement for Certlliulti-Family K-Series SecuritizationsAs of December 31, 2014, we owned 1(
of the first loss securities of the “ConsolidateeSKries.” The Consolidated Beries collectively represents, as of DecembefB14 and Decemb
31, 2013, six separate Freddie Mac sponsored fanitily loan K-Series securitizations, of which we, or one of special purpose entities, or SF
own the first loss PO securities and certain IQus@es. We determined that the Consolidate®&ies were VIEs and that we are the prir
beneficiary of the Consolidated K-Series. As a ltesme are required to consolidate the Consolidde8eries’ underlying multfamily loan:s
including their liabilities, income and expensesour consolidated financial statements. We havetedethe fair value option on the assets
liabilities held within the Consolidated K-Serieghich requires that changes in valuations in threetssand liabilities of the ConsolidatedSerie:
will be reflected in our consolidated statementpérations.

Fair Value Option- The fair value option provides an election thabwaf companies to irrevocably elect fair value foaficial assets a
liabilities on an instrument-binstrument basis at initial recognition. Changefain value for assets and liabilities for whicle telection is made w
be recognized in earnings as they occur. The Coynpéected the fair value option for its Agency $@ategy and the ConsolidatedSéries (a
defined in Note 2 to our consolidated financiatesteents included in this report).

Acquired Distressed Residential Mortgage Loanscquired distressed residential mortgage loanshihge evidence of deteriorated cr
quality at acquisition are accounted for under ARbtopic 3100, "Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteted Credit Quality” ("AS
310-30"). Under ASC 3180, the acquired loans may be aggregated and atecbfor as a pool of loans if the loans being aggred have comm:
risk characteristics. A pool is accounted for asngle asset with a single composite interest aatkan aggregate expectation of cash flows. O
pool is assembled, it is treated as if it was @am Ifor purposes of applying the accounting guidanc
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Under ASC 310-30, the excess of cash flows expetctdk collected over the carrying amount of thenk) referred to as thaccretabl
yield,” is accreted into interest income over the life lué toans in each pool or individually using a leyald methodology. Accordingly, o
acquired distressed residential mortgage loansuated for under ASC 3180 are not subject to classification as nonaccelassification in th
same manner as our residential mortgage loansvikrat not distressed when acquired by us. Rathiereist income on acquired distressed resids
mortgage loans relates to the accretable yieldgrezed at the pool level or on an individual loaasis, and not to contractual interest payn
received at the loan level. The difference betweamntractually required principal and interest pagitaeand the cash flows expected to be colle
referred to as the “non-accretable differende¢ludes estimates of both the impact of prepaymand expected credit losses over the life o
individual loan, or the pool (for loans groupediat pool).

We monitor actual cash collections against our etgtons, and revised cash flow expectations aepgyed as necessary. A decrea:
expected cash flows in subsequent periods may atelithat the loan pool or individual loan, as amlie, is impaired thus requiring
establishment of an allowance for loan losses bliage to the provision for loan losses. An inceeasexpected cash flows in subsequent pe
initially reduces any previously established alloe® for loan losses by the increase in the presdoe of cash flows expected to be collected,
results in a recalculation of the amount of acdiletgield for the loan pool. The adjustment of atable yield due to an increase in expected
flows is accounted for prospectively as a changestimate. The additional cash flows expected tacditected are reclassified from the non-
accretable difference to the accretable yield, tiedamount of periodic accretion is adjusted adogigd over the remaining life of the loans in
pool or individual loan, as applicable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

A discussion of recent accounting pronouncemendstiaa possible effects on our financial statemeniscluded in “Note 2 —Summary ¢
Significant Accounting Policies” included in Iteno8this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Capital Allocation

The following tables set forth our allocated cdpiitp investment type at December 31, 2014 and Déeerl, 2013, respectively (dol
amounts in thousands):

At December 31, 2014:
Distressed Residential

Agency Agency Multi- Residential  Securitized
RMBS (1) I0s Family ) Loans®) Loans(4)  Other (5) Total
Carrying value $ 660,37¢ $ 119,13. $ 430,78 $ 587,86( $ 149,61+ $ 41,38 $1,98915
Liabilities:
Callable(6) (585,05, (66,919 — (238,949 — — (890,919
Non-callable — — (83,519  (149,36)  (145,54) (45,000 (423,419
Hedges (Netj 7) 3,501 11,41¢ — — — — 14,91¢
Cash(8) 2,781 40,57: — — — 72,80¢ 116,16:
Other 2,731 3,32¢ (5,569 39,75¢ 1,531 (29,750 12,03:
Net capital allocate $ 8433 $ 107,530 $ 341,700 $ 239,30t $ 560 $ 3944: $ 817,92

@ Includes both Agency ARMs and Agency fixed iaidBS.

@ The Company determined it is the primary beneficiafrthe Consolidated K-Series and has consoliddtedConsolidated kSeries into th
Company’s financial statements. A reconciliatiorotw financial statements as of December 31, 20ldvis:
Multi-Family loans held in securitization trusts,fair value $ 8,365,51.
Multi-Family CDOs, at fair value (8,048,05)
Net carrying valut 317,46
Investment securities available for sale, at falue held in securitization trusts 38,59
Total CMBS, at fair value 356,05!
First mortgage loan, mezzanine loan and prefemeidyeinvestments 74,73¢
Securitized debt (83,519
Other (5,569
Net Capital in Mult-Family $ 341,70
(3) Includes mortgage loans held for sale with a cagyalue of $5.2 million that is included in the fpanys accompanying consolida
balance sheet in receivables and other assets.
(4) Represents our residential mortgage loans helddargization trusts. We securitized these loarz0i5.
(5)  Other includes CLOs having a carrying value 6.8 million, non-Agency RMBS and loans held foréstment. Other nooallable liabilitie:
consist of $45.0 million in subordinated debentures
(6)  Includes repurchase agreements.
(7) Includes derivative assets, derivative lialgBti payable for securities purchased and restrazsll posted as margin.

(8)
Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheeteivables and other assets.
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At December 31, 2013:

Distressed Residential

Agency Agency Multi- Residential  Securitized
RMBS (1) I0s Family @ Loans Loans®) Other (4 Total
Carrying value $ 74526¢ $ 131,60¢ $ 360,43( $ 26539 $ 163,237 $ 39,82F $1,705,75
Liabilities:
Callable(>) (687,92) (94,699 — — — (8,500 (791,12
Non-callable — — (135,09) (169,87) (158,410 (45,000 (508,379
Hedges (Netj6) 3,47¢ 11,25¢ — — — — 14,73(
Cash( — 30,44 — — — 31,79¢ 62,23¢
Other 1,91¢ 1,861 1,21¢ 7,97¢ 1,74¢ (17,279 (2,560
Net capital allocate $ 62,72 $ 8046¢ $ 22655 $ 103,49« $ 657 $ 846 $ 480,66t
@ Includes both Agency ARMs and Agency fixed iaidBS.

(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)
@)

The Company determined it is the primary beneficiafrthe Consolidated K-Series and has consoliddtedConsolidated kSeries into th
Company’s financial statements. A reconciliatioroto financial statements as of December 31, 2008ws:

Multi-Family loans held in securitization trusts,fair value $ 8,111,02;
Multi-Family CDOs, at fair value (7,871,020
Net carrying valut 240,00:
Investment securities available for sale, at falue held in securitization trusts 92,57¢
Total CMBS, at fair value 332,58(
First mortgage loan, mezzanine loan and prefemeidyeinvestments 27,85(
Securitized debt (135,09)
Other 1,21¢
Net Capital in Mult-Family $ 226,55!

Represents our residential mortgage loans helddaorgization trusts. We securitized these loar2005.

Other includes CLOs having a carrying value 88.8 million, nonAgency RMBS and loans held for investment. Othéiabke liabilities
include an $8.5 million repurchase agreement onGu® securities and other naadlable liabilities consist of $45.0 million in lsordinate:
debentures.

Includes repurchase agreements.

Includes derivative assets, derivative lialgBti payable for securities purchased and restraztsl posted as margin.

Includes $30.4 million held in overnight depositsour Agency IO portfolio to be used for tradingposes. Such deposit is included in
Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheeteivables and other assets.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2014 tbe Year Ended December 31, 2013

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we repoetthcome attributable to common stockholders &4 million, as compared to |
income attributable to common stockholders of $66ikion for the prior year. The main componentgtoé change in net income for the year el
December 31, 2014 as compared to the prior yeadetedled in the following table (amounts in thouds, except per share data):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 $ Change
Net interest incom $ 77,837 $ 60,54¢ $ 17,28t¢
Total other income $ 105,20¢ $ 29,06: $ 76,14¢
Total general, administrative and other expenses $ 40,45¢ $ 19917 % 20,54
Income from continuing operations before income$ax $ 142,58t $ 69,69: $ 72,89:
Income tax expense $ 6,398 $ 73¢ % 5,65¢€
Net income $ 136,19: $ 68,95 $ 67,23¢
Preferred stock dividends $ 581z $ 3,56¢ $ 2,244
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 130,37¢ $ 65,387 $ 64,99:
Basic income per common share $ 1.4¢ $ 1.11 % 0.37
Diluted income per common share $ 148 $ 1.11 % 0.37

Net Interest Income

The increase in net interest income for the yededrDecember 31, 2014 as compared to the prioriggaimarily attributable to an incree
in net interest spread in 2014 due to greater invest allocation to credit sensitive assets in 2@eginning in 2013 and continuing throughout &
2014, the Company increasingly allocated both neevrainvested capital to credit sensitive, higher yietdinvestments and allocated less capit
its Agency RMBS portfolio, which is lower-yieldind\s of December 31, 2014, investments in distresesidiential loans, mulfamily CMBS ant
other multifamily investments increased to $1.0 billion as panred to $625.8 million as of December 31, 2018ulastantial portion of which w
funded by three public stock offerings in 2014 whigenerated $296.5 million in net proceeds to Uss Selective allocation of capital favora
impacted the Company’s net interest margin dutiregytear as detailed in the “Quarterly Comparatie¢ INterest Spread” section below.

Other Income

Total other income increased by $76.1 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2014 as compared forittreyear. The increases w
primarily driven by:

An increase in realized gain on investment seasriéind related hedges of $52.8 million as comptarélde prior year. The Compe
sold certain multfFamily CMBS securities in the third and fourth guess of 2014, resulting in a realized gain amount;m$39.1 milliol
for the year ended December 31, 2014. This realizéd was partially offset by $3.4 million of loga extinguishment of debt relatec
the early termination of a multi-family recoursedincing that was collateralized by certain of owltrfamily CMBS, including th
security we sold in the third quarter of 2014.

In addition, realized gains from the Company’s AgelO portfolio hedging activities increased by &1 &illion for the December 31,
2014 as compared to the prior year.

An increase in unrealized loss on investment stesrand related hedges of $13.1 million for tharyended December 31, 2014
compared to the same periods in 2013, which wedreapily related to our Agency IO strategihe Agency IO portfolio is an active
managed strategy resulting in both unrealized a&adized activity. Over time we expect the unrealized realized activity of o
Agency 10 strategy to offset and result in no maténcome or loss.

An increase in realized gains on distressed resalemortgage loans of $12.8 million for the yearded December 31, 2014,
compared to the prior year. The realized gains vaeméved from loan refinancings, workouts and resalith the majority of tt
realized gains on these assets being attributabten resales during the first and fourth quantér2014.

An increase in net unrealized gains on ntaltiily loans and debt held in securitization trusts$25.4 million for the year end
December 31, 2014, as compared to the prior ydaichais primarily due to improved pricing on our itnfamily CMBS investmen
that has been driven, in part, by greater marketzshel for this product.

An increase in other income of $2.1 million for §ear ended December 31, 2014, as compared tarithreypar, which is primarily
function of an increase in income related to oWo2ivnership interest in RiverBanc.
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Comparative General, Administrative and Other Expas(dollar amounts in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

General, Administrative and Other Expenses: 2014 2013 $ Change
Salaries, benefits and directors’ compensation $ 4,281 $ 2,78¢ $ 1,49¢
Professional fees 2,61¢ 2,721 (103
Base management and incentive fees 24,53( 8,13: 16,391
Expenses on distressed residential mortgage loans 6,42¢ 3,86¢ 2,561
Other 2,601 2,40¢ 192
Total $ 40,45¢ $ 19,917 $ 20,54

The increase in salaries, benefits and directamsipensation in 2014 as compared to the prior yedué to an increase in the performance-
based compensation.

The increase in base management and incentivéddedse year ended December 31, 2014, as comparex tprior year is primarily due
incentive fees earned by RiverBanc from the salth@fmultifamily CMBS securities during the third and foucdharters of 2014. Base manager
and incentive fees for the year ended Decembe2@4 were also driven higher by the increase iitalgilocated to assets managed by our ext
managers and the improved performance of the a$sstsnanage for us, which resulted in incentiesfearned.

The increase in expenses related to distressetkreiil mortgage loans islated to the upfront due diligence costs relébenur purchase
a large pool of distressed residential loans indbemer 2014 and to a higher average balance of loatsdanding, thereby resulting in hig
servicing costs, work-out costs and due diligerassc.
Income Tax Expenst

The increase in income tax expense for the yeagdeBacember 31, 2014 as compared to the prior weer primarily due to the increase
realized gains resulting from loan sales in outrdssed residential loan portfolio. A gain on daten loan activity is transacted in a taxable R
subsidiary for REIT compliance purposes and isexttlip local, state and federal taxes.
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2013 tbe Year Ended December 31, 2012

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we repodethocome attributable to common stockholders d&.46nillion, as compared to t
income attributable to common stockholders of $28ilion for the prior year. The main componentgtoé change in net income for the year el

December 31, 2013 as compared to the prior yeadededled in the following table (dollar amountdliwusands, except per share data):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 $ Change
Net interest incom $ 60,54¢ $ 31,42: $ 29,12;
Total other income $ 29,06: $ 9,10 $ 19,957
Total general, administrative and other expenses $ 19917 % 11,427 % 8,49(
Income from continuing operations before income$ax $ 69,69 $ 29,10 $ 40,59«
Income tax expense $ 73¢ 3 93z 3 (193
Net income $ 68,95¢ $ 28,18: $ 40,77
Preferred stock dividends $ 356 $ - $ 3,56¢
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 65,387 $ 28,27¢ 3% 37,10¢
Basic income per common share $ 1.11 % 1.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Diluted income per common share $ 1.11 % 1.0 $ 0.0z

In general, the significant increases in a numiieéh® line items above are largely a function & growth in the Company’s stockholders’
equity from $322.0 million as of December 31, 2@22$480.7 million as of December 31, 2013 and theesponding growth in the size of
Company’s portfolio of interest earning assets, loiord with an improved investment environment fir Company’s multi-family CMBS.
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Net Interest Income

The significant increase in net interest income®13 is directly attributable to the growth in curerage interest earning assets, w
increased by $294.5 million in 2013 as compareth#oprior year. During the year ended December2813, the Company increasingly alloce
capital to credit sensitive, higher yielding invashts and allocated less capital to its Agency RMB®&folio, which is loweryielding. As o
December 31, 2013, investments in distressed masdidoans, multi-family CMBS and other mufamily investments increased to $625.8 millio
compared to $255.0 million as of December 31, 20 particular, this selective allocation of capfavorably impacted net interest margin for
third and fourth quarters of 2013.

The combination of investment allocation to cresginsitive assets and decreased prepayment ratéededs a 77 basis point increase in
interest spread when comparing the fourth quaftg0a3 to the fourth quarter of 2012. During tharyended December 31, 2012, the Compang
interest margin experienced a steady decline throuigthe year, impacted, in part, by (i) the digomionate impact that higher yielding, C
investments had on a much smaller portfolio ofriege earning assets during the first half of 2048 (ii) the expansion of the Compasyowe
yielding Agency RMBS portfolio in the second halfa®12, which was driven by the deployment of publifering proceeds during that tirr

Other Income

Total other income increased by $20.0 million fog tear ended December 31, 2013 as compared poithieyear. The changes in total ot
income for the year ended December 31, 2013 as @@upo the previous year were primarily driven by:

e an increase in net unrealized gains on nfafiily loans and debt held in securitization trusfs$24.8 million for the year end
December 31, 2013 as compared to the previous geararily due to improved pricing on our muféimily CMBS investments as w
as an increase in mufiamily CMBS investments as compared to the previmes. As of December 31, 2013, the net carryifgevat
our multifamily CMBS investments, which measures unrealigashs and losses through earnings, amounts to sppately $240.
million as compared to approximately $123.3 millmrDecember 31, 2012;

e a decrease in unrealized loss on investment siexsudahd related hedges of $9.4 million and a deer@arealized gain on investm
securities and related hedges of $17.0 milliontfer year ended December 31, 2013, respectivelgpampared to the previous ye
which is primarily related to our Agency IO porifaol Increased interest rate volatility combinedhwitiquidity in the inverse 10 mark
resulted in larger than expected losses in thaegyy during the second quarter of 2013, with diglaeversal realized during the th
and fourth quarters of 2013; and

e an increase in realized gains on distressed resatlemortgage loans of $1.5 million for the yeaded December 31, 2013 as comp
to the previous year. The realized gains are dérivem loan refinancings, workouts and resaleshlite majority of the realiz
income in 2013 from loan refinancings. The Compargvestment in this asset class did not commentktie fourth quarter of 2012.

Comparative General, Administrative and Other Expges(dollar amounts in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

General, Administrative and Other Expenses: 2013 2012 $ Change
Salaries, benefits and directors’ compensation $ 2,78 $ 2,07¢ % 70¢
Professional fees 2,721 1,79¢ 927
Management fees 8,13¢ 5,01( 3,122
Expenses on distressed residential mortgage loans 3,86¢ — 3,86¢
Other 2,40¢ 2,54¢ (13€)
Total $ 19917 $ 11,427 $ 8,49(

The increase in general, administrative and othpemrses was largely attributable to the increaseanagement fees and expenses rela
our distressed residential mortgage loan investsdrite increase in management fees was driverrge lgart by the increase in assets manag
our external managers. The increase in expensaedeio distressed residential mortgage loansestalthe significant increase in our investme
this asset class as compared to the prior year.digieessed residential mortgage loan strategyc#ipi has a higher cost, as loan servicing
resolution processing on distressed loans is mpeeationally intensive than performing loans.
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Quarterly Comparative Net Interest Spread

Our results of operations for our investment pdidfaluring a given period typically reflects thetriaterest income earned on
investment portfolio of RMBS, CMBS (including CMBEeld in securitization trusts), residential seczei loans, distressed residential Ic
(including distressed residential loans held irusigization trusts), loans held for investment,riedeld for sale and CLOs (collectively, olmteres
Earning Assets”)The net interest spread is impacted by factors asabur cost of financing, the interest rate thatiovestments bear and our inte
rate hedging strategies. Furthermore, the amourgremium or discount paid on purchased portfolieesiments and the prepayment rate
portfolio investments will impact the net intersgiread as such factors will be amortized over #peeed term of such investments. Realizec
unrealized gains and losses on TBAs, Eurodollarfaedsury futures and other derivatives associatdtdour Agency IO investments, which do
utilize hedge accounting for financial reportingrmases, are included in other income (expenseuinstatement of operations, and therefore
reflected in the data set forth below.

The following table sets forth, among other thingg net interest spread for our portfolio of letrEarning Assets by quarter for
twelve most recently completed quarters, excludiregcosts of our subordinated debentures:

Average Weighted
Interest Average
Earning Yield
Assets on Interest
($ millions) @ Earning Cost of Funds ~ Netlnterest
Quarter Ended (2) Assets(3) (4) Spread(5)
December 31, 2014 $ 1,566.: 6.23% 1.91% 4.32%
September 30, 2014 $ 1,609.. 6.37% 2.09% 4.28%
June 30, 2014 $ 1,625.( 6.6(% 2.0(% 4.6(%
March 31, 2014 $ 1,632.: 6.4(% 2.01% 4.3%
December 31, 2013 $ 1,644." 5.9%% 1.8% 4.1(%
September 30, 2013 $ 1,586.¢ 5.21% 1.62% 3.5%
June 30, 2013 $ 1,524.: 4.8%% 1.41% 3.48%
March 31, 2013 $ 1,446.: 4.8€% 1.38% 3.48%
December 31, 2012 $ 1,350.: 4.4% 1.1%% 3.3"%
September 30, 2012 $ 698.t 5.99% 1.2% 4.7%
June 30, 2012 $ 409.4 7.28% 1.3% 5.95%
March 31, 2012 $ 396.¢ 7.5%% 1.01% 6.58%

(1) Average Interest Earning Assets for the quartetugbes all Consolidated Series assets other than those securities issuttelsecuritizatior
comprising the Consolidated K-Series that are dgtoavned by us.

(2) our Average Interest Earning Assets is calculatath €uarter based on daily average amortized cost.

(3) Our Weighted Average Yield on Interest Earning Asseas calculated by dividing our annualized irgeiecome from Interest Earning Ass

for the quarter by our average Interest Earningessior the quarter.

Our Cost of Funds was calculated by dividing ounualized interest expense from our Interest Eariisgets for the quarter by our aver

financing arrangements, portfolio investments, Besiial CDOs and securitized debt for the qua@er. cost of funds includes the impact of

liability interest rate hedging activities.

Net Interest Spread is the difference between oeigiifed Average Yield on Interest Earning Assets@r Cost of Fund:

(4

~

(5

~
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Prepayment Histor

The following table sets forth the actual constaeipayment rates (“CPR”) for selected asset clabyeguarter, for the periods indicated:

Weighted
Average
Agency Agency Agency Non-Agency Residential for Overall
Quarter Ended ARMs Fixed Rate I0s RMBS Securitizations Portfolio
December 31, 2014 12.2% 6.5% 14.¢% 13.7% 5.8% 11.1%
September 30, 2014 20.5% 9.2% 15.2% 18.7% 5.4% 13.1%
June 30, 2014 9.¢% 6.7% 12.7% 10.5% 7.C% 10.1%
March 31, 2014 8.8% 5.2% 11.2% 9.7% 7.5% 8.8%
December 31, 2013 6.7% 5.2% 13.5% 16.£% 12.¢% 10.(%
September 30, 2013 16.£% 8.5% 20.4% 23.6% 12.(% 15.%%
June 30, 2013 22.2% 6.4% 21.%% 18.2% 6.5% 15.%%
March 31, 2013 20.8% 3.6% 21.6% 15.%% 10.2% 12.<%
December 31, 2012 14.5% 1.€% 21.&% 16.2% 11.€% 12.5%
September 30, 2012 17.5% 2.(% 19.2% 15.1% 4.€% 15.1%
June 30, 2012 24.&% N/A 19.%% 15.2% 7.4% 16.€%
March 31, 2012 18.1% N/A 19.6% 13.2% 8.1% 16.€%

When prepayment expectations over the remainiegolifassets increase, we have to amortize premiwersa shorter time period result
in a reduced yield to maturity on our investmerge#s. Conversely, if prepayment expectations deerehe premium would be amortized ov
longer period resulting in a higher yield to maturin addition, the market values and cash flowsnf our Agency 10s can be materially adver
affected during periods of elevated prepaymentsnWiritor our prepayment experience on a monthlyskersd adjust the amortization rate to re
current market conditions.

The weighted average prepayment rates have besivedy stable during 2014, with mortgage ratesaiging around historical lows for
extended period of time. Unless mortgage finandiagomes easier to obtain in the future or homeegalmprove in a meaningful way, we don’
expect a significant change in prepayment ratesrgikie current environment.

Portfolio Asset Yields

The following table summarizes the Companwignificant interest earning assets for the guazind year ended December 31, 2
classified by relevant categories (dollar amourthousands):

Quarter Ended December 31, 2014 Year Ended December 31, 2014

Average Average

Interest Interest

Earning Earning

Assets(t)  Coupon(®) Yield (2) Assets(!)  Coupon ) Yield (2)
Agency Fixed Rate RMBS $ 494,97 2.9&% 1.95% $ 523,93¢ 2.9% 1.95%
Multi-family Investments $ 287,50t 0.12% 12.7¢% $ 302,00¢ 0.14% 12.4%
Distressed Residential Loaf3 $ 271,53 6.25% 7.8% $ 248,97( 6.01% 7.92%
Agency ARMs $ 186,03! 2.81% 1.8¢% $ 198,38: 2.9(% 1.9¢%
Residential Securitized Loans $ 157,10: 2.47% 242% $ 161,59¢ 2.48% 2.41%
Agency 10s $ 138,78 5.5¢% 11.3% $ 146,00: 5.5¢% 13.05%
CLOs $ 25,37 4.21% 4142 $ 22,33¢ 4.17% 40.9%%

D our Average Interest Earning Assets is calculasskd on daily average amortized cost during thegective periods.
Coupons and yields are calculated based on amaitiz®t and daily average balances during the réspexeriods.
Distressed residential loan yield is net of prawisior loan losses
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The following table summarizes the Compangignificant interest earning assets for the gquasnd year ended December 31, 2
classified by relevant categories (dollar amourthousands):

Quarter Ended December 31, 2013 Year Ended December 31, 2013

Average Average

Interest Interest

Earning Earning

Assetsl)  Coupon(® Yield (@ Assets))  Coupon () Yield (@
Agency Fixed Rate RMBS $ 567,90: 2.94% 2.06% $ 595,63t 2.94% 2.04%
Multi-family Investments $ 272,80: 0.12% 11.7% $ 233,47 0.12% 12.0(%
Distressed Residential Loans $ 261,22¢ 5.62% 742% $ 158,19( 5.62% 7.4%
Agency ARMs $ 216,22: 2.92% 221% $ 234,83¢ 2.9% 1.56%
Residential Securitized Loans $ 164,23t 2.67% 255% $ 172,46¢ 2.82% 2.7%
Agency 10s $ 140,26t 5.65% 14.7% $ 135,38( 5.7/% 10.56%
CLOs $ 17,77¢ 4.22% 41.3¢% $  15,95¢ 4.1% 40.55%

D our Average Interest Earning Assets is calculasskd on daily average amortized cost during theective periods.
Coupons and yields are calculated based on ambitizet and daily average balances during the régpqeeriods.

The following table summarizes the Companwignificant interest earning assets for the guaand year ended December 31, 2
classified by relevant categories (dollar amourthousands):

Quarter Ended December 31, 2012 Year Ended December 31, 2012

Average Average

Interest Interest

Earning Earning

Assets(l)  Coupon(® Yield () Assets))  Coupon (@) Yield ()
Agency Fixed Rate RMBS $ 583,13 2.9€% 3.0(% $ 173,51 3.0% 2.35%
Multi-family Investments $ 102,45: 0.11% 11.4% $ 76,70¢ 0.1(% 11.02%
Distressed Residential Loans N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Agency ARMs $ 277,91 2.98% 1.7%% $ 146,50( 3.12% 1.95%
Residential Securitized Loans $ 195,21! 2.91% 2.81% $ 193,47- 2.9¢% 2.8&%
Agency 10s $ 101,12 5.9% 571% $ 83,38t 5.71% 13.42%
CLOs $ 13,17« 4.35% 40.5% $  11,98¢ 4.4™% 40.41%

D our Average Interest Earning Assets is calculateskbt on daily average amortized cost during theertive periods.
@ Coupons and yields are calculated based on amitizet and daily average balances during the régpqeeriods.

Financial Condition

As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately $b0lsn of total assets, as compared to approxéiya$9.9 billion of total assets as
December 31, 2013. A significant portion of ouredssepresents the assets comprising the ConsalidaESeries, which we consolidate under
accounting rules. The Consolidated3¢ries assets as of December 31, 2014 and Dec&hp2013 amount to approximately $8.4 billion ar&dl
billion, respectively . See "Significant Estimat@sd Critical Accounting Policies - Loan ConsolidatiReporting Requirement for Certain Multi-
Family K-Series Securitizations. Also, during 2014, we #&egluresidential mortgage loans, including disteelseesidential mortgage loans for
aggregate purchase cost of approximately $405kbménd funded approximately $49.8 million in maaine loan, preferred equity and other ec
investments with cash proceeds from our publicrofés of common stock in 2014.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Investment Securities Available for Sale At December 31, 2014, our securities portfolidules Agency RMBS, including Agency fixed-
rate and ARM pass-through certificates, Agency Il@s)Agency RMBS and CLOs, which are classified as itmest securities available for si
At December 31, 2014, we had no investment seesriti a single issuer or entity that had an aggeeaok value in excess of 10% of our t
assets. The decrease in carrying value of investisesurities available for sale as of December2B1l4 as compared to December 31, 20.
primarily a result of principal paydowns, as welléhanges in market value.
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The following tables set forth the balances of iomestment securities available for sale by vintéige, by issue year) as of Decembet
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively (dollaywants in thousands):

Agency RMBS
ARMs
Prior to 2011
2011
2012
Total ARMs

Fixed
2011
2012
Total Fixed

10
Prior to 2011
2011
2012
2013
2014
Total IOs

Total Agency RMBS
Non Agency RMBS

2006
CLOs
2007

Total

December 31, 201 4 December 31, 201 3
Carrying Carrying

Par Value Value Par Value Value
$ 19,12¢ $ 20,32¢ $ 24500 $ 25,81¢
19,40¢ 20,38 25,79¢ 27,24:
135,88! 140,98: 153,86: 156,26+
174,42: 181,69: 204,15¢ 209,32:
1,89¢ 1,97¢ 3,02¢ 3,08t
458,87 476,70¢ 526,46! 532,85¢
460,77( 478,68 529,49: 535,94
202,96: 28,31: 247,73¢ 34,79:
132,54! 20,85¢ 160,85¢ 26,35(
278,33: 46,26 293,32: 52,38¢
125,17¢ 21,82: 100,65¢ 18,07¢
16,577 1,871 — —
755,59:; 119,13: 802,57: 131,60¢
1,390,78- 779,50! 1,536,22 876,87+
2,53¢ 1,93¢ 3,001 2,361
35,55( 35,20: 35,55( 33,20¢

$ 142886 $ 816,64 $ 157477" $ 912,44

Investment Securities Available for Sale Held in &gitization Trusts. At December 31, 2014, our securities portfolioludles multi-
family CMBS classified as investment securities ilabde for sale held in securitization trusts, whiare multifamily CMBS transferred -
Consolidated VIEs that have been securitized irtoelicial interests. The decrease in investmenirg@s available for sale held in securitiza
trusts as of December 31, 2014 as compared to DmmeBi, 2013 is primarily due to the sale of mfdthily CMBS in the third and fourth quart
of 2014. The Company received total proceeds ofapmately $93.6 million, realizing approximatel8%1 million of net gains, from the sale
these multifamily securities for the year ended December 8142 The following table sets forth the balanceswfinvestment securities availa
for sale held in securitization trusts by vintage.( by issue year) as of December 31, 2014 amgéiber 31, 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

CMBS:
2011
2012

Total

December 31,201 4 December 31, 201 3
Carrying Carrying
Par Value Value Par Value Value

$ 886,11 $ 38,59 $ 900,137 $ 29,28¢
— — 1,101,54! 63,28¢
$ 886,11 $ 3859« $ 2,001,68 $ 92,57¢
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Residential Mortgage Loans Held in Securitizatiorrdsts (net). Included in our portfolio are prime ARM loans tha¢ originated ¢
purchased in bulk from third parties that met awestment criteria and portfolio requirements drat tve subsequently securitized in 2005.

At December 31, 2014, residential mortgage loand imesecuritization trusts totaled approximately48.6 million. The Companyg’ ne
investment in the residential securitization trugtsich is the maximum amount of the Companiyivestment that is at risk to loss and represtie
difference between the carrying amount of (i) theM\ mortgage loans and real estate owned held ideesal securitization trusts and (ii) -
amount of Residential CDOs outstanding, was $5I6omi Of the residential mortgage loans held inwsé@ized trusts, 100% are traditional ARM:
hybrid ARMs, 84.0% of which are ARM loans that amterest only. With respect to the hybrid ARMs imbéd in these securitizations, interest
reset periods were predominately five years ordeskthe interest-only period is typically 9 yeavhjch mitigates the “payment shocét the time ¢
interest rate reset. None of the residential mgedaans held in securitization trusts are payospARMs or ARMs with negative amortization.

The following table details our residential mortgalgans held in securitization trusts at Decemter2®14 and December 31, 2C
respectively (dollar amounts in thousands):

Number of Loans Par Value Carrying Value
December 31, 2014 395 $ 152,27 $ 149,61
December 31, 2013 422 $ 165,17 $ 163,23

Characteristics of Our Residential Mortgage LoareddHin Securitization Trusts:

The following table sets forth the composition of eesidential mortgage loans held in securitizatimusts as of December 31, 2014
December 31, 2013 respectively (dollar amountiausands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Average High Low Average High Low

General Loan Characteristics:

Original Loan Balance $ 441  $ 295( $ 48  $ 43¢ % 2,95 % 48
Current Coupon Rate 2.7%% 7.25% 1.25% 2.71% 7.25% 1.25%
Gross Margin 2.38% 4.1%% 1.1% 2.3™% 4.1% 1.1%
Lifetime Cap 11.3% 13.25% 9.3t% 11.3% 13.25% 9.1%
Original Term (Months) 36C 36C 36C 36C 36C 36C
Remaining Term (Months) 24k 252 211 25€ 264 22%
Average Months to Reset 5 11 1 3 11 1
Original FICO Score 72€ 81¢ 598 727 81¢ 59:¢
Original LTV 70.3¢% 95.0(% 13.9% 70.21% 95.0(% 13.9%

The following tables detail the activity for thesigential mortgage loans held in securitizatiorstsunet) for the years ended Decembe
2014 and 2013, respectively (dollar amounts in saods):

Allowance for  Net Carrying

Principal Premium Loan Losses Value
Balance, January 1, 2014 $ 165,17 $ 1,05 $ (2,989 $ 163,23’
Principal repayments (13,179 — — (13,179
Provision for loan loss — — (999 (99¢)
Transfer to real estate owned (830) — 35€ (474)
Charge-Offs 1,112 — — 1,112
Amortization of premium — (85) — (85)
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 15227 $ 96t $ (3,63) $ 149,61
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Allowance for  Net Carrying

Principal Premium Loan Losses Value
Balance, January 1, 2013 $ 189,00¢ $ 1,19¢ $ (2,979 $ 187,22¢
Principal repayments (22,200 — — (22,200
Provision for loan loss — — (747) (747)
Transfer to real estate owned (1,636 — 62€ (1,009
Charge-Offs — — 10¢€ 10€
Amortization of premium — (14%) — (145
Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 165,17, $ 1,05: $ (2,989 $ 163,23’

Acquired Distressed Residential Mortgage Loandistressed residential mortgage loans held irurdigzation trusts and distress
residential mortgage loans are comprised of pdolxed and adjustable rate residential mortgagasoacquired by the Company at a discount t
value (that is due, in part, to credit quality loé borrower). Distressed residential mortgage Itehd in securitization trusts are distressed srdid
mortgage loans transferred to Consolidated VIEshhae been securitized into beneficial interests.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013caneying value of the Compars/'acquired distressed residential mortgage
amounts to approximately $582.7 million and $26#iion, respectively. The change was primarily dadoan purchases made in 2014 amoul
to approximately $400.9 million.

The Companys distressed residential mortgage loans held inrgzation trusts with a carrying value of appnmately $221.6 million ar
$254.7 million at December 31, 2014 and Decembe2813, respectively, are pledged as collateratéstain of the securitized debt issued by
Company. The Company’s net investment in the sezation trusts, which is the maximum amount of @@mpanys investment that is at risk to I
and represents the difference between the cargrimgunt of the net assets and liabilities associattidthe distressed residential mortgage loand
in securitization trusts, was $110.3 million an@$9million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respelsti

In addition, distressed residential mortgage loaitls a carrying value of approximately $327.4 noifliat December 31, 2014, are pledge
collateral for a master repurchase agreement, Déthiische Bank AG, Cayman Islands Branch.

The following table details our portfolio of disssed residential mortgage loans, including thoseeadised residential mortgage loans he
securitization trusts, at December 31, 2014 anceBéer 31, 2013, respectively (dollar amounts iuglamds):

Number of Loans  Unpaid principal Carrying Value
December 31, 2014 6,291 $ 684,50¢ $ 582,69¢
December 31, 2013 2,580 $ 339,57¢ $ 264,43¢

Characteristics of our Distressed Residential Magg Loans, including Distressed Residential Mortghgans Held in Securitization Trusts:

The following tables detail the characteristicsoof distressed residential mortgage loans, inctudiistressed residential mortgage Ic
held in securitization trusts, as of December 3ll42and December 31, 2013:

December 31, December 31,

Loan to Value at Purchase 2014 2013

50.00% or less 3.€% 4.2%
50.01% - 60.00% 3.7% 4.2%
60.01% - 70.00% 6.€% 7.4%
70.01% - 80.00% 9.(% 9.€%
80.01% - 90.00% 11.9% 14.5%
90.01% - 100.00% 12.2% 12.2%
100.01% and over 52.8% 47 5o
Total 100.(oy 100.(oy
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December 31,

December 31,

FICO Scores at Purchase 2014 2013

550 or less 13.€% 16.4%
551 to 600 26.2% 22.6%
601 to 650 29.(% 24.6%
651 to 700 18.4% 18.8%
701 to 750 8.9% 11.7%
751 to 800 3.C% 5.2%
801 ancover 0.6% 0.7%
Total 100.(o4 100.(o4

December 31,

December 31,

Current Coupon 2014 2013

3.00% or less 17.1% 17.%%
3.01% - 4.00% 7.C% 9.9%
4.01% — 5.00% 15.2% 10.1%
5.01% - 6.00% 12.7% 14.6%
6.01%andover 48.(% 47 5%
Total 100.(o4 100.(o4

December 31, December 31,

Delinquency Status 2014 2013

Current 88.2% 79.5%
31- 60 days 5.5% 12.(%
61— 90 days 2.2% 4.1%
90+days 4.C% 4.4%
Total 100.(op 100.(op

December 31, December 31,

Origination Year 2014 2013

2005 or earlier 25.6% 33.%%
2006 19.6% 15.6%
2007 36.5% 44.(%
2008 or later 18.1% 7.C%
Total 100.(op 100.(op

Consolidated K-Seriess of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, wwed 100% of the first loss securities of the Cdidatec
K-Series. The Consolidated K-Series are comprisednuaiti-family mortgage loans held in six FreddieabMsponsored multi-family KSerie:
securitizations as of December 31, 2014 and DeceBhe2013, of which we, or one of our SPEs, owafilst loss securities and certain 10s.
determined that the securitizations comprisingGloasolidated KSeries were VIEs and that we are the primary beiaji of these securitizatiol
Accordingly, we are required to consolidate the &idated K-Series’ underlying muliamily loans and related debt, income and expemsaui
financial statements. We have elected the fairevaption on the assets and liabilities held wittia Consolidated kKseries, which requires tt
changes in valuations in the assets and liabiliifethe Consolidated ISeries will be reflected in our statement of opgerat. As of December &
2014 and December 31, 2013, the Consolidated keSevas comprised of $8.4 billion and $8.1 billioespectively in multfamily loans held i
securitization trusts and $8.0 billion and $7.9idmil, respectively, in multfamily CDOs outstanding with a weighted averageriest rate of 4.15
and 4.16% respectively. In addition, as a resbthe consolidation of the ConsolidatedS€ries, our statement of operations for the yeadec
December 31, 2014 and 2013 included $301.9 mikind $228.6 million in interest income, respectivelgd $275.9 million and $210.2 million
interest expense, respectively. Also, we recognazé&b6.9 million and $31.5 million unrealized g&inthe statements of operations for the y
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelg,rasult of the fair value accounting method etectiWe do not have any claims to the a:
(other than the security represented by our fioss Ipiece) or obligations for the liabilities oftiConsolidated KSeries. Our investment in
Consolidated K-Series is limited to the multi-fayn@®MBS comprised of first loss tranche PO secwgided or/certain 10s issued by thes&é&tie:
securitizations with an aggregate net carrying eatfi $317.5 million and $240.0 million as of Decent81, 2014 and December 31, 2(
respectively.
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Multi-Family CMBS Loan Characteristics:

The following table details the loan characterstié the loans that back our multi-family CMBS (umding the Consolidated iSeries) il
our portfolio as of December 31, 2014 and DecerBheR013, respectively (dollar amounts in thousgnds

December 31, December
2014 31,2013

Current balance of loans $ 10,189,07 $ 12,585,13
Number of loan: 61C 74z
Weighted average original LTV 68.£% 69.(%
Weighted average underwritten debt service coveraie 1.48& 1.5
Current average loan size $ 16,70 % 16,96!
Weighted average original loan term (in months) 11¢ 112
Weighted average current remaining term (in months) 82 85
Weighted average loan rate 4.5/% 4.31%
First mortgages 100% 10C%
Geographic state concentration (greater than 5.0%):

California 13.5% 14.(%

Texas 12.5% 13.7%

New York 7.7% 7.2%

Maryland 5.2% 4.2%

Florida 4.8% 6.5%

Washington 4.8% 5.3%

Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investments As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, adedpproximately $652
million and $791.1 million of repurchase borrowingststanding, respectively. As of December 31142@nd December 31, 2013, the cut
weighted average borrowing rate on these finanfaniities was 0.43% and 0.49%, respectively. Gapurchase agreements typically have terr
30 days or less.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,adenb counterparties where the amount at risk waxcess of 5% of Stockholders’
Equity. The amount at risk is defined as the failue of securities pledged as collateral to theimdpase agreement in excess of the repur
agreement liability.

As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding balandemour repurchase agreements was funded at anaavate of 92.8% that implies
average haircut of 7.2%. As of December 31, 2018 outstanding balance under our repurchase agntemas funded at an advance rate of 9.
that implies an average haircut of 7.8%. The we&idhaverage “haircutfelated to our repurchase agreement financing for Agency RMB¢
(excluding Agency 10s), Agency I0s and CLOs wasrapimately 5%, 25% and 35%, respectively, for alteteighted average “haircutf 7.2%
and 7.8% as of December 31, 2014 and Decembel0338, Pespectively.

The following table details the ending balance,rtprly average balance and maximum balance at aoytirend during each quarter
2014, 2013 and 2012 for repurchase agreement bimgewutstanding (dollar amounts in thousands):

Quarterly End of Quarter Maximum

Average Balance Balance
Balance at any Month-

Quarter Ended End

December 31, 2014 $ 658,36( $ 651,96 $ 668,90:
September 30, 2014 $ 639,83. $ 627,88. $ 653,18:
June 30, 2014 $ 725,76. $ 668,42¢ $ 758,85’
March 31, 2014 $ 774,54 % 767,827 % 784,01¢
December 31, 2013 $ 796,04: $ 791,12 % 800,19:
September 30, 2013 $ 799,34. $ 794,18. $ 810,50t
June 30, 2013 $ 885,94. $ 855,15. $ 924,66°
March 31, 2013 $ 879,73. $ 878,82: $ 882,61:
December 31, 2012 $ 878,20 $ 889,13 $ 889,13¢
September 30, 2012 $ 446,61( $ 580,17¢ $ 592,97t
June 30, 2012 $ 129,10. $ 138,87. $ 138,87:
March 31, 2012 $ 113,09 $ 118,38! $ 118,38!
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Financing Arrangements, Distressed Residential Mgaige LoansOn December 16, 2014, the Company entered intostemegepurcha:
agreement, with Deutsche Bank AG, Cayman Islandsi®r, to fund a portion of the purchase price pbal of distressed residential mortgage I
that are rggerforming. The outstanding balance on the mastpurchase agreement as of December 31, 2014 ammuatgproximately $238
million, bears interest at omeenth LIBOR plus 2.50% (2.66% at December 31, 2Qdt) expires on December 17, 2015. Distressedenetii
mortgage loans with a carrying value of approxinya$327.4 million at December 31, 2014, are pledgedollateral for the borrowings under
master repurchase agreement.

Residential Collateralized Debt ObligationsAs of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had resalectilateralized debt obligations,
Residential CDOs, of $145.5 million and $158.4 iwil| respectively. As of December 31, 2014 and 2818 weighted average interest rate of t
Residential CDOs was 0.55% and 0.55%, respectividlg. Residential CDOs are collateralized by ARMnpavith a principal balance of $15
million and $165.2 million at December 31, 2014 &d 3, respectively. The Company retained the ownmust certificates, or residual interest
three securitizations, and, as of December 31, 2042013, had a net investment in the residesdéialritization trusts of $5.6 million and $
million, respectively.

Securitized Debt As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had approrin&232.9 million and $305.0 million of securitizelebt
respectively. The Company’s securitized debtoitateralized by multfamily CMBS and distressed residential mortgagado&ee Note 7 of @
consolidated financial statements included in thjsort for more information on securitized debheTreduction in our securitized debt is due tc
termination of a 2012 CMBS securitization (in tleenfi of a CMBS Master Repurchase Agreement) tote$is@ million during the third quarter,
connection with the sale of a multi-family CMBS s#ty that served as collateral for the same naouese financing transaction.

Subordinated DebenturesAs of December 31, 2014 and 2013, certain of ouollytowned subsidiaries had trust preferred seies
outstanding of $45.0 million with a weighted avezagterest rate of 4.08% and 4.08%, respectivehe Jecurities are fully guaranteed by us
respect to distributions and amounts payable ujmidation, redemption or repayment. These seesritire classified as subordinated debentu
the liability section of our consolidated balanbeets.

Derivative Assets and LiabilitiedVe generally hedge the risks related to changestémest rates related to our borrowings as we
market values of our overall portfolio.

In order to reduce our interest rate risk relaaur borrowings, we may utilize various hedgingtioments, such as interest rate
agreement contracts whereby we receive floating payyments in exchange for fixed rate paymentscefely converting our short term repurct
agreement borrowings or Residential CDOs to a fratel. At December 31, 2014, the Company had $36@li@on of notional amount of interest r:
swaps outstanding with a net fair market assetevafu$0.9 million. At December 31, 2013, the Comphad $350.0 million of notional amount
interest rate swaps outstanding with a fair matiedtlity value of $2.0 million. The interest ratvaps qualify as cash flow hedges for finar
reporting purposes.

In addition to utilizing interest rate swaps, weynmurchase or sell short U.S. Treasury securitiesnter into Eurodollar or other futu
contracts or options on futures to help mitigate pgbtential impact of changes in interest ratetherperformance of our Agency 10s. We may bo
securities to cover short sales of U.S. Treasucyriiées under reverse repurchase agreements.zRdaind unrealized gains and losses asso
with purchases and short sales of U.S. Treasuryrisies, Eurodollar or other futures and swapti@me recognized through earnings in
consolidated statements of operations.

The Company uses To-B®nounced securities, or TBAs, U.S. Treasury séesriand U.S. Treasury futures and options to héulgees
rate risk, as well as spread risk associated ustinivestments in Agency 10s. For example, we nidizel TBAs to hedge the interest rate or y
spread risk inherent in our long Agency RMBS posi$i associated with our investments in Agency I@saking short positions in TBAs that .
similar in character. In a TBA transaction, we wbalree to purchase or sell, for future delivergeAcy RMBS with certain principal and intel
terms and certain types of underlying collaterait the particular Agency RMBS to be delivered ig mentified until shortly before the TE
settlement date. The Company typically does no¢ @édivery of TBAs, but rather settles with itsdirsg counterparties on a net basis. TBAs
liquid and have quoted market prices and reprebentnost actively traded class of RMBS. For TBAtcacts that we have entered into, we havi
asserted that physical settlement is probable. iBeceve have not designated these forward commignaesbciated with our Agency IOs as hed
instruments, realized and unrealized gains and#oassociated with these TBAs, U.S. Treasury dezudnd U.S. Treasury futures and option:
recognized through earnings in the condensed doaset statements of operations.

The use of TBAs exposes the Company to market vidlge as the market value of the securities that@ompany is required to purch
pursuant to a TBA transaction may decline belowabfeeeddpon purchase price. Conversely, the market valdleosecurities that the Compan
required to sell pursuant to a TBA transaction nrayease above the agreed upon sale price. ThefuSBAs associated with our Agency
investments creates significant short term payafaled/or receivables) on our balance sheet.
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Derivative financial instruments may contain cradik to the extent that the institutional countetigs may be unable to meet the tern
the agreements. We minimize this risk by limiting gounterparties to major financial institutionghagood credit ratings. In addition, we regul;
monitor the potential risk of loss with any onetpaesulting from this type of credit risk. Accongily, we do not expect any material losses asut
of default by other parties, but we cannot guamttiat we will not experience counterparty failurethe future.

In connection with our investment in Agency 10s, widize several types of derivative instrumenthazige the overall risk profile of the
investments. This hedging technique is dynamicature and requires frequent adjustments, whichrdowgly makes it very difficult to qualify fc
hedge accounting treatment. Hedge accounting terdtrequires specific identification of a risk apgp of risks and then requires that we desic
a particular trade to that risk with no minimallapito adjust over the life of the transaction.daese we and Midway are frequently adjusting 1
derivative instruments in response to current ntackaditions, we have determined to account fottedlderivative instruments related to our Age
IO investments as derivatives not designated agihgdnstruments.

Balance Sheet Analysis - Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholdersequity at December 31, 2014 was $817.9 million iastlded $10.0 million of accumulated other comgredive income. Tt
accumulated other comprehensive income consist&8.af million in unrealized gains primarily relatedour CLOs, $12.4 million in net unreali:
gains related to our CMBS and $1.1 million in utizesl derivative gains related to cash flow hedgestially offset by $12.6 million in unrealiz
losses related to our Agency RMBS and non-AgencyBBMStockholdersequity at December 31, 2013 was $480.7 million iactuded $3.1 millio
of accumulated other comprehensive income. Thenmaglaied other comprehensive income consisted of7$illion in unrealized gains primar
related to our CLOs, $18.3 million in net unrealizgains related to our CMBS and $2.0 million inealized derivative gains related to cash -
hedges, partially offset by $31.9 million in unieatl losses related to our Agency RMBS and non-8geRMBS. The increase in stockholders’
equity at December 31, 2014, as compared to DeaeB1he2013, is primarily due to our issuance of own stock in public offerings with r
proceeds to us of $296.5 million, after deductingerwriting discounts and commissions and offeergenses, during the year ended Decembi
2014.

Analysis of Changes in Book Value

The following table analyzes the changes in bookiesdor the quarter and year ended December 314,2fspectively (amounts
thousands, except per share):

Quarter Ended December 31, 201 4 Year Ended December 31, 201 4
Per Per
Amount Shares Share® Amount Shares Share®
Beginning Balance $ 633,37" 90,68: $ 6.9¢ $ 405,66t 64,10 $ 6.3¢
Common stock issuance, net 111,06: 14,41( 297,72¢ 40,99
Balance after share issuance activity 744,44 105,09! 7.0¢ 703,39: 105,09! 6.6¢
Dividends declared (28,379 (0.27) (97,78¢) (0.99
Net change AOCI?)
Hedges (757) (0.01) (90€) (0.01)
RMBS 6,78¢ 0.07 19,37¢ 0.1¢
CMBS (17,519 (0.19) (5,869 (0.06)
CLOs (2,179 (0.02) (5,66¢6) (0.0%)
Net income attributable to common
stockholders 40,52 0.3¢ 130,37¢ 1.24
Ending Balance $ 742,92’ 105,09! $ 707 $ 742,92’ 105,09* $ 7.07

(1) Outstanding shares used to calculate book valushzee for the quarter and year ended periodsasedoon outstanding shares as of Dece
31, 2014 of 105,094,565.
(2) Accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI").
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The following table analyzes the changes in bookiesdor the quarter and year ended December 313,2f#spectively (amounts
thousands, except per share):

Quarter Ended December 31, 2013 Year Ended December 31, 2013
Per Per
Amount Shares Share(@) Amount Shares Share(@)
Beginning Balance $ 402,68: 63,758 $ 6.3z $ 322,00¢ 49,57 % 6.5(C
Common stock issuance, net 2,51¢ 347 101,10¢ 14,527
Preferred stock issuance, net — 72,391
Preferred stock liquidation preference — (75,000
Balance after share issuance activity 405,19¢ 64,102 6.32 420,50¢ 64,10: 6.5€
Dividends declared (17,299 (0.29) (65,219 (1.02)
Net change AOCI(2)
Hedges 44¢ 0.01 3,78t 0.0€
RMBS (8,119 (0.13) (31,779 (0.49)
CMBS 4,30¢ 0.07 15,53: 0.24
CLOs (710 (0.01) (2,567 (0.09
Net income 21,83: 0.34 65,387 1.0z
Ending Balance $ 405,66¢ 64,10: $ 6.3: $ 405,66¢ 64,10: $ 6.32

(1) OQutstanding shares used to calculate book valushzee for the quarter and year ended periodsasedoon outstanding shares as of Dece
31, 2013 of 64,102,029.
(2) Accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI").

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committeeto repay borrowings, fund &
maintain investments, comply with margin requiretsefund our operations, pay management, incertc consulting fees, pay dividends to
stockholders and other general business needsin@estments and assets, excluding the principal onllti-family CMBS we invest in, gener:
liquidity on an ongoing basis through principal aimerest payments, prepayments, net earningsnegtaprior to payment of dividends ¢
distributions from unconsolidated investments. @uincipal only multi-family CMBS are backed by l@dh nonrecourse mortgage loans t
provide for the payment of principal at maturitytelavhich is typically seven to ten years from dlage the underlying mortgage loans are origin
and therefore do not directly contribute to monttédgh flows. In addition, the Company will, frormé to time, sell on an opportunistic basis ce
securities, primarily CMBS and distressed residémtiortgage loans as part of its overall investnstrategy and these sales will provide additi
liquidity.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, net caskdsed primarily as a result of $131.3 millioovided by financing activities a
$37.6 million provided by operating activities, whiwas partially offset by $125.0 million used mvésting activities. Our financing activit
primarily included $296.5 million in net proceedsrh the issuance of stock in public offerings a®®.8 million in net receipts from financi
arrangements, partially offset by $83.8 millionpimyments made on mufémily CDOs, $92.5 million in dividends paid on comn stock and Seri
B Preferred Stock, $12.9 million in payments maddresidential CDOs, and $75.8 million in paymengimand extinguishment of securitized ¢
Our investing activities primarily included $405wllion of purchases of residential mortgage loand distressed residential mortgage loans, !
million of purchases of investment securities, $48&illion in the funding of mezzanine loans andfened equity investments, $10.2 million decre
in restricted cash and $1.1 million in the fundioigfirst mortgage loans, partially offset by $98r8llion in principal paydowns on investmi
securities available for sale, $64.7 million inrmipal repayments and proceeds from sales andarefing of distressed residential mortgage Ic
$93.6 million of proceeds from sales of investmenturities, $80.5 million in principal repaymentceived on multfamily loans held i
securitization trusts, $12.7 million in princip&jpayments received on residential mortgage loaldsimeecuritization trusts, $5.6 million in prods
from sales of mezzanine loan and preferred eqoitgstments and $3.9 million in proceeds from séleal estate owned.
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We fund our investments and operations throughlanbad and diverse funding mix, which includes peats from equity offerings, short-
term and longeterm repurchase agreement borrowings, CDOs, seedtitlebt, and trust preferred debentures. The daypeterms of financing us
by us depends on the asset being financed. In tbases where we utilize some form of structuredrfaing, be it through CDOs, longemr
repurchase agreements or securitized debt, thefloasproduced by the assets that serve as cdllafer these structured finance instruments me
restricted in terms of its use or applied to paygpal or interest on CDOs, repurchase agreementsotes that are senior to our interests
December 31, 2014, we had cash and cash equivalagiaisces of $75.6 million, which increased front@waber 31, 2013 by $43.8 million. Basec
our current investment portfolio, new investmeritidtives, leverage ratio and available and futpossible borrowing arrangements, we believe
existing cash balances, funds available under ariows financing arrangements and cash flows frperations will meet our liquidity requireme
for at least the next 12 months.

Liquidity — Financing Arrangements

We rely primarily on shorterm repurchase agreements (typically 30 dayshtm€e the more liquid assets in our investmentf@ar, suct
as Agency RMBS. As of December 31, 2014, we havstanding short-term repurchase agreements, adbrnllateralized shorterm borrowing
with ten different financial institutions. Theseragments are secured by certain of our investmecurisies and bear interest rates that
historically moved in close relationship to LIBORur borrowings under repurchase agreements areal lasd¢he fair value of the investm
securities securing these borrowings. Interest chtnges and increased prepayment activity can Aawegative impact on the valuation of tt
securities, reducing the amount we can borrow utitEse agreements. Moreover, our repurchase agnteaiow the counterparties to determil
new market value of the collateral to reflect cotmmarket conditions and because these lines afiimg are not committed, the counterparty car
the loan at any time. The market value of the teti securing these borrowings represents thee mricsuch collateral obtained from genet
recognized sources or the most recent closing badagion from such source plus accrued income.ddanterparty determines that the value o
collateral has decreased, the counterparty maptmia margin call and require us to either poditamhal collateral to cover such decrease or reg
portion of the outstanding borrowing in cash, omimial notice. Moreover, in the event an existingrderparty to one of our repurchase agreer
elected to not “roll'the outstanding balance at maturity into a new nefpase agreement, we would be required to repagutstanding balance w
cash or proceeds received from a new counterpaitty surrender the securities that serve as coditer the outstanding balance, or any combin:
thereof. If we are unable to secure financing feomew counterparty and had to surrender the codlatee would expect to incur a loss. In addit
in the event one of our lenders under the repuechgseement defaults on its obligation to “re-seflteturn to us the securities that are securia
borrowings at the end of the term of the repurcteggeement, we would incur a loss on the transaet@gual to the amount of “haircuéissociate
with the short-term repurchase agreement, whichsaraetimes refer to as the “amount at risks’ of December 31, 2014, we had an aggre
amount at risk under our repurchase agreementstaitttounterparties of approximately $50.7 millisith no greater than approximately $1
million at risk with any single counterparty. Thelatility in the market place during 2014 did navie a material impact on our liquidity or our aly
to finance our more liquid assets through shortitegpurchase agreements.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had sterrs repurchase agreement borrowings on our invergtsecurities of $652.0 million
compared to $791.1 million as of December 31, 20d&ddition to our excess cash, the Company h&4.82million in unencumbered securit
including $120.8 million of multfamily CMBS (which represents the net fair valueceftain first loss tranche PO securities and/diage |Os issue
by certain K-Series securitizations included in @@nsolidated KSeries), $78.8 million of RMBS, of which $76.8 nal are Agency RMBS, al
$35.2 million of CLOs. The $75.6 million of cashet$120.8 in multfamily CMBS, the $78.8 million in RMBS, and $40.6llion held in overnigh
deposits in our Agency 10 portfolio included intréged cash (that is available to meet marginscadl it relates to our Agency |0 portfolio repuist
agreements), which collectively represent 53.8%uwffinancing arrangements, portfolio investmeats, liquid and could be monetized to pay d
or collateralize the liability immediately.

At December 31, 2014, the Company also had a masperchase agreement, with Deutsche Bank AG, Caylslands Branch, in
aggregate principal amount of up to $260.0 milliexpiring on December 17, 2015. The outstandingrza under the master repurchase agret
amounted to approximately $238.9 million at DecemBg, 2014. This master repurchase agreement latedllized by distressed resider
mortgage loans with a carrying value of $327.4iorillat December 31, 2014.

At December 31, 2014, we also had other longer-teirt, including Residential CDOs outstanding o4%% million, multifamily CDOs
outstanding of $8.0 billion (which represent obtigas of the Consolidated Keries), subordinated debt of $45.0 million andusgzed debt ¢
$232.9 million. The CDOs are collateralized by desitial and multfamily loans held in securitization trusts, respesty. The securitized debt as
December 31, 2014 represents the notes issuell aur(iMay 2012 multi-family re-securitization traacsion, (ii) our November 2013 muliamily
CMBS collateralized recourse financing transactemd (iii) our December 2012, July 2013 and Septr2013 distressed residential mortgage
securitization transactions, which are describedate 7 in our consolidated financial statements.
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As of December 31, 2014, our overall leverage ratioluding both our short-term and longer-termafining (and excluding the CD®’
issued by the Consolidated K-Series and our Res&ddDOs) divided by stockholdergquity, was approximately 1.4 to 1. As of DecemBg,
2014, our leverage ratio on our short term finagsior callable debt was approximately 1.1 to 1.émitor all at risk or short term borrowings
ensure that we have adequate liquidity to satisfygin calls and liquidity covenant requirements.

Liquidity — Hedging and Other Factors

Certain of our hedging instruments may also impactliquidity. We use interest rate swaps, swaiofBAs, Eurodollar or other futur
contracts to hedge interest rate risk associatéd ovir investments in Agency RMBS (including Ager®s). With respect to interest rate sw.
futures contracts and TBAs, initial margin depositd be made upon entering into these contracts @an be either cash or securities. During
period these contracts are open, changes in thie wdlthe contract are recognized as unrealizetsgai losses by marking to market on a daily |
to reflect the market value of these contracthatend of each day'trading. We may be required to satisfy variabgim payments periodical
depending upon whether unrealized gains or losgemeurred.

We also use TBAs to hedge interest rate risk agsstiwith our investments in Agency IOs. Sincewdli for these securities extel
beyond the typical settlement dates for most derivative investments, these transactions are mamee to market fluctuations between the t
date and the ultimate settlement date, and theaedynore vulnerable to increasing amounts at rigk the applicable counterparties. The us
TBAs associated with our Agency 10 investments ta®aignificant short term payables (and/or red#es), amounting to $283.5 million
December 31, 2014, and is included in payabledousties purchased on our consolidated balancat.she

We also use U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Gingdatures and options to hedge interest rate asociated with our investment
Agency 10s and interest rate swap agreements aagt®fas as a mechanism to reduce the interestisitef our Agency ARMs and mortgage lo
held in securitization trusts.

For additional information regarding the Compangerivative instruments and hedging activities tfer periods covered by this rep
including the fair values and notional amountshefse instruments and realized and unrealized gaiddosses relating to these instruments, p
see Note 8 to our consolidated financial statemigietsided in this report. Also, please see Item QAantitative and Qualitative Disclosures al
Market Risk, under the caption, “Fair Value Riskir a tabular presentation of the sensitivity of tihharket value and net duration changes c
Company’s portfolio across various changes in @gerates, which takes into account the Compargdgimg activities.

Liquidity — Equity Offerings

In addition to the financing arrangements describbdve under the caption “Liquidity—Financing Argements ,"we also rely o
secondary equity offerings as a source of bothtdkan and longerm liquidity. During the year ended December 2@14, we closed on t
following underwritten public equity offerings:

e On January 10, 2014, we closed on the issuancé,50@,000 shares of common stock to the undensr{tacluding the 1,500,000 sha
issued pursuant to an option to purchase additisimates), resulting in net proceeds to us of apmately $75.8 million, after deducti
underwriting discounts, commissions and offeringemnses.

e On April 7, 2014, we closed on the issuance of 34,800 shares of common stock to the underwriieduding the 1,950,000 sha
issued pursuant to an option to purchase additisimales), resulting in net proceeds to us of appabely $109.9 million, after deducti
underwriting discounts, commissions and offeringenses.

e On November 26, 2014, we closed on the issuandet@f10,019 shares of common stock to the undemsr{iacluding the 1,410,0:
shares issued pursuant to an option to purchasdomad shares), resulting in net proceeds to uamgroximately $110.8 million, afi

deducting underwriting discounts, commissions atamated offering expenses.

We used substantially all of the net proceeds filoase offerings to fund additional investmentsun targeted assets, particularly, distre
residential mortgage loans and other multi-faméiated investments.
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We also may generate liquidity through the salshafres of our common stock in an “at the marké#&ring program pursuant to an eqi
distribution agreement, as well as through the sakhares of our common stock pursuant to ourdeind Reinvestment Plan, or DRIP. On Jan
14, 2013, we filed a registration statement on F8to enable us to issue up to $20,000,000 of shlairesr common stock pursuant to our DF
On June 11, 2012, we entered into an equity digioh agreement with JMP Securities LLC as the gafeent agent, pursuant to which we may
up to $25,000,000 of shares of our common stock flime to time through the placement agent. Puitsieathe equity distribution agreement,
shares may be offered and sold through the placeagamt in transactions that are deemed to beh&aitrtarket offerings as defined in Rule 4
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, didusales made directly on The Nasdaq Global E#Macket or sales made to or through a me
maker other than on an exchange or, subject ttethes of a written notice from us, in privately ndgted transactions. We have no obligation tt
any of the shares under the equity distributioreagrent and may at any time suspend solicitatiod#ars under the equity distribution agreern
During the year ended December 31, 2013, we is8@@d313 shares under the equity distribution agezemesulting in total net proceeds to
Company of approximately $5.8 million, after dedogtsales commissions and expenses. During theereted December 31, 2014, there wer
shares issued under the equity distribution agreeme of December 31, 2014, approximately $19.Bioniremains available for issuance under
“at the market” offering program.

Management Agreements

We have investment management agreements with Biner Midway and Headlands, pursuant to which we thase managers a b
management and incentive fee quarterly in arrezes."- Results of OperationsComparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2014etar ¥nde
December 31, 2013CGomparative Expenses" for more information regaydive management fees paid during the year endeeniizer 31, 2014.
addition, pursuant to the terms of our former agiyiselationship with HCS, we also may pay incemtoompensation to Harvest Capital Strate
LLC (“HCS’) with respect to those assets of our company that wenaged by HCS at the time the advisory relatignwith HCS concluded (t
“Incentive Tail Assets”) until such time as sucleéntive Tail Assets are disposed of by us or mature

Dividends

For information regarding the declaration and paynoé dividends on our preferred stock, see “Ndie-1Stockholders’ Equitybelow. Fo
information regarding the declaration and paymémtividends on our common stock, see “ltem 5. Mafke Registrants Common Equity, Relat
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of E@dtyrities” above.

We expect to continue to pay quarterly cash divildean our common stock during the near term. Howewar Board of Directors w
continue to evaluate our dividend policy each aqeraand will make adjustments as necessary, basedvaniety of factors, including, among ot
things, the need to maintain our REIT status, marfcial condition, liquidity, earnings projectioasd business prospects. Our dividend policy
not constitute an obligation to pay dividends.

We intend to make distributions to our stockholdersomply with the various requirements to mam@iir REIT status and to minimize
avoid corporate income tax and the nondeductibbésexax. However, differences in timing betwees riacognition of REIT taxable income and
actual receipt of cash could require us to seletassr to borrow funds on a shoetm basis to meet the REIT distribution requiretaeand t:
minimize or avoid corporate income tax and the maoluttible excise tax.

Exposure to European financial counterparties

We finance the acquisition of a significant portioihour mortgagdsacked securities with repurchase agreements.rnnemion with thes
financing arrangements, we pledge our securitiesodiateral to secure the borrowings. The amountadfateral pledged will typically exceed
amount of the financing with the extent of owetateralization from 5% of the amount borrowed tfie case of Agency ARM and Agency fixed
RMBS collateral), 25% (in the case of Agency 103)l ap to 35% (in the case of CLO collateral).Wliler repurchase agreement financing resu
us recording a liability to the counterparty in @ansolidated balance sheet, we are exposed twoth@erparty, if during the term of the repurct
agreement financing, a lender should default omlitggation and we are not able to recover our gieldassets. The amount of this exposure |
difference between the amount loaned to us pluerést due to the counterparty and the fair valu¢hefcollateral pledged by us to the ler
(including accrued interest receivable on suchatetal).
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Several large European banks have experiencedcfaladifficulty in recent years, some of whom haeguired a rescue or assistance 1
other large European banks or the European CelBtmak. Some of these banks have U.S. banking s@bsigiwhich have provided repurch
agreement financing or interest rate swap agreesrentis in connection with the acquisition of vagdnvestments, including mortgabaeket
securities investments. We have outstanding repseclagreement borrowings with Barclays Capital im¢he amount of $8.6 million at Decem
31, 2014 with a net exposure of $0.6 million. Weréhautstanding repurchase agreement borrowings Bathtsche Bank AG, Cayman Isla
Branch, in the amount of $238.9 million at DecemBé&r 2014 with a net exposure of $88.5 million. Wave outstanding interest rate s
agreements with Credit Suisse International asuateoparty in the amount of $245.0 million notiomath a net exposure of $0.5 million. In additi
certain of our U.S. based counterparties may hiavefisant exposure to the financial and economierioil in Europe which could impact their fut
lending activities or cause them to default undgeaments with us. In the event one or more ofettoeginterparties or their affiliates experie
liquidity difficulties in the future, our liquidityould be materially adversely affected.

Inflation

For the periods presented herein, inflation has lbekatively low and we believe that inflation hast had a material effect on our result
operations. The impact of inflation is primarilffleeted in the increased costs of our operationgu@ly all our assets and liabilities are finaaddn
nature. Our consolidated financial statements amdesponding notes thereto have been preparedciordence with GAAP, which require 1
measurement of financial position and operatingltesn terms of historical dollars without congihg the changes in the relative purchasing pr
of money over time due to inflation. As a resuiterest rates and other factors influence our pmdioce far more than inflation. Inflation affects
operations primarily through its effect on interestes, since interest rates typically increasenduperiods of high inflation and decrease du
periods of low inflation. During periods of incréag interest rates, demand for mortgages and aWwerfs ability to qualify for mortgage financi
in a purchase transaction may be adversely affeBtedng periods of decreasing interest rates,dveers may prepay their mortgages, which in
may adversely affect our yield and subsequently#iee of our portfolio of mortgage assets.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The Company had the following contractual obligasi at December 31, 2014 (dollar amounts in thalgan

Less than More than

Total 1 year 1 to 3 years 4 to 5 years 5 years
Operating leases $ 1,92 $ 207 % 414 % 432 % 87C
Financing arrangements 890,91« 890,91 — — —
Subordinated debenturéis 83,34¢ 1,86¢ 3,741 3,73¢ 74,00(
Securitized debf)®) 220,91¢ 48,237 172,68( — —
Interest rate swagd ) 5,20¢ 1,90¢ 2,881 417 —
Management fee<) 14,93¢ 13,13¢ 1,79¢ — —
Employment agreements 70C 70C — — —
Total contractual obligatiord $ 121794 $ 956,97 $ 181,51 $ 458t $ 74,87(
@ Amounts include projected interest paymentsrdutiie period. Interest based on interest rateffét on December 31, 2014.

@ Amounts include the base fees for Midway, RiverBand Headlands based on the current invested tafita management fees excl

incentive fees which are based on future performanc

We exclude our Residential CDOs from the contrdabbdigations disclosed in the table above as dl@ibt is non-recourse and not cross-
collateralized and, therefore, must be satisfieduskvely from the proceeds of the residential mage loans and real estate owned he
the securitization trusts. See Note 11 in the Ntte€onsolidated Financial Statements for furtiforimation regarding our Residen
CDOs. We also exclude the securitized debt reletedir May 2012 re-securitization transaction as debt is norrecourse to the Compal
See Note 7 in the Notes to Consolidated FinandatkeSents for further information regarding our 8éized Debt. The Company’s Multi-
Family CDOs, which represent the CDOs issued byCitvesolidated K-Series is excluded as this debbisrecourse to the Company.

(3)

69




Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not maintain any relationships with uncortsied entities or financiglartnerships, such as entities often referred tstrasture:
finance or special purpose entities, establishedhf® purpose of facilitating offalance sheet arrangements or other contractuathpw or limitec
purposes. Further, we have not guaranteed anyatiolits of unconsolidated entities nor do we hawe@mmitment or intent to provide funding
any such entities.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosues about Market Risk

This section should be read in conjunction withettt 1A. Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Fat6K and our subsequent perio
reports filed with the SEC.

We seek to manage risks that we believe will immagtbusiness including, interest rates, liquidgzgepayments, credit quality and ma
value. When managing these risks we consider thmdion our assets, liabilities and derivative fimss. While we do not seek to avoid |
completely, we believe the risk can be quantifiezhf historical experience and seek to actively rganidat risk, to generate rigldjusted tot:
returns that we believe compensate us appropriftieljnose risks and to maintain capital levelssistent with the risks we take.

The following analysis includes forwatdeking statements that assume that certain martietlitions occur. Actual results may dif
materially from these projected results due to gearin our portfolio assets and borrowings mix dud to developments in the domestic and g
financial and real estate markets. Developmentisdrfinancial markets include the likelihood of nging interest rates and the relationship of va
interest rates and their impact on our portfolielgj cost of funds and cash flows. The analyticathads that we use to assess and mitigate
market risks should not be considered projectidrigtare events or operating performance.

Interest Rate Risl

Interest rates are sensitive to many factors, @ioly governmental, monetary, tax policies, domeaitid international economic conditic
and political or regulatory matters beyond our cointChanges in interest rates affect the valu¢heffinancial assets we manage and hold ir
investment portfolio and the variablate borrowings we use to finance our portfolioa@fes in interest rates also affect the interéstawaps ar
caps, Eurodollar and other futures, TBAs and o#femurities or instruments we use to hedge our gdwrtfAs a result, our net interest incom
particularly affected by changes in interest rates.

For example, we hold RMBS, some of which may haxedf rates or interest rates that adjust on vardates that are not synchronize
the adjustment dates on our repurchase agreenheigisneral, the re-pricing of our repurchase agergmoccurs more quickly than themeeing of
our variableinterest assets. Thus, it is likely that our flogtrate borrowings, such as our repurchase agreeymeay react to interest rates before
RMBS because the weighted average nextriging dates on the related borrowings may hawatsh time periods than that of the RMBS
addition, the interest rates on our Agency ARMskieddby hybrid ARMs may be limited to a “periodigp¢aor an increase of typically 1% or 2%
adjustment period, while our borrowings do not haeenparable limitations. Moreover, changes in ggerates can directly impact prepayn
speeds, thereby affecting our net return on RMBStirigy a declining interest rate environment, thepayment of RMBS may accelerate
borrowers may opt to refinance at a lower interatt) causing the amount of liabilities that haeerp extended by the use of interest rate swe
increase relative to the amount of RMBS, possiblulting in a decline in our net return on RMBSrgslacement RMBS may have a lower y
than those being prepaid. Conversely, during areasing interest rate environment, RMBS may prepaye slowly than expected, requiring u
finance a higher amount of RMBS than originallyeftaist and at a time when interest rates may behigesulting in a decline in our net returr
RMBS. Accordingly, each of these scenarios can tiegg impact our net interest income.

We seek to manage interest rate risk in our paotfoy utilizing interest rate swaps, swaptions,s;apurodollar and other futures, opti
and U.S. Treasury securities with the goal of ojzling the earnings potential while seeking to maimtlong term stable portfolio values. '
continually monitor the duration of our mortgagsets and have a policy to hedge the financingagelassets such that the net duration of the ¢
our borrowed funds related to such assets, antbdeleedging instruments, is less than one yeaddition, we utilize TBAs to mitigate the risks
our long Agency RMBS positions associated withiauestments in Agency 10s.

We utilize a modebased risk analysis system to assist in projeqiorgfolio performances over a scenario of differemnérest rates. Tl

model incorporates shifts in interest rates, chanigeprepayments and other factors impacting thieatians of our financial securities ¢
instruments, including mortgage-backed securitigsurchase agreements, interest rate swaps amésintate caps, TBAs and Eurodollar futures.
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Based on the results of the model, the instantanebanges in interest rates specified below woalthad the following effect on |
interest income for the next 12 months based orassets and liabilities as of December 31, 2014afdamounts in thousands):

Changes in Net Interest Income
Changes in Net Interest

Changes in Interest Rates Income
+200 $ 6,492
+100 $ 6,54~
-100 $ (16,19)

Interest rate changes may also impact our net vabke as our financial assets and related hedgeatiges are marked-torarket eac
quarter. Generally, as interest rates increaseyahe of our mortgage assets, other than 10sgedses, and conversely, as interest rates dectbe
value of such investments will increase. The valuan 10 will likely be negatively affected in adming interest rate environment due to the rif
increasing prepayment rates because the \@lsle is wholly contingent on the underlying moggdoans having an outstanding balance. In ge
we expect that, over time, decreases in the valwaiioportfolio attributable to interest rate chasgwill be offset, to the degree we are hedge
increases in the value of our interest rate swapsther financial instruments used for hedging psgs, and vice versa. However, the relatior
between spreads on securities and spreads on dginggenstruments may vary from time to time, résglin a net aggregate book value increa:
decline. That said, unless there is a material imgnt in value that would result in a payment peing received on a security or loan, changese
book value of our portfolio will not directly affeour recurring earnings or our ability to makeigtribution to our stockholders.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committeeto repay borrowings, fund &
maintain investments, pay dividends to our stoattidd and other general business needs. We recatpeizeeed to have funds available to opt
our business. It is our policy to have adequateidity at all times. We plan to meet liquidity thwgh normal operations with the goal of avoic
unplanned sales of assets or emergency borrowifghdsk.

Our principal sources of liquidity are the repuredagreements on our mortgdggeked securities, the CDOs we have issued todaan
loans held in securitization trusts, securitizettdérust preferred securities, the principal antriest payments from our assets and cash prc
from the issuance of equity or debt securitiesnfasket and other conditions permit). We believe existing cash balances and cash flows
operations will be sufficient for our liquidity ragiements for at least the next 12 months.

We are subject to “margin caliisk under the terms of our repurchase agreembntie event the value of our assets pledged date
suddenly decreases, margin calls relating to opurdhase agreements could increase, causing arrsadebange in our liquidity positic
Additionally, if one or more of our repurchase agrent counterparties chooses not to provide onginding, we may be unable to replace
financing through other lenders on favorable teonsat all. As such, we provide no assurance thatwillebe able to roll over our repurche
agreements as they mature from time to time irfuhge. See ltem 7, "Management's Discussion aralysis of Financial Condition and Result:
Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources" in tAisnual Report on Form 1R-for further information about our liquidity andagital resourc
management .

Derivative financial instruments used to hedgerggerate risk are subject to “margin calk. For example, under our interest rate sw
typically we pay a fixed rate to the counterpartidsile they pay us a floating rate. If interestesatirop below the fixed rate we are paying o
interest rate swap, we may be required to post ceshin.

Prepayment Risl

When borrowers repay the principal on their resiidémortgage loans before maturity or faster ttt@ir scheduled amortization, the ef
is to shorten the period over which interest imedr and therefore, reduce the yield for residemiartgage assets purchased at a premium tc
then current balance, as with our portfolio of AgerRMBS. Conversely, residential mortgage assetshased for less than their then cur
balance, such as our distressed residential matigags, exhibit higher yields due to faster prepayts. Furthermore, actual prepayment speed:
differ from our modeled prepayment speed projestionpacting the effectiveness of any hedges we iraydace to mitigate financing and/or 1
value risk. Generally, when market interest ratdide, borrowers have a tendency to refinance thertgages, thereby increasing prepayments
impact of increasing prepayment rates, whetherrasut of declining interest rates, governmergrivéntion in the mortgage markets or otherwis
particularly acute with respect to our Agency IBscause the value of an 10 security is wholly auggint on the underlying mortgage loans ha
an outstanding principal balance, an unexpectecase in prepayment rates on the pool of mortgegesl underlying the 10s could significal
negatively impact the performance of our Agency.l0s
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Our modeled prepayments will help determine thewarhof hedging we use to ofet changes in interest rates. If actual prepaynates ar
higher than modeled, the yield will be less thardeled in cases where we paid a premium for thecpéat residential mortgage asset. Conver
when we have paid a premium, if actual prepaymatetsrexperienced are slower than modeled, we wanalattize the premium over a longer t
period, resulting in a higher yield to maturity.

In an environment of increasing prepayment spetdstiming difference between the actual cash ptaa principal paydowns and 1
announcement of the principal paydown may resudididitional margin requirements from our repurchag®ement counterparties.

We mitigate prepayment risk by constantly evalugatinr residential mortgage assets relative to gmapat speeds observed for assets
similar structures, quantities and characterisfragthermore, we stresest the portfolio as to prepayment speeds andeisiteate risk in order
further develop or make modifications to our hellgkances. Historically, we have not hedged 100%uofiability costs due to prepayment risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that we will not fully ceitt the principal we have invested in our creditsiéeve assets, including distressed reside
and other mortgage loans, CMBS, and CLOs, due tmWer defaults. In selecting the credit sensitigsets in our portfolio, we seek to identify
invest in assets with characteristics that we bel@fset or limit the exposure of borrower defauti the Company.

We seek to manage credit risk through our goquisition due diligence process, and by factogrgjected credit losses into the purct
price we pay for all of our credit sensitive assktggeneral, we evaluate relative valuation, sygpld demand trends, prepayment rates, delinq
and default rates, vintage of collateral and mamwnemic factors as part of this process. Neversisel¢hese procedures do not guare
unanticipated credit losses which would materiaffigct our operating results.

With respect to the $582.7 million of distressedidential loans the Company owned at December 814 2the mortgage loans w
purchased at a discount to par reflecting theiresed state or perceived higher risk of defatitch may include higher loan to value ratios an
certain instances, delinquent loan payments. Reidihe acquisition of distressed residential megtgloans, the Company validates key informi
provided by the sellers that is necessary to detertine value of the distressed residential mogdagns. We then seek to maximize the value ¢
mortgage loans that we acquire either through barassisted refinancing, outright loan sale oough foreclosure and resale of the underl
home. We evaluate credit quality on an ongoing sh&si reviewing borrowes payment status and current financial and econa@oidition
Additionally, we look at the carrying value of adglinquent loan and compare to the current valubefinderlying collateral.

As of December 31, 2014, we own $321.6 million icdtfloss CMBS comprised primarily of first loss ®@at are backed by commer
mortgage loans on multamily properties at a weighted average amortizatthmse price of approximately 32.4% of current paior to th
acquisition of each of our first loss CMBS secesfithe Company completes an extensive revieweofittderlying loan collateral, including Ic
level cash flow rasnderwriting, site inspections on selected propsrtproperty specific cash flow and loss modeliegiew of appraisals, prope
condition and environmental reports, and otheritrik analyses. We continue to monitor creditlgyan an ongoing basis using updated proy
level financial reports provided by borrowers ardiqdic site inspection of selected properties. 8#® reconcile on a monthly basis the actual
distributions received against projected distribigi to assure proper allocation of cash flow geadrhy the underlying loan pool. As of Decen
31, 2014, we own approximately $35.2 million of emissued by a CLO at a discounted price equa#l® @f par. The securities are backed
portfolio of corporate loans. We also own approadety $34.8 million of first mortgage loan and mazine financing at December 31, 2014, ba
by residential and multi-family propertied/e also have invested approximately $36.6 milliorequity and debt securities issued by an entiy
invest in commercial real estate-related debt itaests.

Fair Value Risk

Changes in interest rates also expose us to maaket (fair value) fluctuation on our assets, litbs and hedges. While the fair value of
majority of our assets (when excluding all Consatiédl KSeries assets other than the securities we actoalty that are measured on a recut
basis are determined using Level 2 fair valuespwe certain assets, such as our CMBS, for whiahvieiues may not be readily available if there
no active trading markets for the instruments. ughscases, fair values would only be derived oimeged for these investments using var
valuation techniques, such as computing the presdoe of estimated future cash flows using distoates commensurate with the risks invol
However, the determination of estimated future cisvs is inherently subjective and imprecise. Mirmhanges in assumptions or estime
methodologies can have a material effect on thesweatl or estimated fair values. Our fair valuaneates and assumptions are indicative o
interest rate environments as of December 31, 281idido not take into consideration the effectsutfsequent interest rate fluctuations.
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We note that the values of our investments in @ixie instruments, primarily interest rate hedge®or debt, will be sensitive to change
market interest rates, interest rate spreads,tcsptiads and other market factors. The valueeasetlinvestments can vary and has varied mate
from period to period.

The following describes the methods and assumptiengse in estimating fair values of our finanamstruments:

Fair value estimates are made as of a specifict poitime based on estimates using present valuether valuation techniques. Th
techniques involve uncertainties and are signifiyaaffected by the assumptions used and the jud¢gnmade regarding risk characteristic
various financial instruments, discount ratesnesté of future cash flows, future expected losserpce and other factors.

Changes in assumptions could significantly afféese estimates and the resulting fair values. Bérifair value estimates cannot
substantiated by comparison to independent masketsin many cases, could not be realized in anddiate sale of the instrument. Also, becau:
differences in methodologies and assumptions ugegktimate fair values, the fair values used byshmuld not be compared to those of c
companies.

The table below presents the sensitivity of thekeawalue and net duration changes of our portfali@f December 31, 2014, usin
discounted cash flow simulation model assumingretantaneous interest rate shift. Application & thethod results in an estimation of the
market value change of our assets, liabilities lzeding instruments per 100 basis point (“bp”)tshifinterest rates.

The use of hedging instruments is a critical parwr interest rate risk management strategies tamaffects of these hedging instrum
on the market value of the portfolio are refledrethe model's output. This analysis also takes éansideration the value of options embedded i
mortgage assets including constraints on thpriegng of the interest rate of assets resultimgrfrperiodic and lifetime cap features, as we
prepayment options. Assets and liabilities thatrenteinterest ratsensitive such as cash, payment receivables, gregpenses, payables and acc
expenses are excluded.

Changes in assumptions including, but not limitgdvolatility, mortgage and financing spreads, psepent behavior, defaults, as well as
timing and level of interest rate changes will efféhe results of the model. Therefore, actualltesue likely to vary from modeled results.

Market Value Changes

Changes in Changes in Net
Interest Rates Market Value Duration
(Amounts in thousands)
+200 $ (104,93) 3.20
+100 $ (52,01) 2.73
Base 2.02
-100 $ 35,60¢ 1.02

It should be noted that the model is used as attomlentify potential risk in a changing intereate environment but does not include
changes in portfolio composition, financing stragsgmarket spreads or changes in overall marteidity .

Although market value sensitivity analysis is widatcepted in identifying interest rate risk, iedmot take into consideration changes
may occur such as, but not limited to, changeswestment and financing strategies, changes in ehagreads and changes in business voll
Accordingly, we make extensive use of an earnimgsilation model to further analyze our level ofeirgst rate risk.

There are a number of key assumptions in our egsréimulation model. These key assumptions inctidmges in market conditions t
affect interest rates, the pricing of ARM produtke availability of investment assets and thelafdity and the cost of financing for portfoliosets
Other key assumptions made in using the simulatimdel include prepayment speeds and managememéstiment, financing and hedg
strategies, and the issuance of new equity. Wedllgirun the simulation model under a variety gpbthetical business scenarios that may inc
different interest rate scenarios, different inwestt strategies, different prepayment possibilitiad other scenarios that provide us with a rar
possible earnings outcomes in order to assesstadtienerest rate risk. The assumptions used sgurieour estimate of the likely effect of changt
interest rates and do not necessarily reflect dotsalts. The earnings simulation model takes &utoount periodic and lifetime caps embedded il
assets in determining the earnings at risk.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our financial statements and the related notestheg with the Report of Independent Registeredli®uccounting Firm thereon,
required by this Item 8, are set forth beginningpage F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K areliacorporated herein by reference.

ltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS 8 ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure®Ve maintain disclosure controls and procedure$ déiha designed to ensure 1
information required to be disclosed in the repahiazt we file or submit under the Securities Exdearct of 1934, as amended, is recor
processed, summarized and reported within the pien®ds specified in the rules and forms of the S&@ that such information is accumulated
communicated to our management as appropriatdde giimely decisions regarding required disclosufgs evaluation was performed under
supervision and with the participation of our magragnt, including our Chief Executive Officer andi&Ht-inancial Officer, of the effectiveness
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defindRules 13a-15(e) and 13db(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934msnded) as
December 31, 2014. Based upon that evaluationCbief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeoncluded that our disclosure controls
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2014.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FinahdReporting. Our management is responsible for establishird) maintainin
adequate internal control over financial reportiag such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule I3@). Our internal control system was designe
provide reasonable assurance to our managemenBeaud of Directors regarding the reliability, pregi@on and fair presentation of publisl
financial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles. Under the supemiaiod with the participation of our managen
including our principal executive officer and prippal financial officer, we conducted an evaluatwinthe effectiveness of our internal control ¢
financial reporting based on the frameworHKriternal Control - Integrated Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the
Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation utieeframework innternal Control Integrated Frameworkour management concluded that
internal control over financial reporting was effee as of December 31, 2014.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fici@l reporting as of December 31, 2014 has beelitealiby Grant Thornton LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm, t@ased in their report which appears in Iltem 15(g}this Annual Report on Form 1R-and it
incorporated by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogiffhere have been no changes in our internal coowel financial reporting during t
quarter ended December 31, 2014 that have mayea#fibcted, or are reasonably likely to materiaffect, our internal control over financ
reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Contr@sr management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, dc
not expect that our disclosure controls or ourriraecontrol over financial reporting will preveatt detect all error and all fraud. A control systert
matter how well designed and operated, can prowidg reasonable, not absolute, assurance thatahiot systens objectives will be met. Ti
design of a control system must reflect the faat there are resource constraints, and the bewéfisntrols must be considered relative to thests
Further, because of the inherent limitations incalhtrol systems, no evaluation of controls carvigi® absolute assurance that misstatements (
error or fraud will not occur or that all contrekiuies and instances of fraud, if any, have beerttdel These inherent limitations include the tiea
that judgments in decisiomaking can be faulty and that breakdowns can doeoause of simple error or mistake. Controls caa bé circumvente
by the individual acts of some persons, by collngid two or more people, or by management ovemidihe controls. The design of any syster
controls is based in part on certain assumptionsitatne likelihood of future events, and there bamno assurance that any design will succe
achieving its stated goals under all potential feitconditions. Projections of any evaluation oftcols effectiveness to future periods are subje
risks. Over time, controls may become inadequatalme of changes in conditions or deterioratioth@n degree of compliance with policies
procedures.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CORPORATE GOVERNAGE

The information required by this item is includedaur Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Meetih@tmckholders to be filed with t
SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscakyaled December 31, 2014 (the “2015 Proxy Stat&jnemd is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this item is includedtie 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedrnbgsereference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDEF
MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requibsdthis item is included in the 2015 Proxy Statatnand is incorporated herein
reference.

The information presented under the heading “Maf&ethe Registrant's Common Equity and Relatedci8tolder Matters —Securitie
Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensati@m$” in Item 5 of Part Il of this Form 10-K is ioiporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANDDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this item is includedtie 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedrésereference.
Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is includedtie 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedrésereference.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statements
Page

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing - Grant Thornton LLP F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operations F-5
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Lo F-6
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity F-7
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-8
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-9

(b) Exhibits.

The information set forth under “Exhibit Index” bel is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredaty authorized.

NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC.

Date: February 27, 2015 By: /s/ Steven R. Mumma
Steven R. Mumma
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 27, 2015 By: /s/ Kristine R. Nario
Kristine R. Nario
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Steven R. Mumma Chief Executive Officer, President and Director February 27, 2015
Steven R. Mumma (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Kristine R. Nario Chief Financial Officer February 27, 2015
Kristine R. Nario (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Douglas E. Neal Chairman of the Board February 27, 2015

Douglas E. Neal

/sl Alan L. Hainey Director February 27, 2015
Alan L. Hainey

/sl Steven G. Norcutt Director February 27, 2015
Steven G. Norcutt

/s/ David R. Bock Director February 27, 2015
David R. Bock

77




NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
For Inclusion in Form 10-K
Filed with
United States Securities and Exchange Commission
December 31, 2014
NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accogrfinm- Grant Thornton LLF
Consolidated Balance She

Consolidated Statements of Operati

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incoross|

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol@qtsty

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flt

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt

PAGE

F-2

F-4

F-5

F-6

F-7

F-8

F-9




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
New York Mortgage Trust, Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. (a Mamng corporation) and subsidiaries
“Company”) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the relairdotidated statements of operations, comprehensoene (loss), changes
stockholders’equity, and cash flows for each of the three yearshe period ended December 31, 2014. These fiahstatements are t
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these fiiahstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlo(United States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastateinents are free of material misstatemen
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidsopgorting the amounts and disclosures in thenfiieh statements. An audit also includes asse
the accounting principles used and significantnestés made by management, as well as evaluatingvirall financial statement presentation.
believe that our audits provide a reasonable Basisur opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of New Y
Mortgage Trust, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecerBthe2014 and 2013, and the results of their djggrsand their cash flows for each of the t
years in the period ended December 31, 2014 iroconify with accounting principles generally accepite the United States of Americ

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), the Compansyihterna
control over financial reporting as of December 3114, based on criteria established in the 2883 nal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued b

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ivay Commission (COSO), and our report datedugepr27, 2015 expressed an unqual
opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
February 27, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
New York Mortgage Trust, Inc

We have audited the internal control over financegorting of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. (a Minyd corporation) and subsidiaries |
“Company”) as of December 31, 2014, based on @iestablished in the 2018ternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgld®S0O). The Compang’ management is responsible for maintaining effectinterna
control over financial reporting and for its assesst of the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting, included in the accompan
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FimgnReporting. Our responsibility is to expressapinion on the Compang’internal contre
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight@d&nited States). Those standards ret
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtanassurance about whether effective internarabaver financial reporting was maintainec
all material respects. Our audit included obtainamgunderstanding of internal control over finahc@porting, assessing the risk that a mat
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the desigroperating effectiveness of internal controkelasn the assessed risk, and performing such
procedures as we considered necessary in the dtanoes. We believe that our audit provides a redse basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is aogess designed to provide reasonable assurancelirggahe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyeagtepted accounting principles. A company’
internal control over financial reporting includis®se policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheéaraintenance of records that, in reasonablely
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions aigpositions of the assets of the company; (2) ideveasonable assurance that transactior
recorded as necessary to permit preparation offiahstatements in accordance with generally aedepccounting principles, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made onbcaordance with authorizations of management arettdirs of the company; and (3) pro\
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetlction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opdhstion of the compang’assets that could h:

a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or detenisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods angect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or th:

degree of compliance with the policies or procesunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2014, base¢
criteria established in the 201r&ernal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated finar
statements of the Company as of and for the yededDecember 31, 2014, and our report dated FgbRATar2015 expressed an unqualified opi
on those financial statements.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
February 27, 2015
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
ASSETS

Investment securities, available for sale, atvaiue (including pledged securities of $702,684 and

$853,223, respectively) $ 816,64° $ 912,44:.
Investment securities, available for sale, at¥alue held in securitization trusts 38,59« 92,57¢
Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiosts (net) 149,61 163,23
Distressed residential mortgage loans held in $&ation trusts (net) 221,59; 254,72:
Distressed residential mortgage loans 361,10¢ 9,71z
Multi-family loans held in securitization trustg,fair value 8,365,51: 8,111,02;
Derivative assets 288,85( 197,59
Cash and cash equivalents 75,59¢ 31,79¢
Receivables and other assets 222,49: 125,57.
Total Assets(l) $ 10,540,00 $ 9,898,67!

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:
Financing arrangements, portfolio investments $ 651,96! $ 791,12
Financing arrangements, distressed residentialgaget loans 238,94¢ -
Residential collateralized debt obligations 145,54; 158,41(
Multi-family collateralized debt obligations, atifaalue 8,048,05: 7,871,021
Securitized debt 232,87 304,96-
Derivative liabilities 1,467 1,43
Payable for securities purchased 283,53 191,59
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (includiBg3®7 and $951 to related parties, respectively) 74,69: 54,46¢
Subordinated debentures 45,00( 45,00(
Total liabilities (1) 9,722,07! 9,418,00!
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 7.75% SeriesrButative redeemable, $25 liquidation preference |

share, 3,450,000 shares authorized, 3,000,000ssisateed and outstanding as of December 31, 2

and December 31, 2013, respectively 72,397 72,39
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 400,000,000 shatbei@dzed, 105,094,565 and 64,102,029 shares

issued and outstanding as of December 31, 201HDandmber 31, 2013, respectively 1,051 641
Additional paid-in capital 701,87: 404,55!
Accumulated other comprehensive income 10,01¢ 3,07:
Retained earnings 32,59: -
Total stockholders' equity 817,92 480,66t
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 10,540,00 $ 9,898,67:

(1) Our consolidated balance sheets include aasetfiabilities of consolidated variable interestiges ("VIES") as the Company is the primary
beneficiary of these VIEs. As of December 31, 28td December 31, 2013, assets of consolidated tét&led $8,847,078 and $8,665,829,
respectively, and the liabilities of consolidatelE¥ totaled $8,457,034 and $8,365,345, respecti@dg Note 7 for further discussion.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended

December 31,

INTEREST INCOME:
Investment securities and other $
Multi-family loans held in securitization trusts
Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiasts
Distressed residential mortgage loans

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Investment securities and other
Multi-family collateralized debt obligations
Residential collateralized debt obligations
Securitized debt
Subordinated debentures

Total interest expense

NET INTEREST INCOME

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Provision for loan losses
Impairment loss on investment securities
Realized gain (loss) on investment securities atated hedges, net
Realized gain on distressed residential mortgagesio
Unrealized (loss) gain on investment securitiesratated hedges, net
Unrealized gain on multi-family loans and debt hieldecuritization trusts, ne
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other income (including $2,644, $306 and $0 frotatesl parties, respectivel

Total other income

Base management and incentive fees (including $84%3,360 and $892 to
related parties, respectively)

Expenses related to distressed residential mortigags

Other general and administrative expenses (inctudiB0, $698 and $652 to
related parties, respectively)

Total general, administrative and other expenses

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TABS
Income tax expense

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income from discontinued operation - net of tax

NET INCOME
Net (loss) income attributable to r-controlling interest
Preferred stock dividends

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $

Basic income per common share

Diluted income per common share

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic

2014 2013 2012
54,39 $ 46,64¢ $ 26,93:
301,87 228,63 104,41
3,94¢ 4,70¢ 5,57¢
18,63 11,74 432
378,84° 291,72 137,34
5,56¢ 6,65¢ 3,64¢
275,91 210,22 97,03:
904 1,12¢ 1,337
16,76: 11,29: 1,94¢
1,85¢ 1,87¢ 1,967
301,01( 231,17 105,92
77,83 60,54¢ 31,42:
(1,939) (1,267) (76€)
- (225) -
42,09 (10,719 6,26¢
14,38( 1,60( 85
(7,667) 5,46¢ (3,947)
56,93 31,49t 6,66:
(3,397) — —
4,80¢ 2,70¢ 802
105,20 29,06: 9,10¢
24,53( 8,13: 5,01(
6,42¢ 3,86¢ -
9,50( 7,91¢ 6,417
40,45¢ 19,91 11,42;
142,58t 69,69+ 29,10
6,39t 73¢ 932
136,19 68,95¢ 28,16¢
- _ 14
136,19 68,95¢ 28,18:
- - (97)
(5,817) (3,56¢) -
130,37¢ $ 65,38 28,27¢
$ 1.4 $ 1.11 3 1.0¢
$ 1.4 $ 1.11 $ 1.0¢
87,86 59,10: 26,06
87,86 59,10: 26,06

Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

For the Years
Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDER¢ $ 130,37¢ $ 65,387 $ 28,27¢
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Increase (decrease) in net unrealized gain onablaifor sale securities 20,88: (18,800() 9,31(

Reclassification adjustment for net gain includedét income (13,039 - (1,079

(Decrease) increase in fair value of derivativerimaents utilized for cash flov

hedges (906) 3,78¢ (1,440
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 6,942 (15,01%) 6,79¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS $ 137,32 $ 50,37: $ 35,07¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

Balance, December 31, 2011

Net income

Stock issuance, net

Dividends declared

Decrease in non-controlling
interest related to sale of
interest in a mortgage loan he
for investment

Reclassification adjustment for
net gain included in net incon
Increase in net unrealized gain
available for sale securities
Decrease in fair value of
derivative instruments utilizec
for cash flow hedges
Balance, December 31, 2012
Net income
Common Stock issuance, net
Preferred Stock issuance, net
Dividends declared on common
stock
Dividends declared on preferret
stock
Decrease in net unrealized gair
on available for sale securitie
Increase in fair value of derivati
instruments utilized for cash
flow hedges
Balance, December 31, 2013
Net income
Common Stock issuance, net
Dividends declared on commor
stock
Dividends declared on preferrec
stock
Reclassification adjustment for
net gain included in net incon
Increase in net unrealized gain
available for sale securities
Decrease in fair value of
derivative instruments utilizec
for cash flow hedges
Balance, December 31, 2014

NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Retained Accumulated
Additional Earnings Other
Non-
Common Preferred Paid-In (Accumulated Comprehensive  Controlling
Stock Stock Capital Deficit) Income Interest Total

$ 13¢ % - $ 153,71 $ (79,869 $ 11,29 % 1,02¢ $ 86,30
- - - 28,27¢ - (97)  28,18.
357 - 232,10! = - - 232,46
- - (30,809 - - - (30,809
- - - - - (932) (932)
_ _ _ - (1,079 — (1,079
- - - - 9,31( - 9,31(
- - - - (1,440 - (1,440
49€ - 355,00t (51,589 18,08¢ - 322,00t
- - - 68,95¢ - - 68,95¢
14k - 100,95¢ - - - 101,10
- 72,391 - - - - 72,391
— — (51,410 (13,809 — - (65,21)
- - - (3,56¢) - - (3,56¢)
- - - - (18,800 - (18,800
- - - - 3,78¢ - 3,78¢
641 72,391 404,55! - 3,07: - 480,66t
- - - 136,19: - - 136,19:
41C - 297,31t - - - 297,72t
- - - (97,78¢) - - (97,78¢)
- - - (5,812 - - (5,81%)
- - - - (13,039 - (13,039
- - - - 20,88: - 20,88:
- - - - (90€) - (90€)
$ 1,061 $ 7239 $ 701,87 $ 32,59 $ 10,01f $ - $ 817,92

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigenl by operating activities:
Net amortization
Realized (gain) loss on investment securities atated hedges, net
Realized gain on distressed residential mortgagesio
Unrealized loss (gain) on investment securitiesratated hedges, net
Unrealized gain on loans and debt held in multiifgsecuritization trusts
Impairment loss on investment securities
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Net decrease in loans held for sale
Provision for loan losses
Income from investments in limited partnerships mited liability companies
Distributions of income from investments in limitpdrtnership and limited
liability companies
Amortization of stock based compensation, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables and other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities and accexpanses, related parties
Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Restricted cash
Proceeds from sales of investment securities
Purchases of investment securities
Return of capital from investments in limited panships and limited liability
companies
Purchases of other assets
Funding of first mortgage loan
Funding of mezzanine loan and preferred equitystments
Proceeds from sale of mezzanine loan and prefeqedy investments
Proceeds from mortgage loans held for investment
Net proceeds (payments) on other derivative instnimsettled during the
period
Principal repayments received on residential mgegdaans held in
securitization trusts
Principal repayments and proceeds from sales diméneing of distressed
residential mortgage loans
Principal repayments received on multi-family lo&e$d in securitization trust
Principal paydowns on investment securities - awdd for sale
Proceeds from sale of real estate owned
Purchases of residential mortgage loans and digile®sidential mortgage
loans
Purchases of loans held in multi-family securii@atrusts

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from (payments of) financing arrangements
Common stock issuance
Preferred stock issuance
Costs associated with common stock and preferoedk s$sued
Dividends paid on common stock
Dividends paid on preferred stock
Payments made on residential collateralized deljations

For the Year Ended

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
$ 136,19: $ 68,950 $ 28,18:
(2,679 13,42 10,48¢
(42,09) 10,71¢ (6,26¢)
(14,380) (1,600 (85)
7,667 (5,46¢) 3,947
(56,937 (31,49%) (6,667)
- 22t -

3,397 - -
87 341 93t
1,93¢ 1,267 76¢€
(4,567) (2,297) (622)
2,23¢ 1,97¢ 14¢
1,18( 897 82€
(3,63)) (18,097 (20,66()
9,11¢ 14,45; 18,09¢
37,55 53,30: 29,08¢
(10,15() 2,467 (20,78%)
93,57¢ 1,25¢ 50,57¢
(20,279 (72,189 (1,033,92)
- 3,55¢ 9,04z

(254) (99€) -
(1,147) (6,500) -
(48,679 (16,78%) (3,344
5,59( - -

- 21 3,34¢

1,12¢ (11,01 7,191
12,68 22,29; 18,49¢
64,71 15,64¢ -
80,45 73,83 28,03
98,87 125,91 47,68
3,88: - -
(405,42) (218,161 (61,700
- (71,62 (111,00:)
(125,01() (152,28) (1,066,38)
99,78¢ (98,009) 776,46
297,06 100,55: 232,66t
- 72,63 -

(518) (584) (1,037)
(86,705) (61,307) (22,309
(5,817) (2,115 -
(12,919 (22,65 (18,879



Payments made on multi-family collateralized ddiiigations
Capital distributed to non-controlling interest
Proceeds from securitized debt
Payments made and extinguishment of securitizet deb
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period

Supplemental Disclosure:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

Non-Cash Investment Activities:

Purchase of investment securities not yet settled
Consolidation of multi-family loans held in secimidtion trusts
Consolidation of multi-family collateralized dehtlmations

Non-Cash Financing Activities:

Dividends declared on common stock to be paid bsequent period
Dividends declared on preferred stock to be paguimssequent period

(83,83 (73,819 (28,039

- - (932)

- 191,70 114,71

(75,796 (7,409) (184)

131,26 99,00 1,052,48

43,80( 21 15,19:

31,79¢ 31,77 16,58¢

$ 7559% $ 3L79% $ 3L,77.
$ 352,23. $ 268,55, $ 115,65¢
$ 8,295 $ 794 $ 1,207
$ 28353 $ 191,59 $ 245,93
$ - % 3,218,30 $ 5,305,93:
$ - % 3,146,67 $ 5,195,16!
$ 28,37¢ $ 17,29° $ 13,38«
$ 145: $ 145. $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

1. Organization

New York Mortgage Trust, Inc., together with itsnsolidated subsidiaries (“NYMT,” and the “Companyi§ a real estate investm
trust, or REIT, in the business of acquiring, ifirgsin, financing and managing primarily mortgagéated assets and financial assets. Our obje
is to manage a portfolio of investments that walider stable distributions to our stockholdersradigerse economic conditions. We intend to act
this objective through a combination of income gaterl by net interest margin and net realized abpggins from our investment portfolio. C
portfolio includes investments in primarily mortgagelated and financial assets, including multiifarf@MBS, direct financing to owners of multi-
family properties through mezzanine loans and predeequity investments, residential mortgage lpamsluding loans sourced from distres
markets, Agency RMBS consisting of fixed-rate, atible-rate and hybrid adjustablte RMBS and Agency 10s consisting of interesty aanhc
inverse interest-only RMBS that represent the righthe interest component of the cash flow fropoal of mortgage loans.

The Company conducts its business through the pamnpany, NYMT, and several subsidiaries, inclgdépecial purpose subsidial
established for residential loan, distressed resialdoan, and CMBS securitization purposes, t&&EIT subsidiaries ("TRSs") and qualified R
subsidiaries ("QRSs"). The Company consolidatesfats subsidiaries under generally accepted autbog principles in the United States of Ame
(“GAAP").

The Company is organized and conducts its opestomualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income paxposes. As such, the Comp
will generally not be subject to federal incomeetscon that portion of its income that is distrilsute stockholders if it distributes at least 90%its
REIT taxable income to its stockholders by the da of its federal income tax return and comphiggh various other requirements.

2. Summary of Significant Accountig Policies

Definitions — The following defines certain of the commonly digerms in these financial statements: “RMB@fers to residenti
adjustable-rate, hybrid adjustable-rate, fixed;ratéerest only and inverse interest only and ppialconly mortgage-backed securitieAgency
RMBS” refers to RMBS representing interests in or obigyet backed by pools of mortgage loans issued aragueed by a federally charte
corporation (“GSE”"), such as the Federal Nationakfgage Association (“Fannie Mae”) or the Federafrté Loan Mortgage CorporationHfeddie
Mac”), or an agency of the U.S. government, sucthassovernment National Mortgage Association (‘i@&énMae”); “non-Agency RMBStefers t(
RMBS backed by prime jumbo mortgage loans; “lIOgerg collectively to interest only and inverse et only mortgag&acked securities tt
represent the right to the interest component efcdsh flow from a pool of mortgage loans; govemm&@Os” refers to mortgageacked securitie
that represent the right to the principal comporwdrthe cash flow from a pool of mortgage loansgéficy 10s”refers to an 10 that represents
right to the interest component of the cash flowesnf a pool of residential mortgage loans issueduaranteed by a GSE or an agency of the
government; “ARMs” refers to adjustable-rate restd®@ mortgage loans; “Prime ARM loans” and “resitlal securitized loansgach refer to prin
credit quality residential ARM loans (“prime ARMdas”) held in securitization trusts; “Agency ARMegfers to Agency RMBS comprised
adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate RMBHNIBS” refers to commercial mortgage-backed securitiemprised of commercial mortgage pass-
through securities, as well as 10 or PO securttias represent the right to a specific componenhefcash flow from a pool of commercial mortg
loans; “multi-family CMBS” refers to CMBS backed lspmmercial mortgage loans on multi-family propesti“CDOs”refers to collateralized de
obligations; and “CLO” refers to collateralized toabligations.

Basis of Presentatior The accompanying consolidated financial statembkate been prepared on the accrual basis of acoguim
accordance with GAAP. The preparation of finansiatements in conformity with GAAP requires managetrto make estimates and assump
that affect the reported amounts of assets anditiie and disclosure of contingent assets artilitees at the date of the financial statements He
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengiorting period. Although the Compasigstimates contemplate current conditions andit
expects them to change in the future, it is redslyrzossible that actual conditions could be déférthan anticipated in those estimates, whichd
materially impact the Compars/'results of operations and its financial conditiManagement has made significant estimates inraeegeas
including valuation of its CMBS investments, mdtimily loans held in securitization trusts and rafdmily CDOs, as well as income recognitior
distressed residential mortgage loans purchasadliatount.

Reclassifications- Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifiethe consolidated financial statements to canféo currer
period presentation.




Principles of Consolidation and Variable Interesttiies— The accompanying consolidated financial statemehtee Company incluc
the accounts of all its subsidiaries which are migj@wned, controlled by the Company or a variailerest entity (“VIE")where the Company
the primary beneficiary. All significant intercomupy accounts and transactions have been elimifratazhsolidation.

A VIE is an entity that lacks one or more of thecteristics of a voting interest entity. A VIEdefined as an entity in which eqt
investors do not have the characteristics of arotiimyg financial interest or do not have sufficieaquity at risk for the entity to finance its adies
without additional subordinated financial suppoanfi other parties. The Company consolidates awhEn it is the primary beneficiary of such v
As primary beneficiary, it has both the power tredi the activities that most significantly imp#oe economic performance of the VIE and a rig
receive benefits or absorb losses of the entity ¢bald be potentially significant to the VIE. T@®mpany is required to reconsider its evaluatic
whether to consolidate a VIE each reporting perased upon changes in the facts and circumstaectsning to the VIE.

Investment Securities Available for Sal€he Company's investment securities, where thevédire option has not been elected and w
are reported at fair value, with unrealized gaind bbsses reported in Other Comprehensive Inco®€("), include Agency RMBS, noAgency
RMBS and CLOs. Our investment securities are ifladsas available for sale securities. Realizeidgand losses recorded on the sale of inves
securities available for sale are based on theifgpé&tentification method and included in realizgdin (loss) on investment securities and re
hedges in the accompanying consolidated stateroépfserations. Purchase premiums or discounts westment securities are amortized or acc
to interest income over the estimated life of theestment securities using the effective yield méttAdjustments to amortization are made for a
prepayment activity.

The Company accounts for debt securities that itegh credit quality (generally those rated AA lmetter by a Nationally Recogniz
Statistical Rating Organization, or NRSRO) at dateacquisition in accordance with Accounting StaddaCodification (“ASC”) 320t0. The
Company accounts for debt securities that are hbigh credit quality (i.e., those whose risk ofdois less than remote) or securities that c:
contractually prepaid such that we would not recaxe initial investment at the date of acquisitioraccordance with ASC 3248). The Compar
considers credit ratings, the underlying credik @sd other market factors in determining whetler debt securities are of high credit qus
however, securities rated lower than AA or an egj@nt rating are not considered of high credit iyiaind are accounted for in accordance with .
325-40. If ratings are inconsistent among NRSRs Qompany uses the lower rating in determiningtidrethe securities are of high credit quality.

The Company assesses its impaired securities leagtta quarterly basis and designates such impatmas either “temporary” or “other-
than-temporary” by applying the guidance prescribedSC Topic 320t0. When the fair value of an investment secustiess than its amortiz
cost as of the reporting balance sheet date, theigeis considered impaired. If the Company e to sell an impaired security, or it is moreh
than not that it will be required to sell the immeal security before its anticipated recovery, thenust recognize an other-théemporary impairme
through earnings equal to the entire differencevben the investmerst’amortized cost and its fair value as of the liadasheet date. If the Compi
does not expect to sell an other-than-temporamilyaired security, only the portion of the otherritemporary impairment related to credit loss:
recognized through earnings with the remaindergeized as a component of other comprehensive indtoas) on the accompanying consolidi
balance sheets. Impairments recognized through ettraprehensive income (loss) do not impact eamikgllowing the recognition of an other-
thantemporary impairment through earnings, a new castshis established for the security, which maybeotadjusted for subsequent recoverit
fair value through earnings. However, other-tibemporary impairments recognized through earningy bre accreted back to the amortized
basis of the security on a prospective basis thrénigrest income. The determination as to whedhesther-thatemporary impairment exists anc
so, the amount considered other-thamporarily impaired is subjective, as such deteations are based on both factual and subjectieenratior
available at the time of assessment. As a redéttining and amount of other-théemporary impairments constitute material estimates ar
susceptible to significant change.

The Companys investment securities classified as availableséde also include its investment in a wholly owredount referred to
the Agency IO portfolio. These investments primaiiiclude Agency I0s. The Company has electedfdlirevalue option for these investm
securities, which measures unrealized gains arsg$othrough earnings in the accompanying consetidstitements of operations, as the Com
believes this accounting treatment more accuratetyconsistently reflects its results of operatiofike Agency IO portfolio also includes deriva
investments not designated as hedging instrumemntadcounting purposes, with unrealized gains asdes recognized through earnings ir
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Investment Securities Available for Sale Held iousiéization Trusts— The Companyg investment securities available for sale he
securitization trusts as of December 31, 2014 ampeised of multfamily CMBS consisting of PO securities that reprasthe first loss tranche
the securitizations from which they were issuedfiost loss tranche”, and certain IOs issued fromo Freddie Mac-sponsored multi-family 8erie:
securitizations. As of December 31, 2013, this antevas comprised of multamily CMBS consisting of PO securities, a firssdaranche floatir
rate security and 10 securities issued from fowdBie Mac-sponsored multi-family 8eries securitizations. These securities are repat fair valu
with unrealized gains and losses reported in O@hliRed gains and losses recorded on the saleve$timent securities available for sale hel
securitization trusts are based on the specifintifieation method and included in realized gaiosd) on sale of securities and related hedges
accompanying consolidated statements of operatfurehase premiums or discounts are amortizedaset@ad to interest income over the estim
life of the investment securities using the effestyield method.

Residential Mortgage Loans Held in Securitizationusts — Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiusts are comprised
certain ARM loans transferred to Consolidated ViEat have been securitized into sequentially ratadses of beneficial interests. The Com|
accounted for these securitization trusts as filmgscwhich are consolidated into the Comparfinancial statements. Residential mortgage |bafc
in securitization trusts are carried at their udpaincipal balances, net of unamortized premiundiscount, unamortized loan origination costs
allowance for loan losses. Interest income iswetand recognized as revenue when earned accaodihg terms of the mortgage loans and w
in the opinion of management, it is collectible.eTaccrual of interest on loans is discontinued wlremanagemenrd’ opinion, the interest is r
collectible in the normal course of business, lbuhd® case when payment becomes greater than 90deégguent. Loans return to accrual st
when principal and interest become current andatieipated to be fully collectible.

We establish an allowance for loan losses basethamagement's judgment and estimate of credit losgesent in our portfolio «
residential mortgage loans held in securitizatioists. Estimation involves the consideration ofauas creditrelated factors, including but not limit
to, macro-economic conditions, current housing raitonditions, loan-tealue ratios, delinquency status, historical crdd#s severity rate
purchased mortgage insurance, the borrower's dugoemomic condition and other factors deemed twaméa consideration. Additionally, we look
the balance of any delinquent loan and compare tthahe current value of the collateralizing prapeiWe utilize various home valuati
methodologies including appraisals, broker priadpinions, internebased property data services to review comparablegepties in the same aree
consult with a realtor in the property's area.

Acquired Distressed Residential Mortgage Loam3istressed residential mortgage loans are compn§@dols of fixed and adjustal
rate residential mortgage loans acquired by the 2o at a discount (that is due, in part, to crgdility of the borrower). Distressed residel
mortgage loans held in securitization trusts astrelised residential mortgage loans transferré&btesolidated VIEs that have been securitized
beneficial interests. The Company accounted fosehgecuritization trusts as financings which arasobidated into the Comparsy’financia
statements.

The Company considers the purchase price for thyiesd distressed residential mortgage loans tatbé&ir value at the date
acquisition. These acquired distressed residemiistgage loans were initially recorded at fair wahith no allowance for loan losses.

Acquired distressed residential mortgage loanshhae evidence of deteriorated credit quality apuésition are accounted for under A
Subtopic 310-30, "Loans and Debt Securities Acglwigh Deteriorated Credit Quality” ("ASC 310-300nder ASC 310, the acquired loans r
be aggregated and accounted for as a pool of ibéms loans being aggregated have common riskadaristics. A pool is accounted for as a si
asset with a single composite interest rate andggmegate expectation of cash flows. Once a poamdsembled, it is treated as if it was one loa
purposes of applying the accounting guidance.

Under ASC 310-30, the excess of cash flows expectdx collected over the carrying amount of thenk) referred to as thaccretabl
yield,” is accreted into interest income over the life lvé toans in each pool or individually using a leyald methodology. Accordingly, o
acquired distressed residential mortgage loansuated for under ASC 3180 are not subject to classification as nonacceladsification in th
same manner as our residential mortgage loansvikrat not distressed when acquired by us. Rathiereist income on acquired distressed resids
mortgage loans relates to the accretable yieldgrezed at the pool level or on an individual loaasis, and not to contractual interest payn
received at the loan level. The difference betweamntractually required principal and interest pagitaeand the cash flows expected to be colle
referred to as the “nonaccretable differende¢ludes estimates of both the impact of prepaymentd expected credit losses over the life o
individual loan, or the pool (for loans groupediat pool).
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The Company monitors actual cash collections agés®xpectations, and revised cash flow expemtatiare prepared as necessat
decrease in expected cash flows in subsequentdsemay indicate that the loan pool or individuarpas applicable, is impaired, thus requiring
establishment of an allowance for loan losses bliage to the provision for loan losses. An inceeiasexpected cash flows in subsequent pe
initially reduces any previously established alloe® for loan losses by the increase in the presdoe of cash flows expected to be collected,
results in a recalculation of the amount of acdietaield for the loan pool. The adjustment of atable yield due to a significant increas
expected cash flows is accounted for prospectiaslg change in estimate. The additional cash feoyected to be collected are reclassified fror
nonaccretable difference to the accretable yiaid,the amount of periodic accretion is adjustedatingly over the remaining life of the loans ire
pool or individual loan, as applicable.

An acquired distressed residential mortgage loay loearesolved either through receipt of paymenfylhor in part) from the borrowe
the sale of the loan to a third party, or forectesof the collateral. For acquired distressed eegidl mortgage loans held in pools, in the evédrd
sale of the loan, a gain or loss on sale is re@eghand reported based on the difference betweesales proceeds and the carrying amount «
acquired distressed residential mortgage loanhéndase of a foreclosure, an individual loan isaeed from the pool at the fair value of
underlying collateral less costs to sell. For loaatisfied by payment in full, the loan is removieain the pool. The Company uses the spe
allocation method for the removal of loans as ttéveated cash flows and related carrying amounéémh individual loan are known. In these c:
the remaining accretable yield is unaffected andraaterial change in remaining effective yield @iy the removal of the loan from the pos
addressed by the sssessment of the estimate of cash flows for tloé pspectively. Acquired distressed residentialrigiage loans subject
modification are not removed from the pool evethdse loans would otherwise be considered trouthdd restructurings because the pool, an
the individual loan, represents the unit of account

For individual loans not accounted for in poolstthi@ sold or satisfied by payment in full, a gaifloss on sale is recognized and repc
based on the difference between the sales pro@wtishe carrying amount of the acquired distresssitlential mortgage loan. In the case
foreclosure, the loss is recognized if the carryiaiie exceeds the fair value of the collateradgleosts to sell). A gain is not recognized if fiie
value of collateral (less costs to sell) exceedsctirrying value.

Multi-Family Loans Held in Securitization TrustaMulti-family loans held in securitization trustse comprised of mulfiamily mortgag:
loans held in six Freddie Mac-sponsored multi-fgrkitSeries securitizations (the “Consolidated Ki&&1) as of December 31, 2014 and Decer
31, 2013. Based on a number of factors, we deteunihat we were the primary beneficiary of each MiEin the Consolidated ISeries, met tt
criteria for consolidation and, accordingly, havensolidated these Freddie Mac-sponsored multi-fafdiiSeries securitizations, including tt
assets, liabilities, income and expenses in oanfiral statements. The Company has elected thedhie option on each of the assets and liabi
held within the Consolidated K-Series, which regsithat changes in valuations in the assets abidities of the Consolidated ISeries be reflect:
in the Company's accompanying consolidated statemeoperations, as the Company believes this atauy treatment more accurately
consistently reflects its results of operations.

Interest income is accrued and recognized as rewehen earned according to the terms of the moettrzans and when, in the opinior
management, it is collectible. The accrual of iestron loans is discontinued when, in managersainion, the interest is not collectible in
normal course of business, but in no case when paybecomes greater than 90 days delinquent. Liedansh to accrual status when principal
interest become current and are anticipated tailbedollectible.

Mezzanine Loan and Preferred Equity Investmerfthe Company invests in mezzanine loans and preferggity of entities that ha
significant real estate assets. The mezzanineitoaacured by a pledge of the borrower’s equity enship in the propertyJnlike a mortgage, th
loan does not represent a lien on the propertyrefbee, it is always junior and subordinate to éimst-lien as well as second liens, if applicable
the property. These loans are senior to any pegfeequity or common equity interests. Purchasémnezzanine loans benefit from a righ
foreclose on the ownership equity in a more effitimanner than senior mortgage debt.

A preferred equity investment is an equity invesitria an entity that owns the underlying properBreferred equity is not secured by
underlying property, but holders have priority teda to common equity holders on cash flow disttibis and proceeds from capital events
addition, preferred equity holders may be ablenioaece their position and protect their equity pasiwith covenants that limit the entigyactivitie:
and grant the holder the exclusive right to corttnel property after an event of default.
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Mezzanine loans and preferred equity investmentereavthe risks and payment characteristics arevalgumit to mezzanine loans,
accounted for as loans held for investment andtated at unpaid principal balance, adjusted fgriaramortized premium or discount, deferred
or expenses, net of valuation allowances, andrataded in receivables and other assets. Wetaocor@mortize any discounts or premiums ove
life of the related loan receivable utilizing thiéeetive interest method or straight limeethod, if the result is not materially differeWie evaluate tt
collectability of both interest and principal ofabeof our loans, if circumstances warrant, to detee whether they are impaired. A loan is impe
when, based on current information and events, jirobable that we will be unable to collect alleamts due according to the existing contrat
terms. When a loan is impaired, the amount of élss hccrual is calculated by comparing the carrgimgunt of the investment to the estimatec
value of the loan or, as a practical expedienth¢ovalue of the collateral if the loan is collaledtependent.

Mezzanine loans and preferred equity investmentrevthe risks and payment characteristics are aelguitvto an equity investment
accounted for using the equity method of account8ee “Investment in Limited Partnership and Limited LlapiCompanies for a description ¢
our accounting policy for Investments in Limitedrfdarships and Limited Liability Companies. The fpreed equity investments are includet
receivables and other assets.

Mortgage Loans Held for InvestmentMortgage loans held for investment are stated giaighprincipal balance, adjusted for
unamortized premium or discount, deferred feesxpemses, net of valuation allowances, and are dieclun receivables and other assets. Ini
income is accrued on the principal amount of thenldased on the loan’contractual interest rate. Amortization of preméuand discounts
recorded using the effective yield method. Inteiesbme, amortization of premiums and discounts prepayment fees are reported in inte
income. A loan is considered to be impaired whes jitrobable that based upon current informatiaherents, the Company will be unable to co
all amounts due under the contractual terms ofdhe agreement. Based on the facts and circumstarfdbe individual loans being impaired, I
specific valuation allowances are established Herexcess carrying value of the loan over eittipthé present value of expected future cash f
discounted at the loan’s original effective inténede, (ii) the estimated fair value of the Iaaninderlying collateral if the loan is in the prese
foreclosure or otherwise collateral dependentijiditiie loan’s observable market price.

Investments in Limited Partnership and Limited liligbCompanies- In circumstances where the Company has acootrolling interes
but either owns a significant interest or is aleekert influence over the affairs of the entemgrithe Company utilizes the equity methor
accounting. Under the equity method of accountitg, initial investment is increased each period ddditional capital contributions anc
proportionate share of the entity’s earnings offgered return and decreased for cash distributaord a proportionate share of the ensitiosse:
Where the Company is not required to fund additidtosses, the Company does not continue to redergroportionate share of the entitybsse
such that its investment balance would go below.zer

Management periodically reviews its investmentsifopairment based on projected cash flows fromethitity over the holding peric
When any impairment is identified, the investmearts written down to recoverable amounts.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents include cash on handjrasmdue from banks and overnight deposits,
which have original maturities of 90 days or leBse Company maintains its cash and cash equivaiertighly rated financial institutions, anc
times these balances exceed insurable amounts.

Receivables and Other AssetReceivables and other assets as of December 34,&82@12013 include restricted cash held by thintigs
of $54.2 million and $44.1 million, respectivelincluded in restricted cash is $40.6 million an® g3million held in our Agency 10 portfolio to
used for trading purposes and $11.4 million and.3hallion held by counterparties as collateral fi@dging instruments as of December 31, :
and 2013, respectively. Interest receivable on irfiaithily loans held in securitization trusts is alscluded in receivables and other assets il
amounts of $29.8 million and $30.2 million as ofd@mber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investment3he Company finances the majority of its Agency R8Burchases using repurch
agreements. Under a repurchase agreement, aniassdtl to a counterparty to be repurchased atturef date at a predetermined price, w
represents the original sales price plus inter€ee Company accounts for these repurchase agrégefinancings under ASC 860ansfers an
Servicing. Under ASC 860, for these transactions to bedteas financings, they must be separate trangsactind not linked. If the Compe
finances the purchase of its securities with relpagse agreements with the same counterparty frorshwihie securities are purchased and
transactions are entered into contemporaneously contemplation of each other, the transactioespgesumed under GAAP to be part of the ¢
arrangement, or a "Linked Transaction," unlessagertriteria are met. None of the Companyépurchase agreements are accounted for as
transactions because they met the applicableieriteeccordance with ASC 860-10-40.

Financing Arrangements, Distressed Residential Bge Loans- The Company finances a portion of its distresssitlemtial mortgac
loans through a repurchase agreement, expiringnuithe year. The borrowing under the repurchaseemgent bears an interest rate of a spe:
margin over onenonth LIBOR. The repurchase agreement is treatedcadlateralized financing transaction and isiedrat the contractual amout
as specified in the respective agreement. Cositerkto the establishment of the repurchase agreentech include underwriting, legal, account
and other fees are reflected as deferred chargeb. ®sts are included on the Compangtcompanying consolidated balance sheets invediei
and other assets in the amount of $1.7 millionfaBexember 31, 2014. These deferred charges aretiaetbas an adjustment to interest exp
using the effective interest method, or straigitlimethod, if the result is not materially diffetren
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Residential Collateralized Debt Obligations (“Residial CDOs”) — We use Residential CDOs to permanently financeresidentic
mortgage loans held in securitization trusts. Fuarfcial reporting purposes, the ARM loans helda@kateral are recorded as assets of the Con
and the Residential CDOs are recorded as the Coripdebt. The Company completed four securitizatior 8005 and 2006. The first three w
accounted for as a permanent financing while thetfiowas accounted for as a sale and accordirglypt included in the Comparsyaccompanyir
consolidated financial statements

M ulti- Family Collateralized Debt Obligations (“MtirFamily CDOs”) — We consolidated the ConsolidatedSEries including their del
referred to as Multi-Family CDOs, in our financg&htements. The Multi-Family CDOs permanently ficeathe multifamily mortgage loans held
the Consolidated KSeries securitizations. For financial reportingpmses, the loans held as collateral are recordedsets of the Company and
Multi-Family CDOs are recorded as the Company’stdéte refer to both the Residential CDOs and Miaétimily CDOs as CDOs in this report.

Securitized DebtSecuritized Debt represents thpdrty liabilities of Financing VIEs and excludeaHilities of the VIEs acquired by t
Company that are eliminated on consolidation. Then@any has entered into several financing tranmestithat resulted in the Compi
consolidating as VIEs the special purpose entifike “SPEs”)that were created to facilitate the transactiond #nwhich underlying assets
connection with the financing were transferred. TQmmpany engaged in these transactions primaribptain permanent or longer term financing
a portion of its multi-family CMBS and acquired lessed residential mortgage loans.

Costs related to issuance of securitized debt wimicltude underwriting, rating agency, legal, acammand other fees are reflectec
deferred charges. Such costs are included on éhg@nys accompanying consolidated balance sheets invediles and other assets in the am
of $2.2 million and $4.1 million as of December 30,14 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Thefgerdd charges are amortized as an adjus!
to interest expense using the effective intereshatk or straight line-method, if the result is nwdterially different.

The Company has multi-family CMBS investments isshg Freddie Mac-sponsored Series securitization trusts. Based on evaluatf
ASC 810, six of these K-Series securitization susuired consolidation in the accompanying cadatd financial statements. The mdémily
CMBS investments issued by four K-Series secutitimatrusts serve as collateral for certain Semait Debt issued by the Company. The multi-
family CMBS investments issued by two K-Series sitization trusts are not pledged or collateral &my financing as of December 31, 204«
Note 7).

Derivative Financial Instruments The Company has developed risk management progaachgrocesses, which include investmen
derivative financial instruments designed to managgest rate and prepayment risk associateditgittecurities investment activities.

Derivative instruments contain an element of riskthie event that the counterparties may be unahteeet the terms of such agreems
The Company minimizes its risk exposure by limitthg counterparties with which it enters into caats to banks and investment banks who
established credit and capital guidelines.

The Company invests in To-Be-Announced securitiéBAs”) through its Agency 10 portfolio. TBAs arefwardsettling purchases a
sales of Agency RMBS where the underlying poolsnafitgage loans are “To-Be-AnnouncedPursuant to these TBA transactions, we agr
purchase or sell, for future settlement, Agency FBVBith certain principal and interest terms andaiertypes of underlying collateral, but
particular Agency RMBS to be delivered is not idéed until shortly before the TBA settlement daff@r TBA contracts that we have entered |
we have not asserted that physical settlementdbate, therefore we have not designated theseafdrwommitments as hedging instrume
Realized and unrealized gains and losses assogiéttethese TBAs are recognized through earningsasisof the other income (expense) catega
the consolidated statements of operations.

For derivative instruments that are designatedcualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portiérihe gain or loss on the derivai
instrument is reported as a component of OCI aoldssified into earnings in the same period orgariduring which the hedged transaction af
earnings. The remaining gain or loss on the devieahstruments in excess of the cumulative changbe present value of future cash flows of
hedged item, if any, is recognized in current eagaiduring the period of change.

For instruments that are not designated or quakfya cash flow hedge, such as our use of U.S. Udmeascurities or financial future
options on financial futures contracts and interat swaps in our Agency 10 portfolio, any realizmd unrealized gains and losses associate:
these instruments are recognized through earnmgthar income (expense) in the consolidated sttesmof operations.

Termination of Hedging RelationshipsThe Company employs risk management monitoring eores to ensure that the design
hedging relationships are demonstrating, and gpea®d to continue to demonstrate, a high leveiffiectiveness. Hedge accounting is discontil
on a prospective basis if it is determined thattikdging relationship is no longer highly effectimeexpected to be highly effective in offset
changes in fair value of the hedged item.
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Additionally, the Company may elect to un-desigrateedge relationship during an interim period emdesignate upon the rebalanc
of a hedge profile and the corresponding hedgedioekhip. When hedge accounting is discontinuee,Gbmpany continues to carry the derive
instruments at fair value with changes recordegbimings.

Revenue RecognitiohInterest income on our investment securities andunresidential mortgage loans held in securitiratrusts i
accrued based on the outstanding principal balancetheir contractual terms. Premiums and discoasgeciated with investment securities
mortgage loans at the time of purchase or originatire amortized into interest income over the difesuch securities using the effective y
method. Adjustments to amortization are made ftua@repayment activity.

Interest income on our credit sensitive securisesh as our CLOs and certain of our CMBS that \perehased at a discount to par ve
is recognized based on the security’s effectiveregt rate. The effective interest rate on theseriies is based on managemsrdstimate from ea
security of the projected cash flows, which arénested based on the Compasmyssumptions related to fluctuations in interagts, prepayme
speeds and the timing and amount of credit lo&3eat least a quarterly basis, the Company revaws if appropriate, makes adjustments to its
flow projections based on input and analysis remifrom external sources, internal models, angiidgment about interest rates, prepayment |
the timing and amount of credit losses, and othetofs. Changes in cash flows from those originptlyjected, or from those estimated at the
evaluation, may result in a prospective changenyield/interest income recognized on these sgesiri

Based on the projected cash flows from the Comafigst loss tranche PO mufémily CMBS purchased at a discount to par vall
portion of the purchase discount is designatedoasatcretable purchase discount or credit resevhigh partially mitigates the Comparsytisk o
loss on the mortgages collateralizing such nfaltily CMBS, and is not expected to be accreted interest income. The amount designated
credit reserve may be adjusted over time, basd@bdeactual performance of the security, its undieglgollateral, actual and projected cash flow f
such collateral, economic conditions and otherdiactif the performance of a security with a cre@gerve is more favorable than forecaste
portion of the amount designated as credit reserg be accreted into interest income over time v€mely, if the performance of a security wi
credit reserve is less favorable than forecastelatnount designated as credit reserve may beasexule or impairment charges and wdtevns o
such securities to a new cost basis could result.

With respect to interest rate swaps that have sehllesignated as hedges, any net payments undirctaations in the fair value «
such swaps will be recognized in earnings.

See “Acquired Distressed Residential Mortgage Loanfr a description of our revenue recognition polifty acquired distress
residential mortgage loans.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)The Company comprehensive income/(loss) available to comntookkolders includes r
income, the change in net unrealized gains/(loszes)s available for sale securities and its dgie hedging instruments, currently comprise
interest rate swaps, (to the extent that such dsarge not recorded in earnings), adjusted byzeghhet gains/(losses) reclassified out of accurec
other comprehensive income/(loss) for availablestde securities and is reduced by dividends dedlan the Company’s preferred stock.

Employee Benefits PlarsThe Company sponsors a defined contribution fttae “Plan”) for all eligible domestic employees. The F
qualifies as a deferred salary arrangement undeidded01(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1386amended (the “Internal Revenue CodEhk
Company made no contributions to the Plan for #sry ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Stock Based CompensatiertCompensation expense for equity based awards anok issued for services are recognized over théng
period of such awards and services based uporaithesue of the stock at the grant date.

Income Taxes The Company operates in such a manner so as tifygasla REIT under the requirements of the InteRevenue Cod
Requirements for qualification as a REIT includeimas restrictions on ownership of the Companstock, requirements concerning distributio
taxable income and certain restrictions on theneatfi assets and sources of income. A REIT mustildise at least 90% of its taxable income ti
stockholders, of which 85% plus any undistributedoants from the prior year must be distributed imitthe taxable year in order to avoid
imposition of an excise tax. Distribution of then@ning balance may extend until timely filing betCompanys tax return in the subsequent tax
year. Qualifying distributions of taxable income aleductible by a REIT in computing taxable inco
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Certain activities of the Company are conducteduh TRSs and therefore are subject to federalaridus state and local income ta:
Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilitiee aecognized for the future tax consequences atitiie to differences between the finar
statement carrying amounts of existing assets mfdities and their respective tax bases. Defetaed assets and liabilities are measured 1
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablenieco the years in which those temporary differsraes expected to be recovered or settled
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities ofi@nge in tax rates is recognized in income irpréod that includes the enactment date.

ASC 740,Income Taxes provides guidance for how uncertain tax positisheuld be recognized, measured, presented, acldss i
the financial statements. ASC 740 requires theuatimin of tax positions taken or expected to bernak the course of preparing the Compartg>
returns to determine whether the tax positions“arere-likely-than-not”of being sustained by the applicable tax authotitysituations involvin
uncertain tax positions related to income tax msttwe do not recognize benefits unless it is nikedy than not that they will be sustained. ASQ@
was applied to all open taxable years as of thectffe date. Managemestdeterminations regarding ASC 740 may be subjegetiew an
adjustment at a later date based on factors imoyidiut not limited to, an ongoing analysis of laws, regulations and interpretations thereof.
Company will recognize interest and penaltiesnif,aelated to uncertain tax positions as incormesigense.

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andnsputed by dividing net income available to commstockholder
by the weightedaverage number of shares of common stock outstgridimthe period. Diluted earnings per share réflélee potential dilution th
could occur if securities or other contracts taiesgsommon stock were exercised or converted intonoon stock or resulted in the issuanc
common stock that then shared in the earningseo€thmpany.

Segment Reporting ASC 280, Segment Reporting, is the authoritativelance for the way public entities report informatiabou
operating segments in their annual financial statés We are a REIT focused on the business ofidagyuinvesting in, financing and manag
primarily mortgage-related assets, and financis¢ts and currently operate in only one reportagtgnent.

Summary of Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Liabilities (ASC 405

In April 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standddgslate ("ASU") 2013-04Liabilities (Topic 405)-Obligations Resulting from Jo
and Several Liability Arrangements for Which thaaldmount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the RepwtDate ("ASU 201304"), which provide
guidance for the recognition, measurement, andadisee of obligations resulting from joint and seldiability arrangements for which the tc
amount of the obligation is fixed at the reportolate. ASU 20134 became effective for the Company beginning Janua2014. The adoption
ASU 2013-04 did not have an effect on the Compargrsolidated financial statements.

Income taxes (ASC 74

In November 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013kdome Taxes (Topic 740]resentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Wt
Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss a Tax Credit Carryforward Exisi(*ASU 2013-11"). ASU No. 2013:1 provide that ¢
unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion thereof,usthde presented in the financial statements &slaction to a deferred tax asset for a net opg
loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a taxddrearryforward, except to the extent that a rggrating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossadey
credit carryforward is not available at the repagtiate to settle any additional income taxeswmatld result from disallowance of a tax positior
the tax law does not require the entity to use, taedentity does not intend to use, the deferredsset for such purpose, then the unrecognize
benefit should be presented as a liability. ASU2Q1 became effective for the Company beginningidanl, 2014. The adoption of ASU 2013-
did not have an impact on the Company's consolidiit@ncial statements.

Receivables (ASC 31

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-OReceivables—Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creslit(Subtopic 310-46}
Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Cotkdteed Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclos(*ASU 2014-04"). The amendments of ti
ASU are intended to clarify when a creditor shdugdconsidered to have received physical possee$i@sidential real estate property collaterali.
a consumer mortgage loan such that the loan sHmulderecognized and the real estate recognizeatddiiion, the amendments clarify that a
substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, amddéor is considered to have received physicaspssion of residential real estate proj
collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, uporeeitfl) the creditor obtaining legal title to thesidential real estate property upon completioa
foreclosure, or (2) the borrower conveying all iest in the residential real estate property toctieglitor to satisfy that loan through completidra
deed in lieu of foreclosure or through a similagdkeagreement. ASU 20184 is effective for fiscal years, and interim pedowithin those yeal
beginning after December 15, 2014. We do not exirecadoption of ASU 20184 to have a significant effect on our financiahdibion, results ¢
operations and disclosures.
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Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-Tfgnsfers and Servicing: Repurchase-to-Maturity n&action, Repurchase Financings,
and Disclosureg“ASU 2014-09"). This guidance requires repurchisenaturity transactions to be accounted for s borrowings as if the
transferor retains effective control, even thoulgh transferred financial assets are not returngtiedransferor at settlement. ASU 2014-09 also
eliminates existing guidance for repurchase finageiand requires instead that entities consideririti@l transfer and the related repurchase
agreement separately when applying the derecogniéiquirements of ASC 860, Transfers and Servidiey disclosures will be required for (1)
certain transactions accounted for as securedWwings and (2) transfers accounted for as sales whetransferor also retains substantially all of
the exposure to the economic return on the tramsfefinancial assets throughout the term of thas@ation. This guidance will take effect for
periods beginning after December 15, 2014, ang eadption is prohibited. Certain disclosures urtbis guidance do not take effect until the first
period beginning after March 15, 2015. We do nqieet the adoption of ASU 2014-11 to have a sigaift effect on our financial condition,
results of operations and disclosures.

Revenue Recognition (Topic 6(

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, RevemamfContracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09”). Thisidance creates a new,
principle-based revenue recognition framework thidltaffect nearly every revenue-generating entdgU 2014-09 also creates a new topic in the
Codification, Topic 606 (“ASC 606"). In addition tsuperseding and replacing nearly all existing WAAP revenue recognition guidance,
including industry-specific guidance, ASC 606 dtes following: (1) establishes a new control-baseagenue recognition model; (2) changes the
basis for deciding when revenue is recognized tiwe or at a point in time; (3) provides new andrendetailed guidance on specific aspects of
revenue recognition; and (4) expands and improisgdagures about revenue. ASC 606 is effectivegpidilic business entities for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016, inclgdimerim periods therein. Early application is parmitted for public business entities. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of thidapce.

Consolidation (Topic 810)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-Measuring the Financial Assets and the Financiahhilities of a Consolidated
Collateralized Financing Entity*ASU 2014-13"). For entities that consolidate dlateralized financing entity within the scope bfst update, an
option to elect to measure the financial assets thedfinancial liabilities of that collateralizeéih&ncing entity using either the measurement
alternative included in this Update or Topic 820fain value measurement is provided. The guidasceffective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2015, and the interim periods withiosé fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted fathe beginning of an annual period. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of thidance.
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3. Investment Securities Available For Sale

Investment securities available for sale consisthef following as of December 31, 2014 and Decen#ier2013 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

December 31, 201 4 December 31, 201 3
Amortized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
Agency RMBS:
Agency ARMs
Freddie Mac $ 5759 $ 55 % (48¢) $ 57,16¢ $ 67,12. $ 37 $ (2,10) $ 65,05
Fannie Mae 113,19: 81 (1,039 112,23t 130,48 58 (3,129 127,41
Ginnie Mae 12,55: — (259) 12,29 17,04¢ — (207) 16,84¢
Total Agency ARMs 183,34: 13¢€ (1,789 181,69: 214,65’ 95 (5,430 209,32:
Agency Fixed Rate
Freddie Mac 37,80( — (629) 37,17: 43,92( — 1,719 42,20¢
Fannie Mae 451,69 — (10,189 441 51( 518,59¢ — (24,867) 493,73
Total Agency Fixed Rat 489,49: — (10,819 478,68: 562,51¢ — (26,579 535,94:
Agency 10s(1)
Freddie Mac 38,84 277 (5,779 33,33¢ 43,46¢ 252 (5,187 38,53
Fannie Mae 53,66¢ 741 (6,38¢) 48,01¢ 60,81 1,30( (5,007 57,10¢
Ginnie Mae 42,99: 31( (5,527 37,77 37,66( 70€ (2,396 35,97(
Total Agency I0Os 135,50: 1,32¢ (17,699 119,13: 141,94: 2,25¢ (12,590 131,60¢
Total Agency RMBS 808,33t 1,46( (30,29) 779,50! 919,11¢ 2,352 (44,59 876,87-
Non-Agency RMBS 2,061 69 (197 1,93¢ 2,41: 13€ (18¢) 2,361
CLOs 26,14( 9,06: — 35,201 18,47¢ 14,73( — 33,20¢
Total investment securities
available for sale $ 836,53- $ 10,59: $ (30,48:) $ 816,64- $ 940,00-‘ $ 17,215 $ (44,785) $ 912,44:
CMBS $ 26,190 $ 1240. $ — $ 3859« $ 7431« $ 18,26« $ — $ 92,57¢
Total investment securities
available for sale held in
securitization trusts $ 26,190 $ 12,40 $ — 3 3895 $ 7431+ $ 1826: $ — $ 9257¢

(@ Included in investment securities available foresas of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are AgencyA@sncy |0s are measured at fair ve
through earnings.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coypaeived total proceeds of approximately $93.Bioni realizing approximate
$39.1 million of net gains, from the sale of invaent securities available for sale. During the y&ated December 31, 2013, the Company rec
total proceeds of approximately $1.3 million, re&alg approximately $0.1 million of net gains, frahe sale of investment securities available
sale. During the year ended December 31, 2012Ctimpany received total proceeds of approximately.&Hillion, realizing approximately $(
million of net gains, from the sale of investmeeturities available for sale.

Actual maturities of our available for sale sedastare generally shorter than stated contracta&lirities (which range up to 30 years)
they are affected by the contractual lives of thdarlying mortgages, periodic payments and prepaysref principal. As of December 31, 2014
2013, based on management’s estimates using thwathrhistorical CPR, the weighted average lifehef Companys available for sale securit
portfolio was approximately 4.95 years and 7.03ye@espectively.
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The following table sets forth the weighted averdiges our investment securities available for sateof December 31, 2014 :
December 31, 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
Weighted Average Life 2014 2013
0to 5 years $ 393,08( $ 281,06¢
Over 5 to 10 years 365,38 451,63!
10+ years 58,18! 179,74(
Total $ 816,64° $ 912,44;

The following tables set forth the stated reseiqulsr of our investment securities available foesatd investment securities available
sale held in securitization trusts at Decembe2B14 and December 31, 2013 at carrying value (dalfzounts in thousands):

December 31, 201 4 December 31, 201 3
Less than ¢ 61024 More than Less than ¢ 61024 More than
months months 24 months Total months months 24 months Total
Agency RMBS $ 8944 $ 21,74¢ $ 668317 $ 77950 $ 97,38 $ 14,82: $ 764,66t $ 876,87
Non-Agency RMBS 1,93¢ — — 1,93¢ 2,361 — — 2,361
CLOs 35,20: — — 35,20: 33,20¢ — — 33,20¢
Total investment securities
available for sale $ 126,58 $ 21,74¢ $ 668,317 $ 81664 $ 132,95 $ 14,821 $ 764,66t $ 91244
CMBS $ — 9 — $ 3859« $ 3859« $ 2823 $ — $ 64,34¢ $ 92,57¢
Total investment securities
available for sale held in
securitization trusts $ — $ — $ 3859« $ 38594 $ 2823 $ — $ 6434¢ $ 92,57¢

The following tables present the Company's investnsecurities available for sale and investmentuigiées available for sale held
securitization trusts in an unrealized loss positieported through OCI, aggregated by investmertggeay and length of time that individi
securities have been in a continuous unrealizesijosition at December 31, 2014 (dollar amounthdasands):

December 31, 2014 Less than 12 Months Greater than 12 months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Agency RMBS $ — % — 638,93t $ (12,59) $ 638,93t $ (12,597
Non-Agency RMBS — — 967 (191 967 (197)
Total investment securities available fc
sale $ — 3 — 3 639,90 $ (12,789 $ 639,90 $ (12,789
CMBS $ — 9 — 9 — 9 — 9 — $ —
Total investment securities available fc
sale held in securitization trusts $ — 8 — 8 — 8 — $ — 8 —
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The following tables present the Company's investnsecurities available for sale and investmentsges available for sale held
securitization trusts in an unrealized loss positieported through OCI, aggregated by investmerggesy and length of time that individi
securities have been in a continuous unrealizesddosition at December 31, 2013 (dollar amounthdasands):

December 31, 2013 Less than 12 Months Greater than 12 months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Agency RMBS $ 332,51¢ $ (11,429 $ 398,32! $ (20,582 $ 730,84 $ (32,005
Non-Agency RMBS — — 1,104 (188 1,104 (188
Total investment securities
available for sale $ 332,51¢ $ (11,42:) $ 399,42¢ $ (20,770 $ 731,94¢ $ (32,193
CMBS $ —$ — $ — $ — $ —$ =
Total investment securities
available for sale held in
securitization trusts $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —$ —

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Compaengnized $0.2 million in other-thaamporary impairment through earnir
respectively. For the years ended December 31, a@#ldDecember 31, 2012, the Company did not havealired losses in investment secur
that were deemed other-than-temporary.

4. Residential Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Tusts (Net) and Real Estate Owne:

Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatists (net) consist of the following at December 32014 and December 31, 2C
respectively (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Unpaid principal balance $ 152,27° $ 165,17:
Deferred origination costs — net 96¢ 1,05:
Reserve for loan losses (3,630 (2,989
Total $ 149,61 $ 163,23’

Allowance for Loan LossesThe following table presents the activity in then@jmny's allowance for loan losses on residentiatgage
loans held in securitization trusts for the yeardezl December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respec{ideliar amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of period $ 298¢ $ 2,97¢ $ 3,331
Provisions for loan losses 99¢ 701 67E
Transfer to real estate owned (35€) (407) (89¢9)
Charge-offs — (28%) (129)
Balance at the end of period $ 3631 $ 2,98¢ 2,97¢

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates theuadg®f its allowance for loan losses. The Compa@fowance for loan losses
December 31, 2014 was $3.6 million, representir@Zssis points of the outstanding principal balasfoesidential loans held in securitization tr
as of December 31, 2014, as compared to 181 basits@s of December 31, 2013. As part of the Cawygaallowance for loan adequacy analy
management will assess an overall level of allowanghile also assessing credit losses inherenadh aonperforming residential mortgage Ic
held in securitization trusts. These estimateslius/the consideration of various credit relateddes; including but not limited to, current hous
market conditions, current loan to value ratiodind@ency status, the borrower’s current economit eredit status and other relevant factors.
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Real Estate Owned Fhe following table presents the activity in then@manys real estate owned held in residential securitimatust:
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l, 284pectively (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,10¢ $ 73z % 454
Write downs (103) (433 (129
Transfer from mortgage loans held in securitizatrosts 537 1,184 1,56¢
Disposal (577 (375 (1,169
Balance at the end of period $ 9%t $ 1106 $ 732

Real estate owned held in residential securitinattiosts are included in receivables and othertsisgethe balance sheet and write dc
are included in provision for loan losses in theesnent of operations for reporting purposes.

All of the Companys mortgage loans and real estate owned held idaetsal securitization trusts are pledged as aaitfor the
Residential CDOs issued by the Company. As of Bibeg 31, 2014 and 2013, the Companyét investment in the residential securitizatiosts
which is the maximum amount of the Companirivestment that is at risk to loss and represttr@tslifference between the carrying amount o
mortgage loans and real estate owned held in mesdisecuritization trusts and the amount of Residl CDOs outstanding, was $5.6 million
$6.6 million, respectively.

Delinquency Status of Our Residential Mortgage Loas Held in Securitization Trusts

As of December 31, 2014, we had 33 delinquent lagitls an aggregate principal amount outstandingfroximately $18.5 millic
categorized as Residential Mortgage Loans HeldeicuStization Trusts (net). Of the $18.5 million delinquent loans, $9.4 million, or 51%,
under some form of modified payment plan. The tdalow shows delinquencies in our portfolio of desitial mortgage loans held in securitiza

trusts, including real estate owned through foraale (REO), as of December 31, 2014 (dollar amaduarttsousands):

December 31, 2014

Number of Total

Delinquent Unpaid % of Loan
Days Late Loans Principal Portfolio
30 - 60 4 $ 1,522 0.9%%
61 — 90 — $ — 0.00%
90 + 29 $ 16,99: 11.01%
Real estate owned through foreclosure 6 $ 2,10¢ 1.36%

As of December 31, 2013, we had 34 delinquent lagitls an aggregate principal amount outstandingfroximately $18.9 millic
categorized as Residential Mortgage Loans HeldeicuStization Trusts (net). Of the $18.9 milliondelinquent loans, $9.1 million, or 48%, w
under some form of modified payment plan. The tdalow shows delinquencies in our portfolio of desitial mortgage loans held in securitiza
trusts, including REO through foreclosure, as of@®@aber 31, 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2013

Number of Total

Delinquent Unpaid % of Loan
Days Late Loans Principal Portfolio
30 - 60 3 $ 601 0.3€%
61 — 90 1 $ 23¢ 0.14%
90 + 30 $ 18,03¢ 10.76%
Real estate owned through foreclosure 5 $ 2,381 1.42%
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The geographic concentrations of credit risk extep8% of the total loan balances in our residémtiartgage loans held in securitizat
trusts and real estate owned held in resident@lrgézation trusts at December 31, 2014 and 20&3aa follows:

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
New York 36.1% 35.€%
Massachusetts 24.(% 24.€%
New Jerse! 10.9% 10.4%
Florida 6.2% 5.8%
Connecticut 5.€% 5.€%

5. Distressed Residential Mortgage Loan

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013¢cdhging value of the Compars/acquired distressed residential mortgage
amounts to approximately $582.7 million and $26#illion, respectively.

The Company considers its purchase price for tiqeieed distressed residential mortgage loans, dictudistressed residential mortg
loans held in securitization trusts, to be at Yailue at the date of acquisition. The Company @shablishes an allowance for loan losses subse
to acquisition.

The following table presents information regardihg estimates of the contractually required paysjethie cash flows expected to
collected, and the estimated fair value of therelssted residential mortgage loans acquired dunieg¢ars ended December 31, 2014 and Dect
31, 2013, respectively (dollar amounts in thousgnds

December 31, December 31
2014 2013
Contractually required principal and interest $ 910,78 $ 368,57:
Nor-accretable yield (85,479 (47,459
Expected cash flows to be collected 825,31 321,11¢
Accretable yield (424,449 (102,95))
Fair value at the date of acquisition $ 400,86¢ $ 218,16t

The following table details activity in accretabjéeld for the distressed residential mortgage lpansluding distressed residen
mortgage loans held in securitization trusts, foe years ended December 31, 2014 and December(03B, Pespectively (dollar amounts
thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Balance at beginning of period $ 171,11 $ 91,25:
Additions 598,24° 102,95:
Disposals (110,309 (11,35)
Accretion (18,639 (11,74)
Balance at end of perid&) $ 64041t $ 171,1%

Daccretable yield is the excess of the distresssitleatial mortgage loangash flows expected to be collected over the psehice. The ca
flows expected to be collected represents the Cogipaestimate of the amount and timing of undiscoumtedcipal and interest cash flo\
Additions include accretable yield estimates forchases made during the period and reclassificatiatcretable yield from nonaccretable vyi
Deletions include distressed residential mortgag® Idispositions, which include refinancing, sald &oreclosure of the underlying collateral
resulting removal of the distressed residentialtgame loans from the accretable yield, and redleatibns from accretable to nonaccretable y
The reclassifications between accretable and noetatide yield and the accretion of interest incambased on various estimates regarding
performance and the value of the underlying redtesecuring the loans. As the Company continugather additional information regarding
loans and the underlying collateral, the accretgidéd may change. Therefore, the amount of acbletancome recorded in the twelwesntr
period ended December 31, 2014 is not necessadigative of future results.
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The geographic concentrations of credit risk exoep&% of the unpaid principal balance in our @isted residential mortgage lo:
including distressed residential mortgage loans lirelsecuritization trusts, as of December 31, 28td December 31, 2013, respectively, ai
follows:

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Florida 12.2% 8.3%
California 8.€% 14.4&%
North Caroline 8.2% 3.5%
Georgia 6.% 3.2%
New York 5.1% 8.1%
Texas 3.2% 6.€%

The Companys distressed residential mortgage loans held iardgization trusts with a carrying value of appnmately $221.6 million ar
$254.7 million at December 31, 2014 and DecembefB13, respectively, are pledged as collateratéotain of the Securitized Debt issued by
Company(see Note 7) In addition, distressed residential mortgage $oaith a carrying value of approximately $327.4limil at December 31, 201
are pledged as collateral for a Master Repurchaseeinent, with Deutsche Bank AG, Cayman Islands@résee Note 10)

6. Consolidated K-Series

The Company has elected the fair value option enadsets and liabilities held within the ConsoBdaK-Series, which requires tt
changes in valuations in the assets and liabildfethe Consolidated ISeries be reflected in the Company's statementpearfations. Our investme
in the Consolidated K-Series is limited to the midmily CMBS comprised of first loss tranche PQkties and/or certain 10s issued by certain K-
Series securitizations with an aggregate net aagryelue of $317.5 million and $240.0 million atd@enber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivebeq
Note 7).

The condensed consolidated balance sheets of theolidated KSeries at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2843 ctively, al
as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
Balance Sheets 2014 2013
Assets
Multi-family loans held in securitization trusts $ 8,365,51. $ 8,111,02
Receivables 29,80¢ 30,22:
Total Assets $ 8,395,320 $ 8,141,24.
Liabilities and Equity
Multi-family CDOs $ 8,048,05. $ 7,871,02
Accrued expenses 29,35¢ 29,76¢
Total Liabilities 8,077,40 7,900,78!
Equity 317,91¢ 240,45¢
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 8,395,320 $ 8,141,24.

The multifamily loans held in securitization trusts had udpeggregate principal balances of approximatel $flion and $8.0 billion ¢
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplgctilee multifamily CDOs had aggregate unpaid principal balarafeapproximately $7.
billion and $8.0 billion at December 31, 2014 anecBmber 31, 2013, respectively. As of December2B14 and 2013, respectively, the cur
weighted average interest rate on these Multi-Ra@DOs was 4.15% and 4.16%.

The Company does not have any claims to the asse@itsligations for the liabilities of the Consolidd K-Series (other than the secu
represented by our first loss piece). We havetedethe fair value option for the ConsolidatedSKries. The net fair value of our investment ir
Consolidated K-Series, which represents the diffegebetween the carrying values of midtinily loans held in securitization trusts less tlaerying
value of multifamily CDOs, approximates the fair value of our erging securities. The fair value of our underlyisecurities is determined us
the same valuation methodology as our CMBS investsnavailable for salésee Note 14)
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The condensed consolidated statements of operaifdhe Consolidated ISeries for the years ended December 31, 2014, 203201
respectively, are as follows (dollar amounts irutbends):

Year Ended December 31,

Statements of Operations 2014 2013 2012
Interest income $ 301,87 $ 228,63 $ 104,41(
Interest expense 275,91¢ 210,22¢ 97,03
Net interest income 25,96: 18,40: 7,37¢
Unrealized gain on multi-family loans and debt hieldecuritization trusts 56,93! 31,49t 6,66:
Net Income $ 82,89: $ 49,897 $ 14,04(

The geographic concentrations of credit risk exoepd% of the total loan balances related to ourBSvinvestments included
investment securities available for sale and nfattiily loans held in securitization trusts as ofcBeaber 31, 2014 and December 31, 2
respectively, are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
California 13.5% 14.(%
Texas 12.5% 13.7%
New York 7.7% 7.2%
Maryland 5.2% 4.2%
Florida 4.8% 6.5%
Washington 4.£€% 5.2%

7. Use of Special Purpose Entities and Variable Intest Entities

A Special Purpose Entity (“SPEI3 an entity designed to fulfill a specific limitegted of the company that organized it. SPEs fhee
used to facilitate transactions that involve seizinig financial assets or ecuritizing previously securitized financial asseThe objective of su
transactions may include obtaining n@atourse financing, obtaining liquidity or refinémg the underlying securitized financial assetsroprovec
terms. Securitization involves transferring asse®n SPE to convert all or a portion of thosetssmto cash before they would have been reaiiz
the normal course of business through the SP&Suance of debt or equity instruments. Investoan SPE usually have recourse only to the &t
the SPE and depending on the overall structurbeofransaction, may benefit from various formsreflit enhancement, such as oeeHateralizatiol
in the form of excess assets in the SPE, priorithh vespect to receipt of cash flows relative tddecs of other debt or equity instruments issue
the SPE, or a line of credit or other form of lidity agreement that is designed with the objeati’ensuring that investors receive principal ar
interest cash flow on the investment in accordaritie the terms of their investment agreement.

The Company has evaluated its CMBS investmentsréadie Mac-sponsored Beries securitizations to determine whether the
VIEs. In addition, the Company also evaluatediitancing transactions, such as its Residential €@@mnpleted in 2005, its multi-family CMBS re-
securitization transaction completed in May 2012 collateralized recourse financing transactiommeted in November 2012 and November :
and its distressed residential mortgage loan d&ation transactions completed in December 201#y 2013 and September 2013 (eac
“Financing VIE” and collectively, the “Financing ¥6”) and concluded that the entities created tiite each of the transactions are VIEs.

The Company then completed an analysis of whetheMiEs should be consolidated by the Company, dbaseconsideration of i
involvement in each of the VIEs, including the desand purpose of the SPE, and whether its invatvemeflected a controlling financial inter
that resulted in the Company being deemed the pyirbaneficiary of the VIEs. In determining whethtee Company would be considered
primary beneficiary, the following factors were essed:

° whether the Company has both the power to dinecactivities that most significantly impact theoeomic performance of the VIE;
and
° whether the Company has a right to receive benefiabsorb losses of the entity that could bem@lly significant to the VIE.

The Company has determined that it has a varialbdgedst in the Consolidated 8eries for which it is the primary beneficiary amab i
controlling financial interest and, accordingly,sheonsolidated their assets, liabilities, income axpenses in the accompanying consolic
financial statementsgee Notes 2 and)6

Also, based on its evaluation of the factors disedsabove, including its involvement in the purpasel design of the entity, t

Company determined that the Financing VIEs, exéepthe collateralized recourse financing transacttompleted in November 2012, met
criteria for consolidation and, accordingly, congated the Financing VIEs created to facilitatesthansactions as of December 31, 2014.
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In September 2014, the Company, through a whmlyed subsidiary, repurchased $52 million of owigitag notes issued in connect
with the Companys November 2012 collateralized recourse financiagdaction. The repurchase of the notes resultethd simultaneous
termination of the CMBS master repurchase agreeemeted into by affiliates of the Company in cartimn with the November 2012 collaterali:
recourse financing transaction (and the relatedymeent of outstanding borrowings thereunder) aidréinsfer back to the Company of the multi-
family CMBS serving as collateral for the $52 naifli of borrowings. The master repurchase agreenmetesl into in November 2012 was sched
to mature in November 2015. In connection with &zly termination of this master repurchase agreénthe Company recognized a loss
extinguishment of debt of $3.4 million, which inded unamortized debt issue costs of $0.4 milliomfthe transaction. The repayment of the r
and the termination of this master repurchase aggaedeconsolidated the Financing VIE that fad#itkithe transaction as of December 31, 2014.

The following table presents a summary of the asartl liabilities of these consolidated Financiri@d/ Intercompany balances h
been eliminated for purposes of this presentation.
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Assets and Liabilities of consolidated Financindge¥las of December 31, 2014 (dollar amounts in tiods):

Non-financed

Financing VIEs VIEs
Distressed
Multi-family Residential Residential
CMBS re- Collateralized Mortgage Mortgage Multi-
securitization Recourse Loan Loan family
Financing @  Securitization =~ Securitization CMBS @) Total
Investment securities available for sale
fair value held in securitization trusts $ 38,59 $ — % — $ — $ — $ 38,59/
Residential mortgage loans held in
securitization trusts (net) — — — 149,61« — 149,61
Distressed residential mortgage loans
in securitization trust (net) — — 221,59: — — 221,59:
Multi-family loans held in securitization
trusts, at fair value 1,273,63. 4,720,90! — — 2,370,97. 8,365,51.
Receivables and other assets 5,097 15,63 39,08¢ 1,54 10,40¢ 71,76¢
Total assets $ 131732 $ 473653 $ 260,670 $ 151,15¢ $ 2,381,38. $ 8,847,07
Residential collateralized debt obligatic $ — 3 —  $ — % 14554: $ — % 145,54:
Multi-family collateralized debt
obligations, at fair value 1,221,55! 4,558,06! — — 2,268,43: 8,048,05:
Securitized debt 27,66( 55,85: 149,36 — — 232,87"
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,581 14,63¢ 1,024 14 10,30¢ 30,56
Total liabilities $ 125379 $ 462855 $ 150,38t $ 14555¢ $ 2,278,773 $ 8,457,03
@ The Company classified the multi-family CMBS issuBdtwo K-Series securitizations and held by this Financithg & available for se

securities as the purpose is not to trade theseiges. The Financing VIE consolidated oneSKries securitization that issued certain o
multi-family CMBS owned by the Company, including itsetss liabilities, income and expenses, in its friahstatements, as based ¢
number of factors, the Company determined thatais ¥he primary beneficiary and has a controllimgdicial interest in this particular K-
Series securitizationgee Note §.

@ The multifamily CMBS serving as collateral under the Novem®@13 collateralized recourse financing are cosgutiof securities issu
from three separate Freddie Mac-sponsored multiljard-Series securitizations. The Financing VIE neolidated these ISerie!
securitizations, including their assets, liabistiencome and expenses, in its financial statemastbased on a number of factors,
Company determined that it was the primary bersfyjcand has a controlling financial interest infseSeries securitizationssgée Note §.
In September 2014, the Company repaid the Companytstanding notes from its collateralized recetirsancing transaction completec
November 2012 with a principal amount of $52.0 imill With the repayment of the notes, the Companyinated and deconsolidated
Financing VIE that facilitated this financing traesion and the mulfiamily CMBS serving as collateral on the notes weaasferred bac
to the Company.

® Two of the Company’s Freddie Mac-sponsored multiifp K-Series securitizations included in the Cdidated K-Series is not subject to
any financing as of December 31, 2014.
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Assets and Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs as ecBmber 31, 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Financing VIEs

Distressed
Residential
Multi-family Mortgage Residential
CMBS re- Collateralized Loan Mortgage
securitization Recourse Securitization Loan
@ Financings(2) s Securitizations Total
Investment securities available for sale, at falue held in
securitization trusts $ 29,28¢ $ 63,28¢ $ — 8 — $ 92,57¢
Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiosts (net — — — 163,23 163,23
Distressed residential mortgage loans held in #&ation
trusts (net) — — 254,72: — 254,72:
Multi-family loans held in securitization trustg,fair value 1,234,08 6,876,93 — — 8,111,02;
Receivables and other assets 5,241 27,19¢ 10,077 1,76( 44,27:
Total assets $ 126861 $ 6,967,442 $ 264,79: $ 16499° $ 8,665,82
Residential collateralized debt obligations $ — % — % — 3 158,41( $ 158,41(
Multi-family collateralized debt obligations, atffaalue 1,195,63 6,675,38. — — 7,871,02
Securitized debt 27,24( 107,85: 169,87: — 304,96
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,64( 25,31¢ 981 15 30,95:
Total liabilities $ 122751 $ 6,80855 $ 170,85: $ 158,42! $ 8,365,34

D The Company classified the multi-family CMBS issusdtwo K-Series securitizations and held by the Financing ®$ available for se
securities as the purpose is not to trade theagises. The Financing VIE consolidated oneSiries securitization that issued certain o
multi-family CMBS owned by the Company, including its etss liabilities, income and expenses, in its foiahstatements, as based ¢
number of factors, the Company determined thati the primary beneficiary and has a controllimgiicial interest in this particular 8erie:
securitization gee Note §.

@) The multifamily CMBS serving as collateral under the collalized recourse financing are comprised of sdegrissued from seven sepa
Freddie Mac-sponsored multifamily K-Series seczaiions. The Financing VIE classified the multisily CMBS issued by two KSerie:
securitizations and held by the Financing VIE aailable for sale securities as the purpose is mttaide these securities. The Financing
consolidated five of the ISeries securitizations, including their asset§jliiées, income and expenses, in its financiatesteents as based o
number of factors, the Company determined thaté&s whe primary beneficiary and has a controllingafficial interest in such Kerie:
securitizations éee Note §.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s se¢ieed debt collateralized by mufiamily CMBS and distressed resider
mortgage loans (dollar amounts in thousands):

Distressed
Collateralized Residential Mortgage

Multi-family CMBS Re cour s e Financingg  Loan Securitization s

Re-securitization(1) 2 3
Original Face amount of Notes issued by the VIE pmthase

by 3rd party investors $ 35,000 $ 107,85: $ 176,97(
Principal Amount at December 31, 2014 $ 34,20¢ $ 55,85! $ 149,36
Principal Amount at December 31, 2013 $ 34506 $ 107,85 $ 169,87:
Carrying Value at December 31, 204 $ 27,66( $ 55,85 $ 149,36:¢
Carrying Value at December 31, 2043 $ 27,24  $ 107,85 $ 169,87:
Pass-through rate of Notes issued at December034, 2 One-month LIBOR plu:
5.35% 5.25% 4.25%- 4.85%

(1) The Company engaged in the re-securitization teisa primarily for the purpose of obtaining nogcourse financing on a portion of

multi-family CMBS portfolio. As a result of engaging inig transaction, the Company remains economicaipsed to the first loss positi
on the underlying multiamily CMBS transferred to the Consolidated VIE €Tholders of the Note have no recourse to the geosxdit of th:
Company, but the Company does have the obligatimer certain circumstances, to repurchase asgeis the breach of certe
representations and warranties. The Company vadive all remaining cash flow, if any, throughrgained ownership.

The Company entered into CMBS Master Repurchaseekgents with a three-year term for the purposenahting a portion of its muhi
family CMBS portfolio. In connection with these isactions, the Company agreed to guarantee thari@unctual payment of its wholly
owned subsidiary's obligations under the CMBS MaRepurchase Agreements. In September 2014, thep@omrepaid the Comparsy’
outstanding notes from its collateralized recoftirs@ncing transaction completed in November 201thwiprincipal amount of $52.0 millic
In connection with the repayment of the notes, @wenpany terminated and deconsolidated the Finan¢lggthat facilitated the financir
transaction and the multi-family CMBS serving afiateral on the notes were transferred back tdQbeapany.

(3)  The Company engaged in these transactions foruh@ope of financing distressed residential mortdagas acquired by the Company.
distressed residential mortgage loans serving Bate@l for the financings are comprised of pariong, reperforming and to a lesser ext
non-performing, fixed and adjustable-rate, fudiyortizing, interest only and balloon, seasonedgage loans secured by first liens on or
four family properties. Two of the four securitimat transactions provide for a revolving periodasfe to two years from the date of
respective financing (“Revolving Periodihere no principal payments will be made on the@natl cash proceeds generated by the distr
residential mortgage loans and received by theeiy@ securitization trust during the RevolvingiBe, after payment of interest on the n
reserve amounts and certain other transaction sggemill be available for the purchase by thettafidditional mortgage loans that sat
certain eligibility criteria.

Classified as securitized debt in the liability time of the Company’s accompanying consolidatedted sheets.

(2)

(4)

The following table presents contractual maturitjormation about the Financing VIEsecuritized debt as of December 31, 2014
December 31, 2013, respectively (dollar amountaduisands):

Scheduled Maturity (principal amount) December 31, December 31, 20
201 4 3
Within 24 months $ 205,210 $ 90,70(
Over 24 months to 36 months — 187,02:
Over 36 months 34,20¢ 34,50
Total 239,42! 312,23:
Discount (6,54¢) (7,267)
Carrying value $ 232,870 $ 304,96

There is no guarantee that the Company will recaivecash flows from these securitization trusts.
Residential Mortgage Loan Securitization Transactio
The Company has completed four residential mortgkgen securitizations (other than the distressesldeatial mortgage lo:

securitizations discussed above) since inceptlomfitst three were accounted for as permanennéings and have been included in the Company’
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Unconsolidated VIEs

The Company has evaluated its multi-family CMBSeistvments in two and four Freddie Mac-sponsore8eles securitizations as
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and ézzanine loan, preferred equity and other equitgsiments to determine whether they are
and should be consolidated by the Company. Basead mumber of factors, the Company determined ithddes not have a controlling financ
interest and is not the primary beneficiary of th®4Es. The following table presents the classtf@aand carrying value of unconsolidated VIE
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 (dollar amountsdngands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Investment Investment
securities securities
available for available for
sale, at fair sale, at fair
value, held in Receivables value, held in Receivables
securitization and o ther securitization and o ther
trusts Assets Total trusts Assets Total
Multi-Family CMBS $ 38,59« $ 80 $ 38,67: $ 92,57¢ $ 182 % 92,76!
Mezzanine loan and equity investment — 72,79¢ 72,79¢ — 28,05¢ 28,05¢
Total assets $ 38,59: $ 72,87¢ $ 111,47. $ 92,57¢ $ 28,24. $ 120,81¢

Our maximum loss exposure on the médinily CMBS investments and mezzanine loan andtgguvestments is approximately $11
million and $120.8 million at December 31, 2014 d&ecember 31, 2013, respectively. The Compamgaximum exposure does not exceec
carrying value of its investments.

8. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company enters into derivative instruments émage its interest rate risk exposure. These demvestruments include interest r
swaps, swaptions and futures. The Company maypaisghase or sell short TBAs and U.S. Treasury #eesjrpurchase put or call options on (

Treasury futures or invest in other types of may&gderivative securities.

The following table presents the fair value of dative instruments that were not designated asihgdgstruments and their location
our consolidated balance sheets at December 34,&8d December 31, 2013, respectively (dollar arrsomrthousands):

Derivatives Not Designated December 31, December 31,
as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2014 2013
TBA securitiedd Derivative assets $ 284,97 $ 190,74
U.S. Treasury futures Derivative assets 37¢ 3,257
Swaptions Derivative assets 2,27¢ 1,30¢
Options on U.S. Treasury futures Derivative assets 92 7
Interest rate swap futures Derivative assets — 23€
Eurodollar futures Derivative liabilities 90C 1,432
Interest rate swagd) Derivative liabilities 232 —
Interest rate swap futures Derivative liabilities 331 —

(1) Open TBA purchases and sales involving the samatemarty, same underlying deliverable and the saetiiement date are reflected in
accompanying consolidated financial statements aetéasis. There was no netting of TBA sales agdiBA purchases as of December
2014 and December 31, 2013.

(@ Includes interest rate swaps in our Agency |@fplio.
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The tables below summarize the activity of deriatinstruments not designated as hedges for thes wramled December 31, 2014
2013, respectively (dollar amounts in thousands).

Notional Amount For the Year Ended December 31, 2G4

Settlement,
Derivatives Not Designated December 31 Expiration December 31
as Hedging Instruments 2013 Additions or Exercise 2014

TBA securities $ 188,000 $ 2,575,000 $ (2,490,000 $ 273,00(
U.S. Treasury futures (11,900 130,50( (116,300 2,30(
Interest rate swap futures (242,700 996,50( (943,900 (190,100
Eurodollar futures (3,360,000 3,134,001 (2,735,000 (2,961,000
Options on U.S. Treasury futures 40,00( 48,20( (67,200 21,00(
Swaptions 100,00( 150,00( (70,000 180,00(
Interest rate swaps — 10,00( — 10,00(

Notional Amount For the Year Ended December 31, 2@BL

Settlement,
Derivatives Not Designated December 31 Expiration December 31
as Hedging Instruments 2012 Additions or Exercise 2013
TBA securities $ 234,000 $ 2,563,000 $ (2,609,00) $ 188,00(
U.S. Treasury futures (172,100 875,60( (715,400 (11,900
Interest rate swap futures (13,000 542,70( (772,400 (242,700
Eurodollar futures (2,852,000 3,492,001 (4,000,001 (3,360,001
Options on U.S. Treasury futures 70,00( 310,00( (340,000 40,00(
Swaptions 100,00( — — 100,00(

The following table presents the components ofizedland unrealized gains and losses related tdenivative instruments that were not
designated as hedging instruments included in dtiteme (expense) in our consolidated statemerpefations for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Realized Unrealized Realized Unrealized Realized Unrealized
Gains Gains Gains Gains Gains Gains

(Losses) (Losses) (Losses) (Losses) (Losses) (Losses)
TBA $ 13,70¢  $ 2,47 $ (12,399 $ (629 $ 16,397 $ (1,347
Eurodollar future$t) (2,14¢) 533 (3,59) 2,36¢ (1,049 (2,049
Interest rate swaps 25¢ (232
Swaptions — (1,069 — 1,15 — (26%)
U.S. Treasury and Interest rate swap

futures and options (8,83)) (3,332) 5,41¢ 2,86¢ (9,54¢) 1,30(

Total $ 2,99C $ (1,627 $ (10,566 $ 5,75¢€ $ 5807 $ (2,369

(1) At December 31, 2014, the Eurodollar futures cdrdi®,961 contracts with expiration dates randietiveen March 2015 and September
2017.

The use of TBAs exposes the Company to market vidlkeas the market value of the securities thatGompany is required to purch
pursuant to a TBA transaction may decline belowafeeeddpon purchase price. Conversely, the market vaiubeosecurities that the Compan
required to sell pursuant to a TBA transaction rnmeyease above the agreed upon sale price. At DemeB1, 2014 and 2013, our consolid:
balance sheets include TB&lated liabilities of $283.5 million and $191.6lidh included in payable for securities purchasebpectively. Ope
TBA purchases and sales involving the same couatgrpsame underlying deliverable and the saméssnt date are reflected in our consolid
financial statements on a net basis.

The following table presents the fair value of dative instruments designated as hedging instrusreemd their location in the Compasy’
consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@lBecember 31, 2013, respectively (dollar amounthousands):

Derivatives Designated December 31, December 31,
as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2014 2013
Interest rate swaps Derivative assets $ 1,13t $ 2,041
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The Company has netting arrangements by countgrpaith respect to its interest rate swaps. Corgracta liability position of $0.
million have been netted against the asset positiéii.3 million and contracts in a liability pasit of $0.3 million have been netted against trse
position of $2.3 million in the accompanying coridated balance sheets at December 31, 2014 andribece&1, 2013, respectively.

The following table presents the impact of the Camps derivative instruments on the Compangccumulated other comprehen
income (loss) for the years ended December 31,,200¥8 and 2012 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments 2014 2013 2012
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) éoivdtive instruments:
Balance at beginning of the period $ 2,041 $ 1,749 % (304)
Unrealized (loss) gain on interest rate swaps (906) 3,78¢ (1,440
Balance at end of the period $ 1,13t $ 2,041 $ (1,749

The Company estimates that over the next 12 moagimoximately $1.2 million of the net unrealizeadrs on the interest rate swaps
be reclassified from accumulated other compreheriscome (loss) into earnings.

The following table details the impact of the Comyia interest rate swaps designated as hedging instrisnmcluded in interest expe
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 anl, 284pectively (dollar amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Interest Rate Swaps:
Interest expense-investment securities $ 1,84¢ $ 1,737 $ 81C

The Companys interest rate swaps, except interest swaps iedlirdour Agency 10 portfolio, are designated ashddow hedges agair
the benchmark interest rate risk associated watkhbrt term repurchase agreements. There werest® iacurred at the inception of our interest
swaps, under which the Company agrees to pay d fede of interest and receive a variable intamr#st based on one month LIBOR, on the noti
amount of the interest rate swaps.

The Company documents its rislanagement policies, including objectives and etjias, as they relate to its hedging activities!, @vor
entering into hedging transactions, documents #tationship between the hedging instrument andhibdged liability contemporaneously. -
Company assesses, both at inception of a hedgeraad on-going basis, whether or not the hedghighly effective’when using the matched te
basis.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting on g@ctise basis and recognizes changes in the faievhrough earnings when: (i
is determined that the derivative is no longerdaffe in offsetting cash flows of a hedged itencliing forecasted transactions); (ii) it is nodes
probable that the forecasted transaction will ocour(iii) it is determined that designating theridative as a hedge is no longer appropriate.
Company’s derivative instruments are carried onGbenpanys balance sheets at fair value, as assets, iffdiewvalue is positive, or as liabilities
their fair value is negative. For the Company’sidsive instruments that are designated as “casW fthedges,’changes in their fair value
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive indéwss), provided that the hedges are effectivehange in fair value for any ineffective amc
of the Companyg derivative instruments would be recognized imiegss. The Company has not recognized any changeeinvalue of its existir
derivative instruments designated as cash flow éetlgrough earnings as a result of ineffectivenéssy of its hedges.
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The following table presents information about empanys interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2014 awerbber 31, 201
respectively (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Notional Fixed Pay Notional Fixed Pay
Maturity (1) Amount Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate
Within 30 Days $ — —% $ — —%
Over 30 days to 3 months — — — —
Over 3 months to 6 months — — — —
Over 6 months to 12 months 135,00( 0.4t — —
Over 12 months to 24 months — — 135,00( 0.4t
Over 24 months to 36 months 215,00( 0.8¢ — —
Over 36 months to 48 months — — 215,00( 0.8<
Over 48 months to 60 months 10,00( 2.2t — —
Total $ 360,00( 0.7:% $ 350,00( 0.6c%0

@ The Company enters into interest rate swap traiosscivhereby the Company pays a fixed rate of ésteaind receives one month LIBOR.

The use of derivatives exposes the Company to eguantty credit risks in the event of a default bgcanterparty. If a counterpa
defaults under the applicable derivative agreemiret, Company may be unable to collect payments hixtwit is entitled under its derivati
agreements, and may have difficulty collectingaksets it pledged as collateral against such desga The Company currently has in place wit|
counterparties biateral margin agreements requiring a party to poBateral to the Company for any valuation defi€his arrangement is intenc
to limit the Company’s exposure to losses in then¢wf a counterparty default.

The Company is required to pledge assets undefeadoal margin arrangement, including either casAgency RMBS, as collateral 1
its interest rate swaps, futures contracts and TBA®se collateral requirements vary by counteypartd change over time based on the m
value, notional amount, and remaining term of tgeeament. In the event the Company is unable td mesargin call under one of its agreeme
thereby causing an event of default or triggeringearly termination event under one of its agreemehe counterparty to such agreement may
the option to terminate all of such counterpartytastanding transactions with the Company. In a@alditunder this scenario, any closet amour
due to the counterparty upon termination of thentexpartys transactions would be immediately payable byGbmpany pursuant to the applice
agreement. The Company believes it was in comgdiamith all margin requirements under its agreemeastof December 31, 2014 and 2013.
Company had $11.4 million and $10.2 million of rieted cash related to margin posted for its ageremas of December 31, 2014 and 2
respectively. The restricted cash held by thirdipaiis included in receivables and other assetfsermccompanying consolidated balance sheets.

9. Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investments

The Company has entered into repurchase agreeméthisthird party financial institutions to finandés investment portfolio. Tt
repurchase agreements are shemta borrowings that bear interest rates typichiged on a spread to LIBOR, and are secured lsetheities whic
they finance. At December 31, 2014, the Companyrkpdrchase agreements with an outstanding balzr®@52.0 million and a weighted aver.
interest rate of 0.43%. At December 31, 2013 Gbmpany had repurchase agreements with an outstphédlance of $791.1 million and a weigt
average interest rate of 0.49%. As of December2814 and 2013, the average days to maturity forepurchase agreements are 26 days al
days, respectively. The Compasyaccrued interest payable on outstanding repuechgeements at December 31, 2014 and 2013 antou$ts:
million and $0.6 million, respectively, and is indked in accrued expenses and other liabilitieherCompany’s consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table presents detailed informatidioat the Companyg’ borrowings under repurchase agreements and atsbesse
pledged as collateral at December 31, 2014 andrbleee31, 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

2014 2013
Amortized Amortized
Outstanding  Fair Value of Cost Outstanding  Fair Value of Cost
Repurchase Collateral Of Collateral Repurchase Collateral Of Collateral
Agreements Pledged Pledged Agreements Pledged Pledged
Agency RMBS
Agency ARMs $ 171,85. $ 181,69: $ 183,34 $ 197,97 $ 208,70: $ 214,03¢
Agency Fixed Rate 413,19¢ 437,00: 446,85: 489,95! 516,01( 541,58(
Agency 10s 66,91/ 83,98t 95,12¢ 94,69¢ 113,72: 122,87¢
CLOs — — — 8,50( 14,78¢ 8,941
Balance at end of the period $ 651,96 $ 702,68: $ 725,32: $ 791,12 $ 853,22, $ 887,44«

The following table presents contractual maturitformation about the Comparsybutstanding repurchase agreements at Decemt
2014 and 2013 (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
Contractual Maturity 2014 2013
Within 30 days $ 157,00¢ $ 509,56+
Over 30 days to 90 days 494,95 281,56.
Total $ 651,96! $ 791,12!

As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding balandemour repurchase agreements was funded at anaxate of 92.8% that implies
average haircut of 7.2%. The weighted average ¢h#lirelated to our repurchase agreement financing diorAgency RMBS (excluding Agen
I10s), Agency I0s and CLOs was approximately 5%, 26%b 35%.

In the event we are unable to obtain sufficientrsterm financing through repurchase agreements @retke, or our lenders start
require additional collateral, we may have to ldgaie our investment securities at a disadvantagemes which could result in losses. Any los
resulting from the disposition of our investmentigdties in this manner could have a material aslvesffect on our operating results and
profitability. At December 31, 2014 and December 3013, the Company had repurchase agreementsl@ittounterparties. As of December
2014 and December 31, 2013, we had no counterpavtiere the amount at risk was in excess of 5%adkBolders’Equity. The amount at risk
defined as the fair value of securities pledgedddisteral to the repurchase agreement in excegeatpurchase agreement liability.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $75.domiih cash and $234.8 million in unencumbered stwent securities to me
additional haircut or market valuation requiremeinsluding $78.8 million of RMBS, of which $76.8iltion are Agency RMBS, $120.8 million
multi-family CMBS (which represents the net fairlue of certain first loss tranche PO securities/andertain 10s issued by certain $erie:
securitizations included in the ConsolidateSKEries) and $35.2 million of CLOs. The $75.6 milliof cash, $78.8 million in RMBS, $120.8 milli
of CMBS and $40.6 million held in overnight depssit our Agency 10 portfolio included in restrictedsh (that is available to meet margin cal
it relates to our Agency IO portfolio repurchaseeggnents), which collectively represent 53.8% af fmancing arrangements, are liquid and ¢
be monetized to pay down or collateralize the ligbimmediately.

10. Financing Arrangements, Distressed Residential Mogage Loans

On December 16, 2014, the Company entered intostemeepurchase agreement, with Deutsche Bank A@m@n Islands Branch in
aggregate principal amount of up to $260.0 millimfund a portion of the purchase price of a poiotlistressed residential mortgage loans.
outstanding balance on this master repurchase ragraeas of December 31, 2014 amounts to approxiyn@gs8.9 million, bears interest at one-
month LIBOR plus 2.50% (2.66% at December 31, 2@h4) expires on December 17, 2015.

During the term of this master repurchase agreementeeds from the pool of distressed resident@tgage loans will be applied to |
any price differential and to reduce the aggregapeirchase price of the collateral. The financindar the master repurchase agreement is sub
margin calls to the extent the market value of ghel of distressed residential mortgage loans tadllow specified levels and repurchase me
accelerated upon an event of default under theemaspurchase agreement. The master repurchasemagre contains contain various coven
among other things, to maintenance of certain ansooinnet worth, liquidity and leverage ratio. TBempany is in compliance with such coven
as of February 27, 2015.
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11. Residential Collateralized Debt Obligations

The Company’s Residential CDOs, which are recometlabilities on the Compars/'consolidated balance sheets, are secured by
loans pledged as collateral, which are recordedsasts of the Company. As of December 31, 20142848, the Company had Residential CI
outstanding of $145.5 million and $158.4 millioespectively. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013¢tineent weighted average interest rate on
CDOs was 0.55% and 0.55%, respectively. The Resade®DOs are collateralized by ARM loans with angipal balance of $152.3 million a
$165.2 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respdy. The Company retained the owner trust fiedies, or residual interest for th
securitizations, and, as of December 31, 2014 &13,2had a net investment in the residential sezation trusts of $5.6 million and $6.6 millic
respectively.

12. Subordinated Debentures
Subordinated debentures are trust preferred sesutitat are fully guaranteed by the Company wepect to distributions and amot
payable upon liquidation, redemption or repaym&he following table summarizes the key detailshef Companys subordinated debentures a

December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (dollauatedn thousands):

NYM Preferred Trust|  NYM Preferred Trust Il

Principal value of trust preferred securities $ 25,000 $ 20,00(
Three month LIBOI Three month LIBOI

Interest Rate plus 3.75%, resettir plus 3.95%, resettir
quarterly quarterly

Scheduled maturity March 30, 203 October 30, 20<

As of February 27, 2015 the Company has not bedéifinh and is not aware, of any event of defaulder the covenants for 1
subordinated debentures.

13. Commitments and Contingencie:

Loans Sold to Third Parties ¥he Company sold its discontinued mortgage lendinginess in March 2007. In the normal cours
business, the Company is obligated to repurchaseslbased on violations of representations andawes in its loan sale agreements. The Corr
did not repurchase any loans during the three yaradsd December 31, 2014.

Outstanding Litigation The Company is at times subject to various legat@edings arising in the ordinary course of businés o
December 31, 2014, the Company does not believteatha of its current legal proceedings, individyatl in the aggregate, will have a mate
adverse effect on its operations, financial cooditor cash flows.

Leases -In December 2012, the Company entered into a ten xase agreement with GP 275 Owner, L.L.C., @mmsto which, th
Company relocated its corporate office in March20lhe lease is accounted for as a naneelable operating lease. Total property leaperee o
this lease amounted to $0.2 million for the yeadegl December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelylése is secured by a $0.2 million cash deposit.

The prior corporate office lease with VanderbiltsAsiates I, L.L.C. expired in March 2013. Total pedy lease expense on this le
amounted to $0.1 million and $0.2 million the yeansled December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, obligations under non-ekatde operating leases are as follows (dollar artsom thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Total
2015 $ 207
2016 207
2017 207
2018 21t
2019 217
Thereafter 87C
$ 1,92¢
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14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has established and documented predesstetermining fair values. Fair value is bagpdn quoted market prices, wh
available. If listed prices or quotes are not e, then fair value is based upon internallyedeped models that primarily use inputs that
market-based or independently-sourced market paeaspéncluding interest rate yield curves.

A financial instrumens categorization within the valuation hierarchy#&sed upon the lowest level of input that is sigaift to the fa
value measurement. The three levels of valuatieraithy are defined as follows:

Level 1- inputs to the valuation methodology are quotédgsr(unadjusted) for identical assets or liak#itin active markets.

Level 2- inputs to the valuation methodology include qugpbeides for similar assets and liabilities in actimarkets, and inputs that
observable for the asset or liability, either dileor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3- inputs to the valuation methodology are unobdelerand significant to the fair value measurement.

The following describes the valuation methodologised for the Company’financial instruments measured at fair valuewel as th
general classification of such instruments purstmtite valuation hierarchy.

a. Investment Securities Available for Sale (RMBS@h@s) — Fair value for the RMBS in our portfolio are valuesing a thirdearty
pricing service or are based on quoted prices gea/by dealers who make markets in similar findringruments. The dealers v
incorporate common market pricing methods, inclgdinspread measurement to the Treasury curve enesitrate swap curve
well as underlying characteristics of the particidecurity including coupon, periodic and life capsllateral type, rate reset per
and seasoning or age of the security. If quoteceprfor a security are not reasonably available faodealer, the security will be re-
classified as a Level 3 security and, as a reswdhagement will determine the fair value basedhraracteristics of the security t
the Company receives from the issuer and basedailable market information. Management reviewspaites used in determini
valuation to ensure they represent current markeditions. This review includes surveying similaanket transactions, comparis
to interest pricing models as well as offeringdild securities by dealers. The Company's investraecurities that are comprisec
RMBS and CLOs are valued based upon readily obskrvaarket parameters and are classified as Lefat 2alues.

b. Investment Securities Available for Sale Held ircugiézation Trusts (CMBS - As the Companyg CMBS investments &
comprised of securities for which there are notssattially similar securities that trade frequentlye Company classifies ths
securities as Level 3 fair values. Fair value &f thompanys CMBS investments is based on an internal valnatimdel the
considers expected cash flows from the underlygan$ and yields required by market participante Significant unobserval
inputs used in the measurement of these investnagatprojected losses of certain identified loarithiw the pool of loans and
discount rate. The discount rate used in determifair value incorporates default rate, loss séyemd current market interest ra
The discount rate ranges from 4.7% to 10.3%. Sianit increases or decreases in these inputs wesldt in a significantly low:
or higher fair value measurement.

C. Multi-Family Loans Held in Securitization Trusts Multi-family loans held in securitization trusts are meleal at fair value ar
classified as Level 3 fair values. Fair value isdghon an internal valuation model that considepeeted cash flows from t
underlying loans and yields required by marketipgeants. The significant unobservable inputs usethe measurement of the
investments are discount rates. The discount re¢e in determining fair value incorporates defaate, loss severity and curr
market interest rates. The discount rate ranges #®@% to 5.6%. Significant increases or decreases in these irvpoid result in
significantly lower or higher fair value measuremen

d. Derivative Instrument— The fair value of interest rate swaps, swaptioptipas and TBAs are based on dealer quotes. Thedhie
of futures are based on exchange-traded pricesCohgany’s derivatives are classified as Level Learel 2 fair values.

e.  Multi-Family CDOs -Multi- Family collateralized debt obligations are recordeéhir value and classified as Level 3 fair valu€he
fair value of Multifamily CDOs is determined using a third party prigiservice or are based on quoted prices provigedehler
who make markets in similar financial instrumerifse dealers will consider contractual cash payment$ yields expected
market participants. Dealers also incorporate commarket pricing methods, including a spread mesmsant to the Treasury cul
or interest rate swap curve as well as underlyimgracteristics of the particular security includicmupon, periodic and life ca
collateral type, rate reset period and seasonirggierof the security. The Company’s Mdémily CDOs are classified as Level 3
values.
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The following table presents the Companfihancial instruments measured at fair value oecarring basis as of December 31, 2014
2013, respectively, on the Company’s consolidatddrize sheets (dollar amounts in thousands):

Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at

December 31, 201 4 December 31, 201 3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets carried at fair value
Investment securities
available for sale:
Agency RMBS $ — $ 779,50 $ — $ 779,50 $ — $ 876,87 $ — $ 876,87
Non-Agency RMBS — 1,93¢ — 1,93¢ — 2,361 — 2,361
CLOs — 35,20s — 35,20z — 33,20¢ — 33,20¢
Investment securities
available for sale held in
securitization trusts:
CMBS — — 38,59/ 38,59/ — — 92,57¢ 92,57¢
Multi-family loans held in
securitization trusts — — 8,365,51. 8,365,51. — — 8,111,02: 8,111,02:
Derivative Assets:
TBA Securities — 284,97 — 284,97 — 190,74 — 190,74
Options on U.S. Treasu
futures 92 — — 92 7 — — 7
U.S. Treasury futures 37¢ — — 37¢ 3,257 — — 3,257
Interest rate swap futur — — — — 23€ — — 23€
Interest rate swaps — 1,13t — 1,13t — 2,041 — 2,041
Swaptions — 2,27¢ — 2,27% — 1,30¢ — 1,30t
Total $ 471 $1,105,021 $8,404,100 $9,509,60! $ 3,50z $1,106,53. $8,203,60 $9,313,63.
Liabilities carried at fair
value
Multi-family collateralized
debt obligations $ — % — $8,048,05 $8,048,05 $ — — $7,871,020 $7,871,02
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps — 232 — 232 — — — —
Interest rate swap futur 331 — — 331 — — = =
Eurodollar futures 90C — — 90C 1,432 — — 1,432
Total $ 1,231 $ 23z $8,048,05. $8,049,511 $ 1,43 $ — $7,871,020 $7,872,45;

The following table details changes in valuatiom fbe Level 3 assets for the years ended Decembge2@L4, 2013 and 20:
respectively (amounts in thousands):

Level 3 Assets:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Balance at beginning of period $ 8,203,600 $ 5,514,060 $ 41,18¢
Total gains (realized/unrealized)

Included in earning€) 383,79¢ (470,46 167,09:

Included in other comprehensive income (5,869 15,53. 3,76¢
Purchases/(Sales) (93,579 3,218,30 4,212,00!
Paydowns (80,457) (73,83) (28,039
Sale of real estate owned (3,399 — —
Transfers — — 1,118,04.(2
Balance at the end of period $ 8,404,10! $ 8,203,60 $ 5,514,06!
@

Amounts included in interest income from multi-féyribans held in securitization trusts and unrealigain on multfamily loans and debt he
in securitization trusts, net and realized gaisgjon investment securities and related hedges, ne

Based on a number of factors, we determined thawvere the primary beneficiary of one$eries securitization as of January 4, 2012 and
consolidated its assets, liabilities, income angeases in our consolidated financial statements.

@
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The following table details changes in valuatiom foe Level 3 liabilities for the years ended Debem31, 2014, 2013 and 20
respectively (amounts in thousands):

Level 3 Liabilities:
Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Balance at beginning of period $ 7,871,020 $ 5,319,57 $ =
Total gains (realized/unrealized)

Included in earning€") 260,87 (521,419 152,44(

Included in other comprehensive income — — —
Purchases — 3,146,67 4,077,27
Paydowns (83,839 (73,819 (28,039
Transfers — — 1,117,89 ()
Balance at the end of period $ 8,048,05! $ 7,871,020 $ 5,319,57.
@

Amounts included in interest expense on multi-fgneibllateralized debt obligations and unrealizeth gan multifamily loans and debt held
securitization trusts, net.

Based on a number of factors, we determined thavere the primary beneficiary of one$eries securitization as of January 4, 2012 and
consolidated its assets, liabilities, income angeases in our consolidated financial statements.

@

The following table details the changes in unrealigains (losses) included in earnings for our L8vassets and liabilities for the ye
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respsacfdalar amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Change in unrealized gains (losses) — assets $ 390,37. $ (423,949 $ 194,36:
Change in unrealized (losses) gains — liabilities (333,440 455,44« (187,70))
Net change in unrealized gains included in earningassets and liabilitie $ 56,93 $ 31,49t $ 6,662

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtblyy management to ensure the changes are agpeopfis markets and prodt
develop and the pricing for certain products becomere transparent, the Company continues to réfnealuation methodologies. The meth
described above may produce a fair value calculdtiat may not be indicative of net realizable eabu reflective of future fair values. Furtherm
while the Company believes its valuation metho@sagpropriate and consistent with other markeigipants, the use of different methodologies
assumptions, to determine the fair value of certimancial instruments could result in a differexstimate of fair value at the reporting date.
Company uses inputs that are current as of eadhmtiregp date, which may include periods of markstatiation, during which time price transpare
may be reduced. This condition could cause thegamyis financial instruments to be reclassifiedrirbevel 2 to Level 3 in future periods.
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The following table presents assets measuredra¢dhie on a nomecurring basis as of December 31, 2014 and 2@kpectively, on t
consolidated balance sheets (dollar amounts irstais):

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nc-Recurring Basis at
December 31, 204 December 31, 203

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Residential Mortgage loans

held in securitization trust

— impaired loans (net) $ $ $ 9,32: 3 9,32: 3 — $ — $ 6,591 $ 6,591
Real estate owned held in

residential securitization

trusts 96E 96E — — 1,10¢ 1,10¢

The following table presents losses incurred faets measured at fair value on a mecdrring basis for the years ended Decembe
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, on the Comparorisolidated statements of operations (dollar artsoim thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiosts — impaired loans (net)  $ 99¢ $ 701 % 707
Real estate owned held in residential securitinatiosts 103 432 45

Residential Mortgage Loans Held in Securitizatiorusts — Impaired Loans (net) {mpaired residential mortgage loans helc
securitization trusts are recorded at amortized less specific loan loss reserves. Impaired Icdoeris based on managemsrgstimate of the r
realizable value taking into consideration localrkea conditions of the property, updated appraisdlies of the property and estimated expe
required to remediate the impaired loan.

Real Estate Owned Held in Residential Securitizalicusts -Real estate owned held in the residential secatitin trusts are recordec
net realizable value. Any subsequent adjustmentr@sult in the reduction in carrying value witretborresponding amount charged to earnings
realizable value based on an estimate of dispe&#ig into consideration local market conditionstlvé property, updated appraisal values o
property and estimated expenses required to sepbperty.
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The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value of the Compasyinancial instruments at December 31, 2014
2013, respectively (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Fair Value
Hierarchy Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Level Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents Level 1 $ 75,59t $ 75,59t $ 31,79t $ 31,79¢
Investment securities available for sale Level 2 816,64 816,64 912,44 912,44
Investment securities available for sale, at falue held in
securitization trusts Level 3 38,59 38,59 92,57¢ 92,57¢
Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiosts (net) Level 3 149,61 135,24: 163,23 152,10«
Distressed residential mortgage loans (Het) Level 3 582,69° 599,18: 264,43: 254,54
Multi-family loans held in securitization trusts Level 3 8,365,51. 8,365,51. 8,111,02; 8,111,02:
Derivative assets Level 1 or 2 288,85( 288,85( 197,59( 197,59(
Mortgage loans held for sale (n&) Level 3 7,712 7,71¢ 2,49¢ 2,59t
First mortgage loan) Level 3 9,54¢ 9,83: 8,24¢ 8,31¢
Mezzanine loan and equity investmelis Level 3 66,95 67,23: 21,56¢ 21,81
Financial Liabilities:
Financing arrangements, portfolio investments Level 2 $ 651,96 $ 651,96 $ 791,12 % 791,12¢
Financing arrangements, distressed residentialgagetloans  Level 2 238,94¢ 238,94¢
Residential collateralized debt obligations Level 3 145,54 130,91¢ 158,41( 151,91(
Multi-family collateralized debt obligations Level 3 8,048,05: 8,048,05: 7,871,02 7,871,02
Securitized debt Level 3 232,87 240,34 304,96« 311,53
Derivative liabilities Level 1 or 2 1,462 1,462 1,432 1,432
Payable for securities purchased Level 1 283,53 283,53 191,59: 191,59:
Subordinated debentures Level 3 45,00( 36,53! 45,00( 39,31(

() Includes distressed residential mortgage loans inetg:curitization trusts with a carrying value amting to approximately $221.6 million &
$254.7 million at December 31, 2014 and December2B13, respectively and distressed residentialtgage loans with a carrying va
amounting to approximately $361.1 million and $&iflion at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2fHsectively.

(@ Included in receivables and other assets imtitempanying consolidated balance sheets.

In addition to the methodology to determine the failue of the Compang’financial assets and liabilities reported at feilue on
recurring basis and naecurring basis, as previously described, the falig methods and assumptions were used by the Qomiparriving at th
fair value of the Company’s other financial instemts in the table immediately above:

a.

b.

Cash and cash equivalenté&Estimated fair value approximates the carrying @afisuch assets.

Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatinrsts (net Residential mortgage loans held in securitizatiosts are recorded
amortized cost. Fair value is based on an interalalation model that considers the aggregated ctaistics of groups of loans st
as, but not limited to, collateral type, index,eirgst rate, margin, length of fixedte period, life cap, periodic cap, underwri
standards, age and credit estimated using theastihmarket prices for similar types of loans.

Distressed residentiemortgage loans (net) Fair value is estimated using pricing models takimtg consideration current inter
rates, loan amount, payment status and propertg, tapd forecasts of future interest rates, homeegriand property valu
prepayment speeds, default, loss severities, andlguurchases and sales of similar loans.

Mortgage loans held for sale (ne~ The fair value of mortgage loans held for sale)(ae¢ estimated by the Company based o
price that would be received if the loans were sdvhole loans taking into consideration the aggped characteristics of the lo
such as, but not limited to, collateral type, indieterest rate, margin, length of fixed interesterperiod, life time cap, periodic ¢
underwriting standards, age and credit.

First mortgage loan and mezzanine loan and equitiestment— Estimated fair value is determined by both marl@nparabl
pricing and discounted cash flows. The discountashcflows are based on the underlying contractaah dlows and estimat
changes in market yields. The fair value also ctdleonsideration of changes in credit risk sirfe drigination or time of initii
investment.

Financing arrangement- The fair value of these financing arrangements@pprates cost as they are short term in nature.



Residential collateralized debt obligatio— The fair value of these CDOs is based on discoucast flows as well as market pric
on comparable obligations.

Securitized debt The fair value of securitized debt is based esoalinted cash flows using management’s estimatadoket yields.
Payable for securities purchas— Estimated fair value approximates the carrying @afisuch liabilities.

Subordinated debenturesThe fair value of these subordinated debenturdmsed on discounted cash flows using management
estimate for market yields.
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15. Stockholders Equity
(a) Dividends on Preferred Stor

The Company had 200,000,000 authorized sharesstérped stock, par value $0.01 per share, withG@D shares issued and outstan
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. During the yeded December 31, 2013, the Company issued 3,0D8}res of 7.75% Series B Cumula
Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series B Preferreck3tawvith a par value of $0.01 per share and a liquiategireference of $25 per share, 3,450
shares authorized, in an underwritten public ofigrifor net proceeds of approximately $72.4 milliafter deducting underwriting discounts
offering expenses. The Series B Preferred Stednfitled to receive a dividend at a rate of 7. f&¥0year on the $25 liquidation preference a
senior to the common stock with respect to distidms upon liquidation, dissolution or winding uphe Series B Preferred Stock generally doe
have any voting rights, subject to an exceptiorhie event the Company fails to pay dividends orhsstock for six or more quarterly peric
(whether or not consecutive). Under such circuntcsts, the Series B Preferred Stock will be entittedote to elect two additional directors to
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Boardigsignating the Series B Preferred Stock untibapaid dividends have been paid or declared ar
apart for payment. In addition, certain materiatl aadverse changes to the terms of the Series ®rRr@ Stock cannot be made without
affirmative vote of holders of at least two-thimfsthe outstanding shares of Series B PreferredkSto

The Series B Preferred Stock is not redeemablédybmpany prior to June 4, 2018, except undeuristances intended to preserve
Companys qualification as a REIT and except upon the geniwe of a Change of Control (as defined in théche$ Supplementary designating
Series B Preferred Stock). On and after June 48,208 Company may, at its option, redeem the S&iPreferred Stock, in whole or in part, at
time or from time to time, for cash at a redemptoice equal to $25.00 per share, plus any accuetund unpaid dividends.

In addition, upon the occurrence of a Change oft@brthe Company may, at its option, redeem theéeSd& Preferred Stock, in whole
in part, within 120 days after the first date, ohieth such Change of Control occurred, for cash @d@mption price of $25.00 per share, plus
accumulated and unpaid dividends.

The Series B Preferred Stock has no stated matusityjot subject to any sinking fund or mandatoegemption and will rema
outstanding indefinitely unless repurchased or eeds®l by the Company or converted into the Compangimmon stock in connection witl
Change of Control by the holders of the Series &dPred Stock.

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, eadten@f Series B Preferred Stock will have the rigimless the Company has exerc
its right to redeem the Series B Preferred Stoclgonvert some or all of the Series B PreferredSteld by such holder into a number of shar
our common stock per share of Series B PreferreckStetermined by a formula, in each case, ondtres and subject to the conditions describ
the Articles Supplementary.

From the time of original issuance of the SeriePrBferred Stock through December 31, 2014, the @ompas declared and paid
required quarterly dividends on such stock. Thiwahg table presents the relevant dates with resigesuch quarterly cash dividends on the S
B Preferred Stock from issuance through Decembg2@14:

Cash
Dividend

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Per Share
December 12, 2014 January 1, 2015 January 15, 2015 $ 0.48437!
September 18, 2014 October 1, 2014 October 15, 2014 $ 0.48437!

June 18, 2014 July 1, 2014 July 15, 2014 $ 0.48437!

March 13, 2014 April 1, 2014 April 15, 2014 $ 0.48437!
December 10, 2013 January 1, 2014 January 15, 2014 $ 0.48437!
September 12, 2013 October 1, 2013 October 15, 2013 $ 0.48437!

June 18, 2013 July 1, 2013 July 15, 2013 $ 0.22066!

F-40




(b) Dividends on Common Sto

The following table presents cash dividends dedldne the Company on its common stock with respeaach of the quarterly peric
commencing January 1, 2012 and ended Decembef34; 2

Period

Declaration Date

Record Date

Payment Date

Cash
Dividend
Per Share

Fourth Quarter 2014 December 12, 2014 December 22, 2014 January 26, 2015 $ 0.27
Third Quarter 2014 September 18, 2014 September 29, 2014 October 27, 2014 $ 0.27
Second Quarter 2014 June 18, 2014 June 30, 2014 July 25, 2014 $ 0.27
First Quarter 2014 March 13, 2014 March 24, 2014 April 25, 2014 $ 0.27
Fourth Quarter 2013 December 10, 2013 December 20, 2013 January 27, 2014 $ 0.27
Third Quarter 2013 September 12, 2013 September 23, 2013 October 25, 2013 $ 0.27
Second Quarter 2013 June 18, 2013 June 28, 2013 July 25, 2013 $ 0.27

First Quarter 2013 March 18, 2013 March 28, 2013 April 25, 2013 $ 0.27
Fourth Quarter 2012 December 14, 2012 December 24, 2012 January 25, 2013 $ 0.27
Third Quarter 2012 September 18, 2012 September 28, 2012 October 25, 2012 $ 0.27
Second Quarter 2012 June 15, 2012 June 25, 2012 July 25, 2012 $ 0.27

First Quarter 2012 March 19, 2012 March 29, 2012 April 25, 2012 $ 0.2t

During 2014, dividends for our common stock wete08 per share. For tax reporting purposes, thel 2idends were classified
ordinary income, capital gain distribution and ratwf capital in the amounts of $0.61, $0.35 andl$0respectively, per share. During 2(
dividends for our common stock were $1.08 per shewetax reporting purposes, the 2013 dividendewdassified as ordinary income and retur
capital in the amounts of $0.81 and $0.27, respelgti per share. During 2012, dividends for our omon stock were $1.06 per share. For
reporting purposes, the dividends were classifiedrdinary income, the 2012 dividends were clasgiéis ordinary income and return of capital ir
amounts of $0.92 and $0.14, respectively, per share

(c) Public Offering of Common Sto

The table below presents information with respecstiares of the Comparsytommon stock issued through public offerings rayitihe
three years ended December 31, 2014 (amountsuisdhds):
Net Proceedsl)

Share Issue Date Shares Issued

November 26, 201 14,41C $ 110,78«
April 7, 2014 14,95( $ 109,91¢
January 10, 2014 11,50C $ 75,84¢
May 3, 2013 13,60C $ 94,43«
October 9, 2012 15,52t $ 104,14
September 4, 2012 1,50C $ 9,76¢
August 21, 2012 10,00C $ 64,89:
July 17, 2012 517t $ 33,15(
May 31, 2012 3,162 $ 20,03!

@ proceeds are net of underwriting costs and offegkmenses paid by the Company.

F-41




(d) Equity Distribution Agreemet

On June 11, 2012, we entered into an equity digioh agreement with IMP Securities LLC (“JMRY the placement agent, pursual
which we may sell up to $25,000,000 worth of shafesur common stock from time to time through JM¥e have no obligation to sell any of
shares under the equity distribution agreementnaaig at any time suspend solicitations and offedeuthe equity distribution agreement. During
year ended December 31, 2013, we issued 827,318sshader the equity distribution agreement, ed\@rage sales price of $7.21, resulting in
net proceeds to the Company of $5.8 million, afteducting the placement fees. During the year efiszbmber 31, 2014, there were no st
issued under the equity distribution agreementaAssult, approximately $19.2 million remains aaflié for issuance under the equity distribL
agreement as of December 31, 2014.

16. Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadiviling net income for the period by weightaderage shares of common si
outstanding for that period. Diluted net income glegire takes into account the effect of dilutivermments, such as convertible preferred stockk
options and unvested restricted or performancekstng uses the average share price for the pamideétermining the number of incremental sh
that are to be added to the weightedrage number of shares outstanding. There weddutive instruments for the years ended Decen3iie2014
2013 and 2012.

The following table presents the computation ofibasd dilutive net income per share for the pesiodlicated (amounts in thousar
except per share amounts):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Numerator :

Net income attributable to common stockholc— Basic $ 130,37¢ $ 65,387 $ 28,27¢
Net income from continuing operations 130,37¢ 65,387 28,26¢
Net income from discontinued operations (net of tax — — 14

Net income attributable to common stockhol— Dilutive $ 130,37¢ $ 65,387 $ 28,27¢
Net income from continuing operations 130,37¢ 65,387 27,26¢
Net income from discontinued operations (net of tax — — 14

Denominator:

Weighted average basic and dilutive shares outstgnd 87,867 59,10z 26,067

EPS:

Basic EPS $ 1.4¢ $ 111 $ 1.0¢
Basic EPS from continuing operations 1.4¢ 1.11 1.0¢
Basic EPS from discontinued operations (net of tax) — — —

Dilutive EPS $ 148 $ 1.11 % 1.0¢
Dilutive EPS from continuing operations 1.4¢ 1.11 1.0¢

Dilutive EPS from discontinued operations (neta)t — — —

17. Stock Incentive Plan

In May 2010, the Company'’s stockholders approvedGompany’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2018&nB| with such stockhold:
action resulting in the termination of the Compang005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plaihe terms of the 2010 Plan are substantiall
same as the 2005 Plan. Pursuant to the 2010 Higillees employees, officers and directors of then@@any have the opportunity to acquire
Company's common stock through the award of résttistock and other equity awards under the 20&0.Hlhe maximum number of shares
may be issued under the 2010 Plan is 1,190,000.

Of the common stock authorized at December 31, 201dl 2013, 862,512 shares and 995,029 sharesctiespe were reserved f
issuance under the Compasy2010 Stock Incentive Plan. At December 31, 20dd 2013, there were 162,171 and 94,873 shares \adstm
restricted stock outstanding under the 2010 Plée Companys directors have been issued 111,311 and 83,3Y¥#&ssbader the 2010 Plan as
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Compafficers have been issued 216,177 and 111,668shader the 2010 Plan as of Decer
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012ah#, the Company recognized noesh compensation expense of $0.4 million,
million and $0.1 million, respectively. Dividendsegpaid on all restricted stock issued, whethesé¢hghares have vested or not. In general veste
restricted stock is forfeited upon the recipietgfgination of employment. There were no forfeitudeiring the years ended December 31, 2014,
and 2012.
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A summary of the activity of the Company's neested restricted stock under the 2010 Plan foyéaes ended December 31, 2014, .
and 2012, respectively, is presented below:

2014 2013 2012
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Per Number of Average Per Number of Average Per
Non-vested Share Non-vested Share Non-vested Share
Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date
Shares Fair Value (1) Shares Fair Value (1) Shares Fair Value (1)
Non-vested shares at January 1 94,87: $ 7.01 31,58 $ 6.5€ 14,08 $ 7.1C
Granted 104,51° 7.3¢ 75,38¢ 7.1: 22,19: 6.3¢€
Vested (37,219 6.97 (12,099 6.6 (4,695 7.1C
Nor-vested shares as of December 31 162,17. $ 7.2¢€ 94,87. $ 7.01 31,58( $ 6.5¢
Weightedaverage restricted stock gran
during the period 104,510 $ 7.3¢€ 75,388 $ 7.13 22,197 $ 6.3€
@

The grant date fair value of restricted stock awasdased on the closing market price of the Caryipa&ommon stock at the grant date.

At each of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Compeauy unrecognized compensation expense of $0.8omilind $0.4 millior
respectively, related to the neested shares of restricted common stock unde2@t® Plan. The unrecognized compensation experiBecambe
31, 2014 is expected to be recognized over a wailghterage period of 1.9 years. The total fair @alfirestricted shares vested during the
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $0i8mi0.1 million and $0.03 million, respectivelJhe requisite service period for restric
shares at issuance is three years.

18. Income Taxes

At December 31, 2014, one of the Companwholly owned TRSs had approximately $59 millidnnet operating loss carryforwal
which the Company does not expect to be able liaaito offset future taxable income, other tharatde income arising from certain “built in gains”
on its CLOs. The carryforwards will expire betwez24 through 2028. The Internal Revenue Code pleeeain limitations on the annual amour
net operating loss carryforwards that can be etlif certain changes in the Compangwnership occur. The Company determined duririg 2ba
it had undergone ownership changes within the nmgaoi Internal Revenue Code Section 382 that thapgamy believes will substantially elimin
utilization of these net operating loss carryforsgto offset future taxable income. In generad, @ompany incurs an ownership change under Si
382, the company's ability to utilize a NOL carmyfard to offset its taxable income becomes limited certain amount per year.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company through a lwhmwned TRS, had incurred net operating lossethéaggregate amount
approximately $3.6 million. The Compasytarryforward net operating losses, which aresnbject to a Section 382 limitation, will expiretveer
2033 and 2034 if they are not offset by future tdgancome. Additionally, as of December 31, 20th4, Company, through one of its wholly ow
TRSs, had also incurred approximately $3.5 milliorcapital losses. The Compasycarryforward capital losses will expire by 201&iey are nc
offset by future capital gains. At December 31120he Company has recorded a valuation allowagednst the deferred tax assets manage
does not believe it is more likely than not to belized.

The Company files income tax returns with the Uesleral government and various state and locasdiciions. The Company is
longer subject to tax examinations by tax authesiior years prior to 2011. The Company has assétséax positions for all open years, wt
includes 2011 to 2014 and concluded that ther@@maaterial uncertainties to be recognized.

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 20128h8, the Compang’ TRSs recorded approximately $6.4 million, $0.Tiom, anc

$0.9 million, respectively of income tax expensheTCompanys estimated taxable income differs from the stayutd.S. federal rate as a resul
state and local taxes, non-taxable REIT incomejatan allowance and other differences.
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A reconciliation of the statutory income tax proeisto the effective income tax provision for theays ended December 31, 2014, :
and 2012, respectively, are as follows (dollar anmt®in thousands).

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Provision at statutory rate $ 49,31¢ 35.(% $ 24,39:¢ 35.(% $ 10,19( 35.(%
Non-taxable REIT income (44,24°) (31.9 (26,21%) (37.9 (9,779 (33.6)
State and local tax provision 2,42( 1.7 34¢ 0.t 12¢ 04
Other (62€) (0.9 (859 (1.2 331 1.1
Valuation allowance 13: 0.1 3,06¢ 4.4 56 0.2
Total provision $ 6,99/ 5% $ 73€ 1.1% $ 932 3.1%

The income tax provision for the years ended Deegn®i, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is comprised of theoiollg components (doll
amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current income tax expense $ 6,99/ $ 73¢ % 932
Deferred income tax expense (599 — —
Total provision $ 6,39 $ 73¢ $ 93z

The gross deferred tax asset at December 31, 2@12@G 3 is $32.1 million and $30.3 million, respesly. The major sources of tempor
differences included in the deferred tax assetsthait deferred tax effect as of December 31, 28idd 2013 are as follows (dollar amount
thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforward $ 28,70« $ 28,25(

Net capital loss carryforward 1,592 1,594

GAAP/Tax basis differences 1,75¢ 48¢

Total deferred tax assdfs $ 32,05! 30,33¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities $ 1,04( 55

Total deferred tax liabilitie®) 1,04( 55

Valuation allowance (30,41 (30,279
Total net deferred tax asset $ 59¢ $ —

@D Included in receivables and other assets in therapanying consolidated balance sheets.
@ Included in accrued expenses and other liabilitidhe accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

19. Related Party Transactions

On April 5, 2011, the Company entered into a mamage agreement with RiverBanc LLC (“RiverBangiyrsuant to which RiverBa
provides investment management services to the @oyngOn March 13, 2013, the Company entered intaraended and restated manage!
agreement with RiverBanc (as amended, the “RivecBdlanagement Agreement”.he RiverBanc Management Agreement replaces tla
management agreement between RiverBanc and thea@gmgated as of April 5, 2011. The amended andtexsagreement has an effective da
January 1, 2013 and had an initial term that edpie December 31, 2014 and is now subject to autoraanual onerear renewals in 2015 a
thereafter (subject to any notice of termination).

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013Ctmapany owned a 20% membership interest in RivestBRor the year end
December 31, 2014, the Company recognized $2.6mith income related to its investment in RiverBan

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2, 284 Company expensed $14.8 million, $3.4 millaod $0.9 million in fees

RiverBanc, respectively. As of December 31, 201d Bacember 31, 2013, the Company had managemenpég@ble to RiverBanc of $6.3 milli
and $1.0 million, respectively, included in accreegbenses and other liabilities.
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20. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table is a comparative breakdown of onaudited quarterly results for the immediaf@lgceding eight quarters (amount
thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended

Mar. 31, Jun. 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014
Interest income $ 95,23t 3 95,54¢ $ 94,937 $ 93,12«
Interest expense 75,41 75,66¢ 75,617 74,31°
Net interest income 19,82¢ 19,88! 19,32 18,80¢
Other Income:
Provision for loan losses (489 (663) (82 (705)
Realized gain on investment securities and relageidjes, net 2,03¢ 1,32t 17,05¢ 21,67:
Realized gain on distressed residential mortgagesio 8,22t 41€ 834 4,90:
Unrealized loss on investment securities and relagelges, net (1,730 (1,299 (1,020 (3,620
Unrealized gain on multi-family loans and debt hieldecuritization trusts
net 4,92¢ 20,01¢ 18,11¢ 13,87:
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — (3,397 —
Other income 51C 208 1,618 2,48¢
Total other income 13,47¢ 20,01 33,11¢ 38,60«
General, administrative and other expenses 7,55¢ 7,571 11,61: 13,71(
Income from operations before income taxes 25,74: 32,315 40,82 43,70:¢
Income tax expense 3,03(C 53¢ 1,10(¢ 1,72
Net income 22,71 31,77¢ 39,72t 41,97¢
Preferred Stock Dividends (1,459 (1,459 (1,459 (1,459
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 21,25¢  $ 30,32¢ $ 38,27: $ 40,52:
Per share basic income $ 0.2¢ $ 0.34 $ 04z $ 0.4z
Per share diluted income $ 0.2¢ % 034 $ 04: % 0.4z
Dividends declared per common share $ 027 $ 027 $ 027 $ 0.27
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 74,50¢ 89,68¢ 90,68t 96,32¢
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 74,50¢ 89,68¢ 90,68t 96,32¢
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Three Months Ended

Mar. 31, Jun. 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
2013 2013 2013 2013
Interest income $ 59,12¢ $ 68,81¢ $ 76,73¢ $ 87,04:
Interest expense 46,14¢ 54,91, 61,532 68,58¢
Net interest income 12,98¢ 13,89¢ 15,20 18,45¢
Other Income:
Provision for loan losses (283 (389 (23¢) (357)
Impairment loss on investment securities — — (225) —
Realized gain (loss) on investment securities atated hedges, net (3,169 (8,490 3,31¢ (2,38¢)
Realized gain on distressed residential mortgagyesio 13€ 43E 48€ 54:
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securitiesratated hedges, net 2,45¢ 2,057 (1,499 2,44¢
Unrealized gain on multi-family loans and debt hieldecuritization trusts
net 7,051 8,981 6,33¢ 9,12t
Other income 26€ 23t 29C 1,91¢
Total other income 6,46¢ 2,83¢ 8,47 11,29(
General, administrative and other expenses 3,93¢ 4,644 5,082 6,25¢
Income from operations before income taxes 15,51 12,08¢ 18,591 23,49¢
Income tax expense 131 18¢ 211 20¢€
Net income 15,38 11,90( 18,38¢ 23,28¢
Preferred Stock Dividends — (662) (1,459 (1,459
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 1538: $ 11,23t $ 16,93t $ 21,83:
Per share basic income $ 031 $ 0.1¢ $ 0271 $ 0.34
Per share diluted income $ 031 $ 0.1¢ $ 027 $ 0.34
Dividends declared per common share $ 027 % 027 % 027 $ 0.27
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 49,61 58,95¢ 63,75¢ 63,87¢
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 49,61! 58,95¢ 63,75¢ 63,87¢

21. Subsequent Events

In January 2015, we issued 27,333 shares undemihity distribution agreement with JMP, at an agersales price of $7.90, resulting
total net proceeds to the Company of $0.2 millefiter deducting the placement fees.

In February 2015, the Company sold a first lossgeCurity in one of the Company’s Consolidate@&&ries obtaining total proceeds

approximately $44.3 million and realizing a gainapproximately $1.9 million. The sale resulted ideaconsolidation of $1.1 billion in Multramily
loans held in a securitization trust and $1.0daillin Multi-family collateralized debt obligation.

F-46




EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibits: The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulatioik &re listed below. Management contracts or comgeng plans are filed as Exhit
10.7 through 10.11.

Exhibit

Description

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3(a)

4.3(b)

4.3(c)

4.4(a)

4.4(b)

10.1

10.2

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of New Yor@aridage Trust, Inc., as amended (Incorporated fgraece to Exhib
3.1 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-&dfibn March 10, 2014 (File No. 001-32216)).

Bylaws of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc., @amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibitt8.2he Company Annua
Report on Form 10-K filed on March 4, 2011).

Articles Supplementary designating the Corgsan.75% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Prefe3tedk (the “Series B
Preferred Stock”) (Incorporated by reference toiBixl3.3 of the Company’s Registration Statementorm 8-A filed on May
31, 2013)

Form of Common Stock Certificate. (Incorpethby reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’si&egfion Statement on Form
S-11 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsimis(Registration No. 3:-111668), effective June 23, 200

Form of Certificate representing the Series B Cating Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Qeaté (Incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company’s RegigiraStatement on Form 8-A filed on May 31, 2013).

Junior Subordinated Indenture between The New YMidktgage Company, LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank,oNa
Association, as trustee, dated September 1, 20@&rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @any’s Current Report ¢
Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Excha@genmission on September 6, 2005 (File No 001-32216)

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among The Yaw Mortgage Company, LLC, JPMorgan Chase Bankiiddal
Association, Chase Bank USA, National Associatiod the Administrative Trustees named therein, d&eptember 1, 20C
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to thenPany’s Current Report on Formkd-as filed with the Securities a
Exchange Commission on September 6, 2005 (FileNe32216)).

Parent Guarantee Agreement between New York Moetgemst, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Nationabéiation, a
guarantee trustee, dated September 1, 2005. (loeieul by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comma@yrrent Report on Fol
8-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on September 6, 2005 (File No 001-32216)).

Junior Subordinated Indenture between The New Ydidrtgage Company, LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bankjohk
Association, as trustee, dated March 15, 2005 (purated by reference to Exhibit 4.3(a) to the Canys Quarterly Report
Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2012 (File No. 001-32.

Parent Guarantee Agreement between New York Moetgemgist, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Nationabéiaion, a
guarantee trustee, dated March 15, 2005. (Incorpatay reference to Exhibit 4.3(b) to the Compa@usrterly Report on For
10-Q filed on August 9, 2012 (File No. 001-32216)).

Certain instruments defining the rights of holdefdongterm debt securities of the Registrant and its &liéses are omitte
pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of RegulatiorK. The Registrant hereby undertakes to furnistin&SEC, upon request, copie
any such instruments.

Investment Management Agreement, by and between Xak Mortgage Trust, Inc. and The Midway Group, HRted as ¢
February 11, 2011 (Incorporated by reference toilixth0.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FArdQ filed on May £
2011 (File No. 001-32216)).

First Amendment to Investment Management Agreerbgrind between New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and Widway Groug
L.P., dated March 9, 2012 (Incorporated by refeeetwcExhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual RepartForm 10K filed on
March 12, 2012 (File No. 001-32216)).
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Second Amendment to Investment Management Agreebeind between New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. atd Midway
Group, L.P., dated April 1, 2014 (Incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quart&dport on Form 1@ filed
on August 7, 2014 (File No. 001-32216)).

Amended and Restated Management Agreement, byetmegén RB Commercial Mortgage LLC, New York Mortgafrust, Inc
and RiverBanc, LLC, dated as of March 13, 2013diporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Canyfs Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (Rd. 001-32216)).

Equity Distribution Agreement, dated June 11, 2042 and between New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. aktP JSSecurities LL(
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to thempany’s Current Report on FormK3as filed with the Securities and Excha
Commission on June 11, 2012 (File No. 001-32216)).

New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. 2010 Stock IncentRian (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2h® Compan's Curren
Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Securities &xdhange Commission on May 17, 2010 (File No. 82216)).

NYMT, Inc. 2013 Incentive Compensation Plan (Inargied by reference to the Comp’s Current Report on Form B-as filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Maf; 2013 (File No. 001-32216)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Officéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te @ompanys Curren
Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Securities &xdhange Commission on July 14, 2009 (File No-88216)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Dicest(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2te €Companys Curren
Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Securities &xdhange Commission on July 14, 2009 (File No-88216)).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, by atwdelen New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and StevelMBmma dated ¢
of November 22, 2011 (Incorporated by referenceExdibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrkd8-K filed on
November 23, 2011 (File No. 0-32216)).

Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreemgnant between the Company and Steven R. Mummag deteo
November 3, 2014 (Incorporated by reference to MkHi0.1 to the Compars Quarterly Report on Form 1Q- filed or
November 6, 2014 (File No. 0-32216)).

Underwriting Agreement, by and among New York Madg Trust, Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. @neldit Suiss
Securities (USA) LLC, dated as of April 29, 201Rwcprporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the @any’s Current Report ¢
Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Excha@Ggenmission on May 2, 2013 (File No. 001-32216)).

Underwriting Agreement, dated May 28, 2013, by amibng New York Mortgage Trust, Inc., Citigroup GdbMarkets Inc. ar
Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. (Incorporated by refece to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Current Repar Form 8K as filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on NMay2013 (File No. 001-32216)).

Underwriting Agreement, dated as of January 7, 206¢4nd among the Company, UBS Securities LLCcBgs Capital Inc. ar
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC (Incorporatedréference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company's CurfReport on Form & as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 10, 2014 (File No. 001-32216)).

Underwriting Agreement, dated as of April 2, 204, and among the Company, UBS Securities LLC, @r8disse Securiti
(USA) LLC, Barclays Capital Inc. and RBC Capital dets LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1olthe Company
Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Setiesiand Exchange Commission on April 7, 2014 (Rite 001-32216)).

Underwriting Agreement, dated as of November 211,42y and among the Company, UBS Securities LLEytEche Bar
Securities Inc., Barclays Capital Inc., RBC Caplarkets LLC, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LL@ddrporated by referen
to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company's Current Report omf8K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Comioissn Novembe
26, 2014 (File No. 001-32216)).

Statement re: Computation of Ratios.*




21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public éaibog Firm (Grant Thornton LLP).*

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer puemnt to Rule 13a-14(a)/1514(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratac
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@arkey- Act of 2002.*

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer puient to Rule 13a-14(a)/154(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asradad
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@rkes- Act of 2002.*

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiEiancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, agpaeld pursuant to Secti
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**

101.INS XBRL Instance Document ***

101.SCH Taxonomy Extension Schema Document ***

101.CAL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documerit **

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document ***
101.LAB Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document ***

101.PRE Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document *

*  Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith. Such certification shalltriie deemed “filed’for the purposes of Section 18 of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934,
amended.

*** Submitted electronically herewith. Attached as Bikh101 to this report are the following documefasmatted in XBRL (Extensible Busine
Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance ShatDecember 31, 2014 and 2013; (ii) Consolid&tedements of Operations for the yi
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (iii) Qateted Statements of Comprehensive Income (Lams}He years ended December
2014, 2013 and 2012; (iv) Consolidated Statemeh@hanges in StockholderEquity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20it32012
(v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for tha&ry ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; @§n¥afes to Consolidated Financ
Statements.



Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Pfferred Stock Dividends

Earnings:
Pretax income from continuing operations
Fixed charges
Dividends distributed to shareholders
Equity investee adjustment
Non-controlling interest

Total Earnings

Fixed Charges:
Interest expense

Total Fixed Charges
Preferred stock dividends
Total Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock

Dividends

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges antepred
stock dividends

Deficiency related to ratio of earnings to fixechales
Deficiency related to ratio of earnings to combiffigdd
charges and preferred stock dividends

(Dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Exhibit 12..

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
142,58¢ $ 69,69t 29,10 524: $ 5,67(
301,01 231,17 105,92¢ 4,837 9,611

86,70¢ 61,30: 22,30« 8,27( 8,10z
(2,32¢) (185) (39) (174) (64)

- - 97 (97) -
527,97 $ 361,98 157,38t 18,07¢ $ 23,31¢
301,01 $ 23117 105,92¢ 4831 $ 9,611
301,01( 231,17 105,92¢ 4,831 9,611
5,812 3,56¢ - - -
306,82: $ 234,74 105,92¢ 4831 $ 9,611
1.7 1.57 1.4¢ 3.74 2.4%
1.72 1.54 1.4¢ 3.74 2.47
NA NA NA NA NA

NA NA NA NA NA



Name

List of Significant Subsidiaries

State of Incorporation

Exhibit 21.1

Names under which it does Business

Hypotheca Capital, LLC (formerly known as

The New York Mortgage Company, LLC)
New York Mortgage Funding, LL!

New York Mortgage Securitization Trust 2(-1

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-1

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-2

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-3

NYM Preferred Trust

NYM Preferred Trust |

NYMT Commercial LLC

Great Lakes Insurance Holdings, LLC
NYMT-Midway LLC

NYMT Residential, LLC

NYMT Residential 201-RP1, LLC
NYMT Residential Tax, LLC

NYMT Loan Financing, LLC

NYMT Loan Trust 201-RP1, LLC
NYMT Residential 201-RP1, LLC
NYMT Residential Tax 201-RP1, LLC
NYMT Loan Trust 201-RP2, LLC
NYMT Residential 201-RP2, LLC
NYMT Residential Tax 201-RP2, LLC
NYMT Loan Trust 201-RP3, LLC
NYMT Residential 201-RP3, LLC
NYMT Residential Tax 201-RP3, LLC
NYMT Loan Trust 201-RP1, LLC

RB Commercial Mortgage LLC

RB Commercial Trust Series 2012-RS1

New York

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Michigan

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated February 27, 2G5 respect to the consolidated financial stateim@nd internal control over financial repor
included in the Annual Report of New York Mortgageust, Inc. on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 2014. We herebgant to th
incorporation by reference of said reports in thregiRtration Statements of New York Mortgage Truist. on Forms S-3 (File No. 333817°
effective August 15, 2014, File No. 333-186016 efffee January 14, 2013, and File No. 333-17931datiffe April 11, 2012) and on Forms83¥File
No. 33167609 effective June 17, 2010 and File No. 338983 effective October 13, 2006).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven R. Mumma, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fdikthe year ended December 31, 2014 of New Yorktlygme Trust, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadordgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmistate a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements meade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, other financial information included in theport, fairly present in ¢
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedurt
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting artle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantel@isire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proms] as of the end of the period covered by #pp®nt based on such evaluat
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting tloaturred during the registrant's n
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasone
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imtal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abndwel
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditorgl @ahe audit committee of the registrant's boardlicéctors (or persons performing the equive
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controéofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refpmencial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesimagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registran
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2015
/sl Steven R. Mumma
Steven R. Mumma
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kristine R. Nario, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1f@#the year ended December 31, 2014 of New Yorktlytme Trust, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadordany untrue statement of a material fact or dmistate a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements meade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, other financial information included in theport, fairly present in ¢
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunesaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting artle preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslasire controls and procedures and presentedsimehort our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #®nt based on such evaluat
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting tloatcurred during the registrant's n
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasone
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imtat control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxzh on our most recent evaluation of internal cdnivel
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditorgl @ahe audit committee of the registrant's boardliofctors (or persons performing the equive
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controémofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refpmencial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registran
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2015
/s/ Kristine R. Nario
Kristine R. Nario
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of New York Ngage Trust, Inc., (the “Company”) on Form K{der the year ended December 31, 201:
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorihe date hereof (the “Reportthe undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to B QI.§ 135(
as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarb@rkes Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdifey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyvall be retained by the Company
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissidts staff upon request.

Date: February 27, 2015
/s/ Steven R. Mumma
Steven R. Mumma
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 27, 2015
/sl Kristine R. Nario
Kristine R. Nario
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




